
Board Meeting

January 22, 2024 at 5:30 p.m.

Fresno EOC Board Room

1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 310

Fresno, CA, 93721

Join By Zoom:

https://fresnoeoc.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZAtf-ChrDktHdTxya7bfd9uiYS9_5W9f2pz



2. ROLL CALL  

3. APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 7, 2023 MINUTES Approve

6. SEATING OF COMMISSIONERS Approve Hayes

7. INTRODUCTION OF NEW COMMISSIONERS Information Hayes

8. ANNUAL ELECTION OF OFFICERS Approve Price

9. 2024 SIGNATORY AUTHORIZATION RESOLUTION Approve Hayes

10. TRANSFORMING AND INSPIRING Information Lopez

11. FINANCIAL REPORTS Accept Zapata

1. CALL TO ORDER AND COMMUNITY ACTION
PROMISE:
Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of hope,
improves communities, and makes America a better place to live.

We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to helping
people help themselves and each other.

Action Presenter

A. Roll Call - 5  

A. December 7, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes - 6  

4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
(The Board may add an item to the agenda if, upon a two-thirds vote, the
Board finds that there is a need for immediate action on the matter and the
need came to the attention of the Board after the posting of this agenda.) 

 

5. POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST
(Any Board Member who has a potential conflict of interest may now
identify the item and recuse themselves from discussing and voting on the
matter.) (FPPC §87105)

 

A. Seating of Commissioners - 10  

A. Introduction of New Commissioners - 11  

A. Annual Election of Officers - 12  

A. 2024 Signatory Authorization Resolution - 14  

A. School of Unlimited Learning - 16  
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12. 2024 AGENCY BUDGET Approve Zapata

13. EMPLOYEE POLITICAL & ADVOCACY ACTIVITIES
POLICY

Approve Dibie

14. GUARANTEED INCOME PROGRAM Approve Reyes

15. LOCAL CONSERVATION CORPS Approve Riggins

16. HEALTH SERVICES Ratify Thomas

A. Human Trafficking Victim Assistance (HV) Program - 36 Approve

17. SANCTUARY & SUPPORT SERVICES Gattie-
Blanco

A. Career Skills Training Grant - 42 Approve

18. TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT Turner

19. HEAD START 0 to 5 MONTHLY UPDATE Information Pineda

1. November 8, 2023, Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - 47

2. Workers Compensation Policy Renewal - 50

3. Transit Systems Electrification RFP: Nuvve Holding Corp.
Proposal - 58

4. Health Insurance Report (Information) - 190

A. Finance Committee Items: December 13, 2023 Approve

1. November 27, 2023 Program Planning and Evaluation
Committee Meeting Minutes - 193

2. Training and Employment: Good Jobs Challenge Subrecipient
Agreement - 197

B. Program Planning and Evaluation Committee
Items: December 18, 2023

Approve Arambula

5. Non-Competitive Procurement (Information) - 192

20. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
Any Commissioner may pull any Consent Item for discussion or separate
vote

A. Agency Financial and Head Start Financial Status Report October
2023 - 17

A. 2024 Agency Budget - 23

A. Employee Political & Advocacy Activities Policy - 24

A. Advancing Fresno County Guaranteed Income Program - 31

A. Congress Appropriations of Community Project Grant - 33

A. Title X Equity-Based Funding - 34

B. Homeless Services Proposal - 38 Ratify

B. Strong Workforce Program Agreement - 43 Ratify

A. Head Start 0 to 5 Monthly Update - 45
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3. Local Conservation Corps: CalFIRE Greater Sierra Forestry
Corps Contractor Agreement - 199

 

4. Health Services: Public Awareness and Community Outreach
Campaign Services Agreement – Amendment 1 - 201

 

5. Energy Services: 2021 Housing Rehabilitation and Home
Repair Program – Onsite Monitoring Visit (Information) - 202

 

6. Sanctuary & Support Services: Fresno County Department of
Social Services Program Review (Information) - 206

 

7. Sanctuary & Support Services: Project HOPE Bridge Housing
Update (Information) - 207

 

1. August 17, 2023 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes - 213  

C. Audit Committee Items: December 22, 2023 Approve Martinez

1. Program Update Report (PUR) for October and November 2023
- 276

 

2. Head Start 0 to 5 Budget Modification FY 2023 - 282  

D. Head Start County-Wide Policy Council Items: Approve Brown-
Jenkins

1. October 17, 2023 SOUL Governing Council Minutes - 287  
2. November 7, 2023 Head Start County Wide Policy Council
Meeting - 289

 

E. Advisory Board Accept

8. Program Planning & Development: Grant Tracker (Information)
- 208

 

2. Financial Audit Report - 215  

3. Locally Designed Program Option (LDO) - 284  

21. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT Information Reyes

3. December 5, 2023 Head Start County Wide Policy Council
Meeting - 294

 

A. CEO Report - 297  

22. PUBLIC COMMENTS
(This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Board
on any matter related to the Commission that is not listed on the Agenda.)

 

23. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENT   Hayes

24. NEXT MEETING:
Saturday, February 24, 2024 Board Training. Location: TBD

 

25. ADJOURNMENT  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ROLL CALL 2024 

 

# Commissioner 
Term 

Expiration 

 
Target Area / Appointing / Nominating 
Org. 
 

1/22 
2/24 

Board 
Training 

      
3/18 
 

4/15 5/20 

                      
6/4-8 

CAPLAW 
Training  

                                 
9/16 
 

10/21 11/18 12/16 

1 ARAMBULA, AMY Dec 2024 31st Assembly District           

2 BAINES, OLIVER Dec 2024 16th Congressional District           

3 BONNER, ALYSIA Dec.2024 Target Area F           

4 BROWN, EARL Dec 2024 Target Area G           

5 BROWN-JENKINS, ZINA Dec 2024 Head Start CWPC           

6 GARABEDIAN, CHARLES Dec 2023 Board of Supervisors           

7 HAYES, LINDA R. Dec 2024 Target Area H           

8 JAIME-MILEHAM, LUPE Dec 2024 FCSS           

9 KING BRIAN Dec 2025 Mayor’s Appointment           

10 LEON, REY Dec 2024 Target Area B           

11 MARTINEZ, DANIEL Dec 2025 Target Area D           

12 MARTINEZ, JAMES  Dec 2025 Fresno Reel Pride           

13 MARTINEZ, LUIS Dec 2025 14th Senatorial District           

14 MCALISTER, BRUCE  Dec 2025 West Fresno Faith Based Organization           

15 MCCOY, BARIGYE  Dec 2024 Board of Supervisors           

16 MITCHELL, LISA Dec 2025 Target Area E            

17 PACHECO, ALENA Dec 2025 Target Area A           

18 PARRA, DANIEL  Dec 2024 Target Area C           

19 PIMENTEL, ROBERT  Dec 2025 SCCCD           

20 RODGERS, JIMI Dec 2025 Association of Black Social Workers           

21 RUIZ, DAVID  Dec 2024 Juvenile Court           

22 ROMERO, MANUEL  Dec 2025 Central La Familia Advocacy Services           

23 TAYLOR, STEVEN Dec 2024 NAACP           

24 VACANT Dec 2024 Economic Development Corp.           

                       Present = O             = 1 absent             

                       Absent = X    = 2 absent            

                      Teleconference = T  = 3 absent            

 
It is the Commissioner’s responsibility to check the matrix, verify accuracy and inform the Secretary or designee if any changes are needed. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

December 7, 2023 at 5:00 PM 
3110 W. Nielson Conference Room  

Fresno, CA 93706 
  

MINUTES  
  

1.  CALL TO ORDER AND COMMUNITY ACTION PROMISE:  
Linda Hayes, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:09 P.M. 
 

2.  ROLL CALL 
Present: Amy Arambula, Oliver Baines, Alysia Bonner, Earl Brown, Zina Brown-Jenkins, Charles 
Garabedian, Linda Hayes, Lupe Jaime-Mileham, Brian King, Rey Leon, James Martinez, Bruce 
McAlister, Lisa Mitchell, Alena Pacheco, Daniel Parra, Robert Pimentel, Itzi Robles, Jimi Rodger, Steven 
Taylor, and Ruben Zarate. 

 
Teleconference: N/A 

 
Absent: Daniel Martinez, Barigye McCoy, Sherry Neil, and David Ruiz.  
 

3.  ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

4.  POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

5.  CLOSED SESSION  
 
The governing board conducts a performance appraisal of the CEO within each calendar year per 
CSBG Organizational Standard, Category 7, Standard 7.4. 
 
Ken Price, Legal Counsel, had no action to report out of closed session. 
 
No action required. 
 

6.  CEO COMPENSATION   

A. Consideration of compensation recommendation from CEO performance and compensation ad hoc 

committee.     

 

The Board of Commissioners is required to review and approve the CEO's compensation during each 
calendar year per CSBG Organizational Standards, Category 7, Standard 7.5.  
 
After a comprehensive review, the appointed ad hoc committee recommends a 7.5% adjustment to the 
CEO's compensation, an increase to her base salary to $227,862.  Moreover, the committee 
recommends the agency to fund the CEO's health savings account.   
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Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Baines Second by: Parra  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 

7.  APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 5, 2023 MINUTES 
A. October 5, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Leon  Second by: McAlister  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 

8.  COMMISSIONERS APPRECIATION  
 
Chair Hayes, thanked the following previous Commissioners for their years of services as Fresno EOC 
Board members: Itzi Robles and Ruben Zarate and provided them with an appreciation plaque.  
 

Public Comment: None heard. 
 

No action required. 
 

9.  FINANCIAL REPORTS 
A. Agency Financial and Head Start Financial Status Report September 2023 
 
Jay Zapata, Chief Financial Officer, presented a detailed report of the Agency Financial statements and 
the Head Start Financial Status Report as of Year-to-Date for September 2023.  
 
Commissioner Garabedian stated to be in compliance with the CSBG Standards Category 8, Standard 
8.7 the Board of Commissioners will receive financial reports updates at each regular Board meetings.  
 

Public Comment: None heard. 
 

Motion by: Leon Second by: J. Martinez    
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 

10.  2024 CSBG BUDGET  
 
Zapata, provided a detailed overview of the proposed 2024 CSBG Budget, itemizing the funds for the 
Agency’s Focus Area and the Strategic Goals & Objectives.  
 
Commissioner Arambula inquired about the possibility of providing an update mid-year of unspent funds 
and allocating funds towards CAP60. Emilia Reyes, Chief Executive Officer, stated an updated will be 
provided mid-year at the Executive Committee Meeting to reallocate funds towards CAP60.  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Bonner Second by: Leon   
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
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11.  PROGRAM DASHBOARD AND IMPACT REPORT   
A. School Of Unlimited Learning (SOUL) 
 
Susan Lopez, School of Unlimited Learning Principal, provided a detailed CAP60 preview Data 
Visualization Dashboard of SOUL’s 2022/2023 School Year and the Impact Report.  
 
Commissioner Jaime-Mileham inquired about the Dashboard database received and the outcomes. 
Lopez stated the database received gives the program a better insight of what services students and 
families are needing for the students to be successful.  
 
Commissioner Jaime-Mileham and Arambula continue in further discussion of additional features the 
database should capture.  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

12.  2023-2025 STRATEGIC PLAN YEAR-ONE  
 
Reyes and Michelle L. Tutunjian, Chief Operating Officer/Deputy CEO, provided an overview and 
highlighted the 2023-2025 Strategic Plan and the 2024 & Beyond Plan.   
 
Tutunjian provides a detailed overview of the following three (3) Strategic Objectives:  

 Effective Program and Services  

 Community Responsive Agency  

 Advocacy for Poverty Reduction Policy  
 
Reyes announced she has applied to become a Certified Community Action Professional (CCAP). As 
well as the Community Action 60 Years anniversary celebrating taking place on May 1, 2024, in 
Sacramento.   
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
No action required. 
 

13. ]
I 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  
Any Commissioner may pull any Consent Item for discussion or separate vote. 
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Leon Second by: Garabedian    
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
. 
APPROVAL OF PULLED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
13A6 Access Plus Capital Transition Report 
Commissioner Garabedian inquired about an update on the Access Plus Capital Transition Report. 
Reyes referred to legal counsel Price for guidance to confirm not disclosing of any potential litigation.  
Price stated he is actively working with Acccess Plus Capital and EPlus counsel to resolve transition 
issues. Zapata provides a brief update on the financials that are currently active.  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 
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Motion by: Bonner Second by: Leon   
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 
13E3 Excessive Absences Policy 

Price provided a brief overview of the Excessive Absences Policy changes affecting 
Commissioners with three (3) or more absences.  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Arambula Second by: Garabedian  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 
13F4 Cost of Living Adjustment  

Nelson Dibie, Human Resources Officer, provided a brief overview of the Cost-of-Living Adjustment 
in the amount of 4.7%, for qualified employees to receive.  
 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Bonner Second by: Garabedian  
Ayes: All in favor.  
Nayes: None heard. 
 

14.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
Jon Escobar, Food Services Director, shared with Commissioners and staff the Winter Bus Express Bus 
scheduled that is taking place from December 19, 2023, through January 5, 2024.  
 
Public Comment: None heard.  

 
No action required. 
 

15.  COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENT  
 
Commissioner Garabedian wishes Commissioners and Staff a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year 
and will not be present at the January 22, 2024, Board Meeting.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell congratulated Shawn Riggins, Local Conservation Corps Director and staff, for 
the amazing Halloween Safe Night Event that took place on October 31, 2023.  
 
Commissioner Leon shared that he attended the SAVA Sacramento Academic & Vocational Academy 
event in Sacramento on how to transform lowriders into an electric vehicle.  
 
Chair Hayes, wishes Commissioners and Staff a Merry Christmas.  
 
No action required. 
 

16.  NEXT MEETING:  
Monday, January 22, 2024 at 5:30PM at the Board Room  
 

17.  ADJOURNMENT 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: N/A 

Agenda Item #: 6 Director: N/A 

Subject: Seating of Commissioners Officer: Emilia Reyes  

 

Recommended Action 

The Bylaws Committee recommends ratification of the following Target Area Election 
results, Community Sector nominations and Public Official Appointments, commencing 
on January 1, 2024 for a two- year term.   

Background 

Public Official Appointments Appointing Body 

Brian King  Mayor’s Jerry Dyer Appointee  

Robert Pimentel  State Center Community College District 

Luis Martinez  14th Senatorial District  

 

* Agency is pending appointment letter from Board of Supervisors  
 

Community Sector  
James Martinez  Fresno Reel Pride  
Bruce McAllister   West Fresno Faith Based Organization 
Jimi Rodgers Association of Black Social Workers 
Manuel Romero Centro La Familia Advocacy Services 

*Agency is pending replacement appointment from Fresno County Economic Development 
Corporation 
 

Target Sector 

Alena Pacheco Target Area A 

Daniel Martinez Target Area D 

Lisa Mitchell Target Area E 

 
Fiscal Impact 

Action on this agenda item will have no fiscal impact.  

Conclusion 

If approved by the Board, Commissioners term will be effective January 1, 2024.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: N/A 

Agenda Item #: 7 Director: N/A 

Subject: Introduction of New 
Commissioners  

Officer: Emilia Reyes  

 

Background 

The following Commissioners are new to the Fresno EOC Board and will have an 
opportunity to formally introduce themselves and share a bit of their background and 
goals for serving on the Board.  

 

Manuel Romero : Community Sector  

“I have dedicated my life to helping the poor and serving on the EOG Board will be a 

tremendous opportunity to put my experience, both work and personal, to work on 

behalf of EOC's client population. I am the son of migrant farmworkers, the third 

youngest in a family of 10 children, raised in Lamont, a small farmworker community in 

Kern County. I am fluently bilingual in English/Spanish and a strong advocate with 

excellent communication skills. I strongly support EOC's programs, and it would be an 

honor to represent Centro and serve alongside EOC's dedicated board members.” 

 Luis Martinez: Public Sector  

“I believe this would be a great opportunity to help my community advance in positive 
ways and have an input on programs and services provided by Fresno EOC.” 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: N/A 

Agenda Item #: 8 Director: N/A 

Subject: Annual Election of Officers   Legal Counsel: Ken Price   

 

Recommended Action 

The recommendation is to nominate and approve Commission Officer positions of 
Chair, Vice Chair, and Treasurer.  

Background 

Per the agency’s Bylaws, the Officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair, Vice 
Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected from the members of the 
Commission with the exception that the CEO shall be appointed to serve as Secretary. 

Officers shall be elected to serve until the next annual meeting of the Commission or 
until their successors shall have been elected and qualify. No Commissioner shall hold 
more than one office at the same time. 

The agency’s current Bylaws state the duties and powers of the Officers are as follows:  

Chair shall: (1) be the chief volunteer officer of the Corporation, subject to the direction 
and control of the Board; (2) preside at meetings of the Board of Commissioners; (3) 
appoint the members of standing and of such special Committees with the approval of 
the Commission; (4) be ex-officio a member of all Committees; and (5) perform such 
other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Commissioners may 
determine from time to time. The Chair may vote on any matter before the Commission. 
The Chair shall be counted to determine the existence of a quorum. 
 
Vice Chair. In the absence of the Chair or the Chair’s inability or refusal to act, the Vice 
Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair and shall perform such other duties as the 
Commission may, from time to time, designate. 
 
Treasurer shall: (1) oversee the Corporation’s financial management practices, subject 
to the direction and control of the Board; (2) ensure that the Commissioners understand 
the financial situation of the Corporation (including ensuring that financial statements for 
each month are available for each meeting of the Board of Commissioners and are kept 
on file at the Corporation’s principal office); (3) serve as Chair of the Finance 
Committee; (4) serve as an Authorized Check Signatory when the Chair is unavailable; 
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and (5) perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of 
Commissioners may determine from time to time. 
 

Fiscal Impact 

Action on this agenda item will have no fiscal impact.  

Conclusion 

Once elected and approved by the Board, Officers will serve for a 12-month period. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: N/A 

Agenda Item #: 9 Director: N/A 

Subject: 2024 Signatory Authorization 
Resolution 

Officer: Emilia Reyes  

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the 2024 Signatory Authorization Resolution to 
accurately reflect the agency’s Board Chair, and Vice Chair representatives.    

Background 

On an annual basis, the Board adopts a Signatory Resolution where it authorizes the 
Board of Commissioners the ability to designate on its behalf appropriate staff members 
to bind the agency.  

On January 22, 2024, the Board will nominate and approve Commission Officer 
positions which includes the Board Chair and Vice Chair.  

Fiscal Impact 

With this recommendation, the authorized signatures will have the ability to execute any 
and all contracts and transactions deemed appropriate to fulfill the program operations 
of the agency. 

Conclusion 

If the Board approves, the Signatory Authorization Resolution will be updated to reflect 
the Board’s Chair and Vice Chair representatives to be effective January 22, 2024.   
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AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission is a private, nonprofit 
corporation, organized under Part 1, of Division 2, of Title 1, of the 
Corporations Code of the State of California, August 20, 1965; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fresno Economic Opportunities 
Commission is vested with the authority to execute any and all contracts and 
transactions it deems appropriate to the mission of the agency; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to designate in its 
behalf officers and agents duly entitiled to bind the corporation to any and all 
contracts and transactions;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of 
Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission on this, the 22nd of January 
2024, hereby authorizes the Chairperson, Vice-Chair of the Board, Secretary 
of the Board/Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Operating Officer/Deputy CEO, 
to sign all grants, contracts and amendments, program documentation, fiscal 
documents, including loans, reports, and all other required documents 
necessary in fulfilling the program operations of the agency.  

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES:   
   

NAME, Board Chair   Emilia Reyes, Board Secretary/Chief Executive 
Officer  

NAME, Board Vice Chair  Michelle Tutunjian, Chief Operating Officer/Deputy 
CEO 

   
Approved at the meeting of the Board of Commissioners on January 22, 2024 and effective as of January 22, 
2024. 
 
Ayes ______  Nayes ______  Absent ______   Attest ______ 

______________________________________ 
 
 

Emilia Reyes, Board Secretary   
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: School of Unlimited Learning  

Agenda Item #: 10 Director: Susan Lopez 

Subject: Transforming and Inspiring   Officer: Jack Lazzarini  

 

Background 

The information presented in this item is intended to keep the Board apprised of the 
Strategic Program Progress Report Year 1 for the 2022-2023 School Year, as well as 
highlight the clients we serve.  

The focus of SOUL is to provide a comprehensive and fully accredited learning 
experience to the youth of Fresno. SOUL strives to offer an excellent educational option 
for those seeking a small school alternative to a large, traditional high school. It 
currently offers both classroom-based and independent study options for learning. 
Classroom-based students attend school daily while independent study students must 
attend a minimum of 1.5-hour long on-site sessions once a week, in addition to their 
remote curriculum, and can come in more often, as desired. All students receive case 
management assistance to assist them to overcome obstacles that may have previously 
hindered their education.  
 
The strategic progress report highlights the poverty conditions the program sought to 
address, the methods used to address these poverty conditions, and the ways in which 
the program partnered with communities to build pathways out of poverty.  

Participants in tonight's presentation include graduates from the Class of 2023 and a 
parent of a graduate.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Finance  
Agenda Item #: 11 Director: Steve Warnes 
Subject: Agency Financial and Head 
Start Financial Status Report October 
2023 

Officer: Jay Zapata 

 
Recommended Action 

The Finance Committee recommends acceptance for full Board consideration of the 
interim consolidated financial statements as of October 31, 2023, Agency and Head 
Start.  
 
CSBG Organizational Standard  
 
The governing board receives financial reports at each regular meeting that include the 
following per Category 8, Standard 8.7:  

1. Organization-wide report on revenue and expenditures that compares budget to 
actual, categorized by program; and  

2. Balance sheet/statement of financial position. 
 

Background 

In accordance with the Agency’s bylaws, the Finance Committee shall advise in the 
preparation and administration of the operating budget and oversee the administration, 
collection, and disbursement of the financial resources of the organization.  Additionally, 
the Treasurer is to ensure the commissioners understand the financial situation of the 
organization, which includes ensuring that financial statements for each month are 
available for each meeting of the Board of Commissioners.  Monthly financials for Fresno 
EOC (consolidated) and for Head Start are provided for review and acceptance. 
 

Fiscal Impact 

(A) Agency Statement of Activities and Statement of Financial Position: 
 
As of October 31, 2023, the Agency had preliminary revenue of $137,951,919 
million, including $39.5 million of in-kind contributions, and net operating loss 
of $3,073,132. In comparison, the Agency had revenue of $119,183,246 million 
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including in-kind of $34.0 million as of the corresponding period of the 
preceding year. 

(B) Head Start 0-5 Financial Status Report as of Year-to-Date October 31, 2023 
  
This also represented in the following percentages.  

 
 

 
Program Area 

% of 
budget 

 
Notes 

Head Start – Basic   74%  
Head Start – Training & Technical 
Assistance (T&TA) 

49% Additional Training planned 
for Q1 2024 

   
   

 
Program Area 

% of 
budget 

 
Notes 

Early Head Start – Basic  68%  
Early Head Start – T&TA 25% Additional Training planned 

for Q1 2024 
 

Conclusion 

Acceptance of these financials by the Board documents the Board’s oversight over the 
financial operations of Fresno EOC. This is part of the Board’s fiduciary duty. 
.  
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Unaudited - For Internal Use Only.

A B A - B C D B - D
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

JAN - DEC BALANCE JAN - DEC OCTOBER 2023 vs 2022

2023 REMAINING 2022 2022 Differences

REVENUES AND SUPPORT  
GRANT REVENUE 105,694,129$    72,677,157$    69% 33,016,972$    79,753,909 63,133,908$        9,543,248       
GRANT REVENUE - LENDING CAPITAL -                         -                       -                       0 -                            -                      
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 22,652,580 21,051,167      93% 1,601,413 21,276,472 17,656,661           3,394,506       
OTHER PROGRAM REVENUE 4,998,245 2,469,491        49% 2,528,755 3,459,716 2,880,214             (410,724)        
CONTRIBUTIONS 384,300 100,976           26% 283,324 209,416 167,047                (66,071)          
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 759,253 904,306           119% (145,053) 165,604 138,002                766,304          
INTEREST & INVESTMENT INCOME 106,000 117,642           111% (11,642) 53,391 26,065                  91,577            
AFFILIATE INTEREST INCOME 765,250             756,052           99% 9,198 1,172,129 845,741                (89,689)          
RENTAL INCOME 265,843 322,774           121% (56,931) 385,663 334,774                (12,000)          

TOTAL CASH REVENUE 135,625,600$    98,399,565$    73% 37,226,035$    106,476,300$  85,182,413$        13,217,152    
IN KIND REVENUE 39,637,875$      39,552,354$    100% 85,521$           41,533,588 34,000,833$        5,551,522       

TOTAL REVENUE & SUPPORT 175,263,475      137,951,919    79% 37,311,556 148,009,888    119,183,246        18,768,673    

EXPENDITURES
PERSONNEL COSTS 75,447,335$      58,540,989$    78% $16,906,346 66,070,751 53,129,836$        5,411,153       
ADMIN SERVICES 8,056,855 6,405,491 80% 1,651,364 6,637,808 4,983,037 1,422,454       
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - AUDIT 0 0 0% 0 0 0 -                      
CONTRACT SERVICES 11,711,120 9,239,885        79% 2,471,235 10,718,245 8,453,839             786,046          
FACILITY COSTS 5,770,460 5,412,904        94% 357,556 6,096,789 4,930,496             482,408          
TRAVEL, MILEAGE, VEHICLE COSTS 4,737,815 2,780,146        59% 1,957,669 3,070,704 2,617,886             162,260          
EQUIPMENT COSTS 973,690 1,992,313        205% (1,018,623) 1,408,467 1,268,212             724,101          
DEPRECIATION - AGENCY FUNDED 296,000 245,711           83% 50,289 277,232 227,892                17,819            
OFFICE EXPENSE 3,199,720 3,575,549        112% (375,829) 3,448,422 2,657,400             918,148          
INSURANCE 660,930 815,214           123% (154,284) 809,767 673,584                141,630          
PROGRAM SUPPLIES & CLIENT COSTS 23,493,815 11,529,657      49% 11,964,158 9,088,124 7,405,833             4,123,823       
INTEREST EXPENSE 458,096 367,528           80% 90,568 446,995 327,244                40,284            
OTHER COSTS 638,159 394,515           62% 243,645 1,389,254 1,120,349             (725,835)        

TOTAL CASH EXPENDITURES 135,443,995$    101,299,900$  75% 34,144,095$    109,462,558 87,795,607$        13,504,293    
IN KIND EXPENSES 39,637,875$      39,552,354$    100% 85,521$           41,533,588$    34,000,833$        5,551,522       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 175,081,870      140,852,254    80% 34,229,616      150,996,146    121,796,440        19,055,814    

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 181,605$           (2,900,336)$     3,081,941$      (2,986,258)$     (2,613,194)$         (287,141)        

OTHER INCOME / EXPENSE
TRANSIT GRANT ASSET DEPRECIATION 172,796           (172,796)          211,983 176,652                (3,856)            

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 181,605$           ($3,073,132) 3,254,737        (3,198,241)$     ($2,789,847) (283,285)        

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Ten Month Period Ended October 31, 2023 and 2022

ACTUAL

2023
OCTOBER
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Unaudited - For Internal Use Only.

2023 2022 Differences
ASSETS

CASH & INVESTMENTS 12,533,147$          19,914,587$          (7,381,440)$         
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18,715,867 15,588,921 3,126,946
PREPAIDS/DEPOSITS 722,534 315,987 406,547
INVENTORIES 462,244 343,155 119,090
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 14,802,585 12,444,910 2,357,675
NOTES RECEIVABLE (net) 19,320,477 16,621,099 2,699,377

TOTAL ASSETS 66,556,854$          65,228,659$          1,328,195$          

LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 4,886,556$            4,145,694$            740,862$             
ACCRUED PAYROLL LIABILITIES 6,942,496.11 4,480,851 2,461,645
DEFERRED REVENUE 3,423,068 3,200,931 222,137
NOTES PAYABLE 15,122,558 16,981,401 (1,858,843)
HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE 6,999,467 5,258,969 1,740,498
OTHER LIABILITIES 4,119,549 4,235,805 (116,256)

TOTAL LIABILITIES 41,493,695$          38,303,652$          3,190,044$          

FUND BALANCE
CURRENT OPERATING EARNINGS (YTD) (2,900,336)$           (2,613,194)$          (287,141)$            
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 17,194,767 20,187,540 (2,992,774)
REVOLVING LOAN FUND 556,268 556,268 0
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 10,212,460 8,794,392 1,418,067

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 25,063,159$          26,925,006$          (1,861,847)$         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 66,556,854$          65,228,659$          1,328,195$          

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of October 31, 2023
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission
Head Start/Early Head Start Financial Status
Monthly Report
October 31, 2023

Description Annual Budget Current Expenses
YTD Expenses

Balance Remaining
Annual 
Budget

Current 
Expenses

YTD Expenses Balance 
Remaining

Personnel $17,232,920 $2,483,534 $13,344,572 $3,888,348
Fringe Benefits 7,582,485            649,910              4,686,148           2,896,337                     
Total Personnel $24,815,405 $3,133,444 $18,030,720 $6,784,685

Travel -                          -                         -                         -                                  12,928       -                 -                      12,928          

Equipment* -                          -                         -                         -                                  -                -                 -                      -                   

Supplies 728,136               63,920                496,224              231,912                       25,000       -                 4,984               20,016          
-                         

Contractual 2,090,268            327,214              2,376,988           (286,720)                      15,948       -                 10,188             5,761            

Facilities /Construction

Other:
     Food Cost 776,852               199,092 743,889 32,963                         
     Transportation 547,215               44,796                300,580              246,635                       
     Staff Mileage 100,000               13,605                106,204              (6,204)                          
     Field Trips, including Transportation 3,201                   2,152                  5,605                  (2,404)                          
     Space 1,211,912            43,764                456,424              755,488                       
     Utilities / Telephone / Internet 843,052               95,872                774,785              68,267                         

Publication/Advertising/Printing 54,991                 -                         110                     54,881                         
     Repair/Maintenance Building 408,572               12,265                208,953              199,619                       
     Repair/Maintenance Equipment 8,654                   7,533                  34,710                (26,056)                        
     Property & Liability Insurance 72,108                 17,904                166,276              (94,168)                        

     Parent Involvement / CWPC 49,000                 2,083                  21,543                27,457                         

     Other Costs* 240,460               -                         142,688              97,772                         

    Staff & Parent Training 3,091                   -                         418                     2,673                           237,568     4,184          187,135           50,433          

Total Direct Charges $31,952,917 $3,963,644 $23,866,116 $8,086,801 291,444    4,184         202,306         89,138        

Total Indirect Charges $3,106,182 $357,814 $2,147,950 $958,232 $32,383 $377 $18,208 $14,175

Total Federal Expenditures $35,059,099 $4,321,458 $26,014,066 $9,045,033 $323,827 4,561         220,514         $103,313
% of Annual Budget Expended to Date 74% 68%

Non-Federal Share $7,011,820 $488,762 $4,269,118 $2,742,702 $64,765 $1,140 $55,128 $9,637
61%

*Other Costs Include: Credit Card Expenses: Credit card statement dated 10/1/23-10/31/23
FIRST AID (INCLUDES WORKERS COMP) October 2023 expenses:
PROPERTY TAXES 3,075$                  The Palomino - Town Hall Staff Meeting
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-SPECIAL 591$                     Target - Toiletries for Children with Special Needs
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 88$                       Fresno Chaffee Zoo - Entry Fees W. County Home Base 
SUBSCRIPTION EXPENSE 359$                     Simonian Farms - Pumpkins
POSTAGE/EXPRESS MAIL 4,113$              
DUES - ORGANIZATIONS
FINGERPRINTING / BACKGROUND CHECK
RECRUITMENT
MEETING COSTS - INTERNAL
PROGRAM - MISCELLANEOUS
TRAINING OTHER
EMPLOYEE EVENT
RECOGNITION
SAFETY

Head Start - Basic Head Start - T & TA

Field Trips
Field Trips

Meeting Costs - Internal
Program Supplies - Disposables
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission
Head Start/Early Head Start Financial Status
Monthly Report
October 31, 2023

Description
Personnel
Fringe Benefits
Total Personnel

Travel

Equipment*

Supplies

Contractual

Facilities /Construction

Other:
     Food Cost
     Transportation
     Staff Mileage
     Field Trips, including Transportation
     Space
     Utilities / Telephone / Internet

Publication/Advertising/Printing
     Repair/Maintenance Building
     Repair/Maintenance Equipment
     Property & Liability Insurance

     Parent Involvement / CWPC

     Other Costs*

    Staff & Parent Training 

Total Direct Charges

Total Indirect Charges

Total Federal Expenditures 
% of Annual Budget Expended to Date

Non-Federal Share

*Other Costs Include:
FIRST AID (INCLUDES WORKERS COMP)
PROPERTY TAXES
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE-SPECIAL
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
SUBSCRIPTION EXPENSE
POSTAGE/EXPRESS MAIL
DUES - ORGANIZATIONS
FINGERPRINTING / BACKGROUND CHECK
RECRUITMENT
MEETING COSTS - INTERNAL
PROGRAM - MISCELLANEOUS
TRAINING OTHER
EMPLOYEE EVENT
RECOGNITION
SAFETY

Annual Budget Current Expenses
YTD Expenses Balance 

Remaining
Annual 
Budget

Current 
Expenses

YTD Expenses Balance 
Remaining

$3,655,192 $395,622 $2,164,991 $1,490,201 $0 $0 $0 $0
1,608,284          86,446                607,381             1,000,903      -                   $0 $0 -                   

5,263,476        482,069             2,772,372        2,491,104    -                  -                    -                    -                  

-                       -                         -                       -                    16,898          -                     -                     16,898          

-                       -                         -                       -                    -                   -                     -                     -                   

242,877             72,847                182,965             59,912           33,488          -                     1,084              32,404          

875,297             17,993                197,906             677,391         26,526          -                     -                     26,526          

-                       -                         -                       -                    

50,000               5,266 21,777 28,223           
9,536                831                     8,270                1,266             

25,000               4,866                  35,324              (10,324)          
1,730                -                         -                       1,730             

84,678               7,668                  53,998              30,680           
151,060             8,948                  96,859              54,201           

1,500                -                         24                     1,476             
230,781             1,570                  20,457              210,324         
21,223               263                     692                   20,531           
24,009               2,384                  21,697              2,312             

18,628               207                     3,294                15,334           

39,344               -                         33,568              5,776             

2,277                -                         95                     2,182             96,459          99                  43,110            53,349          

7,041,416        604,913             3,449,299        3,592,117    173,371       99                 44,194          $129,177

$703,982 $54,684 $310,437 $393,545 $15,906 $8 $3,977 $11,929

$7,745,398 659,597             $3,759,736 $3,985,662 $189,277 107               $48,171 $141,106
49% 25%

$1,549,080 $38,016 $1,083,724 $465,356 $37,855 $27 $12,043 $35,276
70%

Credit Card Expenses: Credit card statement dated 10/1/23-10/31/23
October 2023 expenses:

675$                   The Palomino - Town Hall Staff Meeting
Staff Training 85$                     Alert Medical Training - CCL Required Training - Preventative Health & Safety 
Staff Training 5$                       CPS HR Consulting - CCL Required Training - Record Keeping

765$                

Early Head Start - Basic Early Head Start - T & TA 

Meeting Costs - Internal
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #: 12 Director: Steve Warnes 

Subject: 2024 Agency Budget Officer: Jay Zapata 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends Board approval of the 2024 consolidated agency budget. 

Background 

As a matter of best practice, the Agency’s consolidated annual budget is brought to the 
Board for approval.  This 2024 agency budget is incorporated into the monthly financial 
reports to assist with monitoring and review of the actual to budget status. 

Fiscal Impact 

The consolidated annual budget presented is comprised of several sources of revenue 
of approximately $122,803,000 and operating expenses of approximately $122,693,000 
resulting in a minor net surplus of $110,000.  In addition, there is budgeted amount of 
In-Kind Revenue of approximately $34,000,000. 

A detail budget and presentation will be provided on the day of the meeting.  
 

Conclusion 

If approved by the Board, this Budget will be used in conjunction with the interim 
financial statements to keep the Board appraised on the agency’s financial position. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 20204 Program: Human Resources   
Agenda Item #: 13 Director: N/A 
Subject: Employee Political & Advocacy 
Activities Policy  

Officer: Nelson Dibie   

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends review and approval of the Employee Political & Advocacy Activities 
Policy to be included in the Fresno EOC Employee Manual.   

Background 

There are various federal and state requirements limiting the use of public resources for 
various types of electioneering and related advocacy. In response, general counsel, 
Kenneth Price, prepared the attached summary document describing what Fresno EOC 
employees and commissioners may and may not do in order to comply with these laws 
along with applicable citations.  Additionally, Fresno EOC employment counsel Paul 
Bauer converted this document to be included in the agency's employee handbook. 

This policy does not expand or contradict federal or state law regarding electioneering 
and advocacy.  Employees may vote for or against any ballot measure or candidate 
they prefer.  Employees may also contribute or endorse any candidate or ballot 
measure they wish.  However, they may not express or imply that they represent Fresno 
EOC in may such an endorsement.  Moreover, campaigning for candidates or ballot 
measures must occur during the employee's own time and not while on-duty for the 
agency.  Lastly, Fresno EOC resources may not be used to advocate for candidates, 
ballot measurers or legislation. The Board of Commissioners may endorse a ballot 
measure but agency resources may not be used to campaign for such measure.  

Alignment with agency’s mission & vision:  This policy complies with applicable federal 
and state laws.   

Fiscal Impact 

Action on this agenda item will have no fiscal impact.  

Conclusion 

If approved by the Board, the Employee Political & Advocacy Activities Policy will be 
effective January 23, 2024.   
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3416224v1 / 22466.0002  
#3416224v1<DMS> - EMPLOYEE POLITICAL AND ADVOCACY ACTIVITIES Final 

PURPOSE: To provide employees with guidelines for political and advocacy activities. 
 
POLICY: It is the policy of Fresno EOC to encourage its employees to be civically engaged and 
involved in their community.  These activities must be done within certain parameters. As a 
Community Action Agency, all employees must comply with political activity prohibitions 
applicable under the CSBG and Head Start Acts.   
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
Permissible Activities: The following are guidelines employees shall follow for common civil 
engagements and community activities they may participate in: 
 
Voting: Acting in their personal capacities, employees may exercise their right to vote for or 
against any particular ballot measure or candidate. Employees may of course elect not to vote 
too.  Employees should be guided by their own judgment and conscience in voting for or against 
ballot measures or candidates. Employees may vote for any candidate of their choice, including 
voting for or against a current incumbent. Employees may also vote against a ballot measure 
even if it is officially supported by Fresno EOC Board of Commissioners. 
 
Contributions: Acting in their personal capacities, employees may contribute to political 
campaigns, whether in support of or opposition to ballot measures or candidates. 
 
Endorsements: Employees may personally endorse candidates or ballot initiatives. They may 
not, however, make any express or implied statement suggesting that they represent Fresno EOC 
in that endorsement. The Board of Commissioners as a body, however, may take action to 
endorse any initiative or legislation. However, no staff time, other than to investigate the 
initiative, may be used to support or promote the initiative or legislation.  The Board of 
Commissioners as a body may not endorse any candidate. 
 
Other Off-Duty Advocacy Activities: Acting in their off-duty, individual capacities, employees 
may engage in any lawful political activities. Lawful political activities include such things as 
attending a political rally, participating in a campaign committee, phone banking, doing 
campaign-related work, posting campaign signs, registering voters, or advocating for a 
contribution or vote for or against a candidate or ballot measure. 
 
Fresno EOC hourly (non-exempt) employees are considered to be “off-duty” before the 
commencement of, or at the end of, any standard or overtime hours in their shift or that they are 
otherwise required to work. Salaried (exempt) employees who do not have a regular shift or 
hours are considered to be “off duty” before and after normal business hours, except when an 
employee is acting as a representative of Fresno EOC outside normal business hours. All 
employees are considered to be “off-duty” when they are on their approved meal period or rest 
breaks; on vacation, have taken an administrative day, or during a public holiday and 
documented with supervisor’s approval.  
 
Impermissible Activities: The following are guidelines employees shall follow for common 
civil engagements and community they should not participate in: 
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3416224v1 / 22466.0002  
#3416224v1<DMS> - EMPLOYEE POLITICAL AND ADVOCACY ACTIVITIES Final 

 
 
Political Activities During Work Hours: Employees may not engage in political activities 
during work hours. 
 
Political Activities on Fresno EOC Property: Employees may not engage in political activities 
on Fresno EOC property whether or not they are “off duty” as  reflected in the employee's 
timesheets or the Fresno EOC calendar, as applicable.   
 
Use Fresno EOC Funds or Resources to Advocate: Employees may not use Fresno EOC funds 
or resources to advocate a partisan position or otherwise use Fresno EOC funds or resources to 
support personal political activities. 
 
Solicitation of Campaign Contributions: Employees may not knowingly, directly or indirectly, 
solicit any contribution or donation for a political campaign from any Fresno EOC 
commissioner, employee, or contractor.  However, an employee of Fresno EOC, or a candidate 
for elective office in a local agency, is not prohibited from requesting political contributions 
from commissioners or employees of Fresno EOC so long as the solicitation is part of a 
solicitation made to a significant segment of the public (i.e. a mass mailing), which may happen 
to include officers or employees of Fresno EOC, and such solicitations are made during off-duty 
hours and do not use agency resources.  

 
Use Position to Influence: Employees may not use the authority or influence of their official 
positions to persuade or induce any Fresno EOC commissioner, employee, or contractor to take 
or refrain from taking any type of political action. 
 
Make Promises: Employees may not promise to provide any person with a gift, money, 
promotion, job, or other form of compensation in return for a contribution or vote. 
 
Using Fresno EOC Resources for Personal Advocacy: Employees may not advocate personal 
political positions by using Fresno EOC resources, including Fresno EOC email, phones, copiers, 
and other resources to advocate political positions such candidate, ballot measure, and legislative 
endorsements.  . Moreover, Fresno EOC employees shall not permit third-parties to use Fresno 
EOC resources for electioneering. 
 
Any Fresno EOC employee with any questions regarding permissible campaign activity or 
personal advocacy should contact their direct supervisor or the Chief Executive Officer. 
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EMPLOYEE POLITICAL AND ADVOCACY ACTIVITIES 
 
WHAT EMPLOYEES MAY DO 
 
Voting 
Acting in their personal capacities, employees may exercise their right to vote for or against any 
particular ballot measure or candidate. Employees should be guided by their own judgment and 
conscience in voting for or against ballot measures or candidates.1 Employees may vote for any 
candidate of their choice, including voting for or against a current incumbent. Employees may 
also vote against a ballot measure even if it is officially supported by Fresno EOC Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Contributions 
Acting in their personal capacities, employees may contribute to political campaigns, whether in 
support of or opposition to ballot measures or candidates. 
 
Endorsements 
Employees may personally endorse candidates or ballot initiatives. They may not, however, 
make any statement suggesting that they represent Fresno EOC in that endorsement. The Board 
of Commissioners as a body, however, may take action to endorse any initiative or legislation. 
However, no staff time, other than to investigate the initiative, may be used to support or 
promote the initiative or legislation.  The Board of Commissioners as a body may not endorse 
any candidate. 
 
Other Off-Duty Advocacy Activities 
Acting in their off-duty, individual capacities, employees may engage in any lawful political 
activities.2 Lawful political activities include such things as attending a political rally, 
participating in a campaign committee, sitting on a phone bank, doing campaign-related work, 
posting campaign signs, registering voters, or advocating for a contribution or vote for or against 
a candidate or ballot measure. 
 
When is an employee “off-duty”?: Fresno EOC hourly (non-exempt) employees are considered 
to be “off-duty” before the commencement of, or at the end of, any standard or overtime hours in 
their shift or that they are otherwise required to work. Salaried (exempt) employees who do not 
have a regular shift or hours are considered to be “off duty” before and after normal business 
hours, except when an employee is acting as a representative of Fresno EOC outside normal 
business hours. All employees are considered to be “off-duty” when they are on their approved 
lunch break or when they are on vacation, have taken an administrative day, or during a public 
holiday and documented with supervisor’s approval 
 
 
 
 

 
1 Fort v. Civil Service Comm. (1964) 61 Cal.2d 331, 334. 
2 Id.; Bagley v. Washington Tp. Hospital Dist. (1966) 65 Cal.2d 499, 509-510; see also Gov. Code §§ 3201, 3203.   
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WHAT EMPLOYEES MAY NOT DO 
 
Political Activities During Work Hours 
Employees may not engage in political activities during work hours. 
 Examples of Conduct Prohibited During Work Hours: 
• Employees may not distribute political pamphlets, flyers, or other materials, or post 

political signs while on duty. 
• Employees may not attend campaign meetings, rallies, or other campaign-related 

functions while on duty. 
• Employees may not make campaign telephone calls while on duty. 
• Employees may not perform any other campaign related tasks while on duty. This would 

include making copies, stuffing envelopes, writing campaign statements, or advocating or 
informing fellow workers about campaign issues. 

 
Political Activities on Fresno EOC Property 
Employees may not engage in political activities on Fresno EOC property whether or not they 
are “off duty.”3 
 Examples of Prohibited Conduct on Fresno EOC Property: 
• Employees may not distribute political pamphlets, flyers, or other materials, or post 

political signs on property owned or leased by Fresno EOC. 
• Employees may not use telephones of Fresno EOC to make campaign telephone calls or 

e-mails. This includes use of e-mail service provided to the employee by Fresno EOC. 
• Employees may not perform any other campaign related tasks while on Fresno EOC 

property. This includes making copies, stuffing envelopes, writing campaign statements, 
or advocating or informing fellow workers about campaign issues. 

• Third-parties (non-Fresno EOC employees) may not distribute campaign flyers, post 
political signs, use Fresno EOC phones, or have campaign meetings on property owned 
or leased by Fresno EOC. 

 
Use Fresno EOC Funds or Resources to Advocate 
Employees may not use Fresno EOC funds or resources to advocate a partisan position or 
otherwise use Fresno EOC funds or resources to support personal political activities.4 
 Examples of Misuse of Fresno EOC Funds or Resources: 
• Employees may not use Fresno EOC copy machines, faxes, computers, printers, or other 

office equipment to design, make, or distribute political pamphlets, flyers, signs, or other 
materials in support of the employee’s own political activity. Further, employees may not 
use or take away Fresno EOC office supplies in support of personal political activities. 
For example, employees may not print flyers on Fresno EOC printer paper, take pens and 
paper clips for use at a campaign office, or use Fresno EOC copiers to make oversized 
copies. 

• Employees may not use Fresno EOC phones in support of their personal political or 
advocacy activities. Prohibited activities include: making political cold calls, calling any 

 
3 Gov. Code § 3207. 
4 Gov. Code § 54964; Stanson v. Mott (1976) 17 Cal.3d 206, 209-210. 
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campaign organizations with which they may be involved, or otherwise using the phone 
to communicate personal views about candidates or ballot measures. Further, employees 
may not use Fresno EOC-provided e-mail addresses to send and receive messages 
relating to personal political activities. 

• Employees may not use Fresno EOC offices or workspaces to engage in personal 
political activities. Prohibited personal activities include: holding political meetings, 
organizing political events, or preparing arguments, ballot statements, advertisements, 
and other such activities. Doing so would be an improper use of public resources. 

 
Solicitation of Campaign Contributions 
Employees may not knowingly, directly or indirectly, solicit a contribution or donation for a 
political campaign from any Fresno EOC commissioner, employee, or contractor.5 
• Employees and Fresno EOC commissioners may not, directly or indirectly, solicit a 

political contribution from an employee or Fresno EOC commissioner, with knowledge 
that the person from whom the contribution is solicited is an employee or commissioner 
of the agency.6 However, a commissioner or employee of Fresno EOC, or a candidate for 
elective office in a local agency, is not prohibited from requesting political contributions 
from commissioners or employees of Fresno EOC if the solicitation is part of a 
solicitation made to a significant segment of the public, which may include officers or 
employees of Fresno EOC. The statute does not expressly define what a “significant 
segment” means but should be construed to mean that the solicitation is made to a 
broader group of potential donors. This provision of the Government Code is designed to 
prohibit the use of governmental employment or status to coerce political contributions. 

• Employees may not obtain any list of Fresno EOC commissioners’, employees’, or 
contractors’ names and addresses to be used for political purposes. Further, employees 
may not intentionally include commissioners, employees, or contractors known to them 
on a list that will be used in the distribution of political mailings. Employees may, 
however, participate in a mass mailing to all registered voters in the jurisdiction of Fresno 
EOC or within specific regions within the jurisdiction of Fresno EOC that may include 
commissioners, employees, and contractors. The key is to not intentionally single out 
Fresno EOC commissioners, employees, or contractors. 

• Employees should not ask (whether in person, by writing, or by e-mail) Fresno EOC 
commissioners, employees, or contractors to contribute or donate any money or time to a 
political cause or campaign. 

• Although employees may participate in a political phone bank while off-duty, they may 
not knowingly call or instruct someone else to call Fresno EOC commissioners, 
employees, or contractors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Gov. Code § 3205. 
6 Gov. Code § 3205(a). 
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Use Position to Influence 
Employees may not use the authority or influence of their official positions to persuade or 
induce any Fresno EOC commissioner, employee, or contractor to take or refrain from taking 
any type of political action.7 
• Employees may not urge, encourage, or threaten Fresno EOC commissioners, employees, 

or contractors to vote or refrain from voting for a candidate or ballot measure. 
• Employees may not urge, encourage, or threaten Fresno EOC commissioners, employees, 

or contractors to contribute to a candidate or ballot measure. 
• Employees may not urge, encourage, or threaten Fresno EOC commissioners, employees, 

or contractors to campaign, or participate in a campaign, for or against, a candidate or 
ballot measure. 

 
Make Promises 
Employees may not promise to provide any person with a gift, money, promotion, job, or other 
form of compensation in return for a contribution or vote.8 
• Employees may not promise to hire or appoint any person for a Fresno EOC position in 

return for a contribution or vote for or against any candidate or ballot measure. 
• Employees may not promise to increase the pay rate, salary, or fringe benefits of any 

Fresno EOC commissioner, employee, or contractor in return for a contribution or vote 
for or against any candidate or ballot measure. 

• Employees may not promise to provide any person with money, loan, or any type of gift 
in return for a contribution or vote for or against any candidate or ballot measure. 

 
Personal Advocacy 
Employees should not use Fresno EOC resources to advocate personal political positions not 
otherwise endorsed by the Board of Commissioners. 
• Employees should not use Fresno EOC's email, phones, copiers, and other resources to 

advocate for political positions not expressly approved by the Fresno EOC Board of 
Commissioners or as provided by Fresno EOC adopted policy.   

Any Fresno EOC employee with any questions regarding permissible campaign activity should 
contact their direct supervisor or the Chief Executive Officer. 
 

 
7 Gov. Code § 3204. 
8 Gov. Code §§ 3204 & 3205.5 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: N/A  

Agenda Item #: 14 Director: N/A  

Subject: Advancing Fresno County 
Guaranteed Income Program  

Officer: Emilia Reyes  

 
Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval for full Board consideration to launch an Advancing Fresno 
County Guaranteed Income (GI) program for approximately $1,025,000 for a 12-month 
period. 

Background 

Since 2022, Fresno EOC has been seeking funding opportunities for a Guaranteed 

Basic Income program for Fresno County. In November of 2022, Fresno and the Central 

Valley as a region were not approved in the California Department of Social Services’ 

Guaranteed Income Pilot Program awards.  

In 2023, Fresno EOC continued to advocate for a GI Program. As a result, Fresno EOC 

has secured $1,025,000 with philanthropic funding commitments from the following 

organizations: California Wellness Foundation ($500,000), James Irvine Foundation 

($100,000), California Endowment ($150,000), Kresge Foundation ($100,000), Delta 

Dental Community Care Foundation ($100,000) Central Valley Community Foundation 

($50,000), and Sierra Health Foundation ($25,000).  

Advancing Fresno County Guaranteed Income is a program aimed to assess the 

economic and health impacts of a monthly supplemental income of $500 for 12 months 

for low-income families in our county’s highest concentrated urban and rural zip codes.  

The goals of the program are to:  

1. Randomly select a total of 150 low-income families with children, ages 0 to 5, 
living in southwest Fresno (75 families) and Huron (75 families) to receive $500 
per month for 12 months;  

2. Assess the impacts on enrolled participants’ health, happiness, financial stability, 
and employment; and,   

3. Connect and increase enrollment in other essential Fresno EOC services to 
support family’s livelihood.  
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Fiscal Impact 

The proposed budget is $1,025,000 for a 12-month project period.  
 

Budget Category  Program 
Cost  

Justification   

Direct Participant 
Cash Payment  

$900,000  150 participants x $500/month x 12 months  

Incentive for Program 
Participants   

$12,000 300 survey participants x 4 surveys x $10 gift 
card  

Program Evaluation  $108,744  Service Contract with Center for Community 
Voices at Fresno State, primary activities 
include:   
• Evaluate implementation and outcomes;  
• Develop survey instruments; and  
• Produce final impact report.  

Pre-paid Electronic 
Payment Service 
Fees   

$4,256  Service Contract with USIO, Inc.  
 

Budget Total:                   $1,025,000  

 
Conclusion  

If approved by the full Board, the GI Program will open enrollment for a 45-day period, 
for low-income targeted communities of Huron and Southwest Fresno in the spring of 
2024.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Local Conservation Corps 

Agenda Item #: 15 Director: Shawn Riggins 

Subject: Congress Appropriations of 
Community Project Grant  

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval for full Board consideration of the Congressman Jim Costa 
Appropriations Community Project Grant application in the amount of $500,000 over an 18-
month project period.  

Background 

The Local Conservation Corps (LCC) is requesting $500,000 to purchase vehicles and 
heavy machinery will support the training of low-income young adults in the 16th 
Congressional District. This training will prepare program participants for jobs on public 
lands through the Central Valley Forestry Corps and other workforce training opportunities. 
Funding will advance the following goals: 1) Reduce spread of wildfires by eliminating 
wildfire fuel through the use of new equipment; 2) Expand on current training opportunities 
for young adults, helping to fill vacant state and federal positions in public lands; and 3) 
Over the next five years, prepare approximately 100 trainees across LCC’s various training 
projects for high wage and high demand industry jobs with specialized equipment and 
vehicle training.   

Fiscal Impact 

This funding will support the purchase of heavy forestry service equipment to increase 
capacity on existing and new public lands projects. No match is required.  

The equipment to be purchased includes: (1) Skid Steer with attachments: stump attachment, 
claw attachment, inch attachment; (2) Track Chipper that can operate remotely; (3) Gator 
utility vehicles to transport corpsmembers/staff to and from projects; (4) Flat trailers and 
vehicles for hauling equipment and utility vehicles to and from work sites; and (5) Large 
industrial tractor and attachments for mowing acres of dead weeds along the San Joaquin 
River.  

Budget will be provided on the day of the meeting. 

Conclusion  

If approved by the Board, staff will submit the application by the deadline of January 31, 
2024. If not approved, LCC will lose a funding opportunity to cover the cost of new 
equipment and vehicles to support hands-on forestry training of approximately 100 young 
adults ages 18-26 from low-income neighborhoods. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Health Services 

Agenda Item: 16 Director: Jane Thomas 

Subject: Title X Equity-Based Funding   Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

 
Recommended Action 

Staff recommends ratification for full Board consideration of the Title X Equity-Based 
Funding for 2024-2025 grant application to Essential Access Health in the amount of 
$464,531.  

Background 

The 2024-2025 Title X funding cycle is only extended to all organizations that are 
currently part of the California Title X Network.  This funding cycle will introduce a new 
funding framework that will be used to determine funding amounts for each Title X 
subrecipient. The framework incorporates the Office of Population Affairs (OPA) Title X 
Program expectations, including advancing health equity through the delivery of Title X 
services, improving, and expanding access to Title X services, and ensuring the delivery 
of the highest quality of care.   

There are 2 new categories of evaluation that may be utilized to determine the equity-
based funding level. These are: 

1. The number of projected individual users and actual users for previous project 
period. 

2. The description of equity based-program enhancements for target population. 

The Health Center is the only Title X provider of family planning and reproductive health 
services in Fresno County.  These services are available to any person of reproductive 
age in need of confidential services. 

The application was submitted on January 12, 2024, in the amount of $464,531 over a 
12-month project period from April 1, 2024, to March 31, 2025.  

Fiscal Impact 

This funding will support clinical service operations, personnel, medical supplies, travel, 
training, facility rent and maintenance for clinical services that are not covered by Medi-
Cal and Family PACT. 
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Budget 04/01/2024 – 03/31/2025 
 
Personnel and Fringe Benefit    $235,070.00 
Patient Care Clinical      $ 30,000.00 
Other Costs: Lease, Utilities, Communication  $157,231.00 
Outreach program materials, marketing. 
Office supplies, travel, training, conference fees, 
10% Indirect Cost      $ 42,230.00 
 
Total:        $464,531.00 
 

Conclusion  

If ratified by the Board, funding for this project will continue to provide family planning 
and reproductive health services to low income, no income, underinsured and uninsured 
individuals of Fresno County. If not approved, the Health Center will not be able to 
continue providing family planning and reproductive health services to targeted 
population as the only Title X provider in Fresno County.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024  Program: Sanctuary and Support 
Services 

Agenda Item #: 17A Director: Misty Gattie-Blanco 

Subject: Human Trafficking Victim 
Assistance (HV) Program 

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval for full Board consideration of the Human Trafficking Victim 
Assistance Program application to The California Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services (Cal OES), Victim Services (VS) Branch for the Human Trafficking Victim 
Assistance (HV) Program in the amount of $899,999.  
 

Background 

Sanctuary and Support Services has operated the Central Valley Against Human 
Trafficking project (CVAHT) since 2009. CVAHT was awarded funding from Cal OES in 
2016 and has been awarded funds annually since then. Funding in this RFP, due on 
January 29, 2024, is designated to recipients funded in the prior fiscal year, and Fresno 
EOC is allowed to apply for $899,999 for a 12-month project period from April 1, 2024 – 
March 30, 2025.  

The purpose of the California Office of Emergency Services Human Trafficking Victim 
Assistance Program grant is to provide comprehensive services to all survivors of 
human trafficking through increasing access of direct support services.  

Funds are proposed to be used to continue providing comprehensive services and will 
support personnel, operational and supportive services costs. As part of the prior 
funding cycles and large regional coverage, Fresno EOC will sub-award funds to five 
community organizations that have continuously provided this work. Those include 
Centro La Familia Advocacy, Inc., Family Healing Center, and Breaking the Chains. 
Each sub-awardee will receive funding based on their budgetary needs varying from 
$10,000 to a maximum of $100,000 for this fiscal cycle.  

From 4/1/2023 – 9/30/2023 (6 months), this project has completed 50% of their grant 
award. Outcomes for this period include: 313 victims have been provided outreach 
services, 97 meals provided, 49 victims provided temporary safe shelter, 211 victims 
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provided in-person counseling, 34 victims provided group counseling/discussion, 185 
victims provided access and referral services. 

Fiscal Impact 

These funds will support personnel, operational and supportive service costs over a 12-
month funding cycle beginning April 1, 2024. No match required.  

Budget will be provided on the day of the meeting. 

Conclusion 

If approved by the Board, this funding will be critical to continue operations of the 
program. If not approved, CVAHT will lose funding, and this will impact the program’s 
ability to provide emergency shelter and services for victims of human trafficking.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Date: January 22, 2024  Program: Sanctuary and Support 

Services 
Agenda Item #: 17B Director: Misty Gattie-Blanco 

Subject: Homeless Services Program Officer: Jack Lazzarini 
 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends ratification for full Board consideration of the Homeless Services 
Program application submitted to the County of Fresno Department of Social Services 
in the amount of $4,368,334 for two projects over a five-year period.  

Background 

The County of Fresno on behalf of the County of Fresno Department of Social Services 
and the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care (FMCoC) is requesting proposals from 
qualified and experienced vendors to provide homeless services in the County of 
Fresno. 

Specifically for homeless youth ages 18 to 24, the Department is seeking the following 
services: Youth Emergency Shelter and Bridge Housing and/or Rapid Rehousing. 
Funding for these services will also be provided primarily through Homeless, Housing, 
Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) funding through the Business, Consumer Services 
and Housing (BCSH) Agency. Proposals submitted for youth services must include 
program plans designed specifically for youth as the target population and may not 
simply be services provided to individuals ages 18 to 24. 

Sanctuary and Support Services is proposing two projects: Youth Emergency 
Shelter/Bridge Housing and Youth Rapid Rehousing. The program has been operating 
Youth Bridge Housing since 2019 through funding from the County of Fresno. Since its 
inception, 157 individuals (including adults and children) have been assisted. The 
second project, Youth Rapid Rehousing, would assist young adults move into 
permanent housing. Clients will receive rental assistance and case management 
services to maintain that housing.   

The application was submitted on January 9, 2024 for two projects over a five-year 
period beginning on July 1, 2024.  
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Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will support personnel costs, operational and facility costs. No match 
required.  
 
Conclusion 
 
If ratified by the Board, funding will continue youth bridge housing services to young 
adults ages 18 to 24 including their families and expand to provide permanent housing. 
If not approved, Sanctuary and Support Services will lose a critical funding source to 
provide beds and supportive services for young adults and their families.  
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Contract Period: 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029
Budget Category YR 1 Total YR 2 Total YR 3 Total YR 4 Total YR 5 Total TOTAL

Salaries 71,871.00$   75,465.00$   79,238.00$   83,200.00$   87,360.00$   397,134.00$   
Payroll Taxes 6,019.00$   6,320.00$   6,636.00$   6,968.00$   7,316.00$   33,259.00$   
Benefits 28,436.00$   29,857.00$   31,350.00$   32,918.00$   34,564.00$   157,125.00$   

Subtotal 106,326.00$  111,642.00$  117,224.00$  123,086.00$  129,240.00$  587,518.00$   

Insurance 1,200.00$   1,260.00$   1,323.00$   1,389.00$   1,458.00$   6,630.00$   
Communication 1,800.00$   1,890.00$   1,984.00$   2,083.00$   2,187.00$   9,944.00$   
Office Expenses 3,420.00$   3,591.00$   3,770.00$   3,958.00$   4,156.00$   18,895.00$   
Equipment 2,000.00$   -$  -$  2,500.00$      4,500.00$   
Travel Costs 12,600.00$   13,230.00$   13,892.00$   14,586.00$   15,315.00$   69,623.00$   
Program Supplies 6,000.00$   6,300.00$   6,615.00$   6,945.00$   7,292.00$   33,152.00$   
Fiscal & Audits -$   
Training / New staff backgound check 200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   1,000.00$   
Office Rent and Utilities 7,800.00$   8,190.00$   8,600.00$   9,030.00$   9,482.00$   43,102.00$   
California Property Inspection Services 4,250.00$   4,462.00$   4,685.00$   4,919.00$   5,165.00$   23,481.00$   

Subtotal 39,270.00$   39,123.00$   41,069.00$   45,610.00$   45,255.00$   210,327.00$   

Rental Assistance 294,372.00$  309,090.00$  324,545.00$  340,772.00$  357,811.00$  1,626,590.00$  
Motel/Hotel Costs -$   
Utility Payments -$   
Security/Utility Deposits 2,900.00$   3,045.00$   3,197.00$   3,356.00$   3,523.00$   16,021.00$   
Moving Costs -$   
Transportation Costs 2,000.00$   2,100.00$   2,205.00$   2,315.00$   2,430.00$   11,050.00$   
Landlord Fees/Background Checks

Subtotal 299,272.00$  314,235.00$  329,947.00$  346,443.00$  363,764.00$  1,653,661.00$  
 Training and Supplies (For Diversion only)

Diversion Training
Diversion Supplies

Subtotal -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   
Indirect Costs (10% Maximum)

Indirect Costs 44,487.00$   46,500.00$   48,824.00$   51,514.00$   53,826.00$   245,151.00$   
Subtotal 44,487.00$   46,500.00$   48,824.00$   51,514.00$   53,826.00$   245,151.00$   
Total 489,355.00$     511,500.00$     537,064.00$     566,653.00$     592,085.00$     2,696,657.00$      

Project Type: Youth Rapid Rehousing 

Personnel

Operational

Direct Financial Assistance
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Contract Period: 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029
Budget Category YR 1 Total YR2 Total YR3 Total YR4 Total YR5 Total TOTAL

Salaries 155,680.00$  163,464.00$  171,637.00$  180,219.00$  189,230.00$  860,230.00$     
Payroll Taxes 13,406.00$    14,077.00$    14,780.00$    15,519.00$    16,296.00$    74,078.00$    
Benefits 38,165.00$    40,075.00$    42,078.00$    44,182.00$    46,390.00$    210,890.00$    

Subtotal 207,251.00$  217,616.00$  228,495.00$  239,920.00$  251,916.00$  1,145,198.00$   

Client Meals 6,000.00$    6,300.00$    6,615.00$    6,946.00$    7,293.00$    33,154.00$    
Client Personal Supplies 3,600.00$    3,780.00$    3,969.00$    4,167.00$    4,375.00$    19,891.00$    
Shelter Furniture 3,600.00$    3,780.00$    3,969.00$    4,167.00$    4,375.00$    19,891.00$    
Insurance 3,480.00$    3,654.00$    3,837.00$    4,029.00$    4,231.00$    19,231.00$    
Communication 4,200.00$    4,410.00$    4,631.00$    4,863.00$    5,106.00$    23,210.00$    
Office Expenses 3,600.00$    3,780.00$    3,969.00$    4,167.00$    4,375.00$    19,891.00$    
Equipment 3,000.00$    -$   -$  3,500.00$   -$   6,500.00$   
Travel Costs 7,200.00$    7,560.00$    7,938.00$    8,335.00$    8,752.00$    39,785.00$    
Program Supplies 3,600.00$    3,780.00$    3,969.00$    4,167.00$    4,375.00$    19,891.00$    
Fiscal & Audits -$    
Training 360.00$    378.00$    397.00$    417.00$    438.00$    1,990.00$    
Interpreter Services

Subtotal 38,640.00$    37,422.00$    39,294.00$    44,758.00$    43,320.00$    203,434.00$    

Rent
Utilities 19,200.00$    20,160.00$    21,168.00$    22,226.00$    23,338.00$    106,092.00$    
Maintenance 4,800.00$    5,040.00$    5,292.00$    5,557.00$    5,835.00$    26,524.00$    
Security 960.00$    1,008.00$    1,058.00$    1,111.00$    1,167.00$    5,304.00$    
Landscaping -$    
Minor Facility Improvements 6,000.00$    6,300.00$    6,615.00$    6,946.00$    7,293.00$    33,154.00$    

Subtotal 30,960.00$    32,508.00$    34,133.00$    35,840.00$    37,633.00$    171,074.00$    

Indirect Costs 27,685.00$    28,755.00$    30,192.00$    32,052.00$    33,287.00$    151,971.00$    
Subtotal 27,685.00$    28,755.00$    30,192.00$    32,052.00$    33,287.00$    151,971.00$    
Total 304,536.00$  316,301.00$  332,114.00$  352,570.00$  366,156.00$  1,671,677.00$   

Indirect Costs (10% Maximum)

Project Type: Youth Emergency Shelter & Bridge Housing

Personnel

Operational 

Facility Costs
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Valley Apprenticeship 
Connections  

Agenda Item #: 18A Director: Patrick Turner  

Subject: Career Skills Training Grant   Officer: Jack Lazzarini  

 
Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval for full Board consideration of the application to the U.S. 
Department of Energy (DOE), Office of State and Community Energy Programs for the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law: Career Skills Training Grant Program in the amount of 
$1,081,250 for a 2-year project period.  

Background 

This program will allow Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC) to implement a new 
12-week training curriculum in energy efficiency building technologies with an added 
learning component in electric vehicle charging stations. Students will learn a whole-
building approach to energy-efficiency, such as advanced insulation, design of window 
placement, and HVAC installation. This project aims to: 1) train students in industry-
recognized certifications; 2) create networking opportunities with industry leaders and 
trade union representatives to help place students in good jobs; and 3) strengthen 
collaborations with labor organizations and industry partners to address gaps in the 
workforce.  

The application will be submitted on February 27, 2024. DOE intends to make 
competitive grant awards under this program in July 2024. 

Fiscal Impact 

This funding will support direct services, personnel costs, and operational costs. A non-
federal match of 50% is required. Matching funds will come from a combination of 
funding from the State Center Community College District and private foundation funds.  

Budget will be provided on the day of the meeting.  
 

Conclusion  

If approved by the Board, staff will submit the application on February 27, 2024. This 
funding will serve 360 low-income students with vocational training in construction and 
energy efficiency measures over a four-year period. If not approved, VAC will lose a 
funding opportunity to support the development of a new curriculum in energy 
efficiency—a growing sector in California’s workforce.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Valley Apprenticeship 
Connections 

Agenda Item #: 18B Director: Patrick Turner 

Subject: Strong Workforce Program 
Agreement  

Officer: Jack Lazzarini  

 
Recommended Action 

Staff recommends ratification for full Board consideration of the Strong Workforce 
Program Agreement from the State Center Community College District (SCCCD) in the 
amount of $180,000 for a one-year period.  
 
Background 
 
This is a Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC) Pre-Apprenticeship 12-week 
program that involves skill building, earning professional certificates and giving back to 
the community. Students will obtain construction work experience through our local 
community partners involved in renovation work in downtown Fresno. Students will 
receive 25 lesson plans and 150 hours of the “Thinking for Change” training. 
 
Thinking for Change is an evidence-based cognitive behavioral program that helps 
individuals resolve conflict, reflect on their life, and begin making better professional and 
life choices.   
 
SCCCD continues to support the vision of providing worthwhile vocational training to the 
community and is a valuable partner in this venture. 
 
The one-year project period began December 19, 2023. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will support personnel and operating expenses totaling $163,637, and 
Indirect $16,364. No match is required.  
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Conclusion 
 
If ratified by the Board, funding for this program will serve approximately 70-80 low-
income students with behavioral, skill building and construction work experience. If not 
approved, VAC will have to terminate its agreement with SCCCD.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Head Start 0 to 5  

Agenda Item #: 19 Director: Rosa M. Pineda  

Subject: Head Start 0 to 5 Monthly 
Update  

Officer: Emilia Reyes 

 

Background 
 
In compliance of the Head Start Performance Standards Sec. 642 (42 U.S.C.9837) 
Powers and Functions of Head Start Agencies – Program Governance, staff is providing 
a monthly update to the Board of Commissioners of the oversight of quality services for 
Head Start children and families to make decision related to program design and 
implementation.  
 
The following information presented below is intended to keep the Board apprised on 
Head Start 0 to 5’s leadership efforts in improving ongoing communication with the 
Commissions, focusing primarily on employee morale, compensation, and enrollment.  
  
Head Start Adhoc Group 
In November of 2023 the Fresno EOC Board Chair created the Head Start (HS) Adhoc 
group to enhance the program and identify any gaps to be addressed. The HS Adhoc 
group includes Fresno EOC Board Chair Hayes, Commissioners Rodgers, Jaime-
Mileham, Brown-Jenkins, Taylor and HS leadership. The first meeting took place on 
December 18, 2023. Commissioners provided input, feedback and directed staff to 
develop a Head Start Action Plan to identify areas of improvement. Other topics of 
discussion including the following: 
 

 Region 9 Specialist (Andrea Harvey) site visit on December 6 – 7, 2023 

 Listening Session for all Head Start 0 to 5 Employees  

 Ongoing staffing challenges  

 Funded Enrollment Initiative progress  

 Locally Designed Program Option request  

 Head Start Advocacy Day scheduled for March 12, 2024  
 
The Head Start Director, CEO, and the adhoc group will continue to meet monthly to 
keep the board abreast of the program updates, challenges, and concerns.  Standing 
items for the meeting will also include: staffing (separation/hiring) and enrollment. The 
next meeting has been scheduled for Wednesday, January 31, 2024 at 3:30pm.   
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Other HS Meetings and Deadlines 

A budget revision was submitted on December 31, 2023 to the Office of Head Start for 
reallocating 2023 unobligated funds. 

County – Wide Policy Council met on January 9, 2024 and quorum was met as we had 
35 parents in attendance.   

Our Office of Head Start (OHS) designated Program Specialist, Andrea Harvey will be 
leaving her position effective January 19, 2024. OHS has yet to assign a new Program 
Specialist.  

The National Head Start Association Winter Leadership Institute is taking place from 
January 22 – 25, 2024 in Crystal City, VA. The focus of the Leadership Institute is to 
ensure Congress understands, values, and empowers the important role Head Start 
serves for our nation’s most vulnerable children and families.  

 

 

 
 
 
,  
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FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Wednesday, November 8, 2023  

5:00PM  
MINUTES  

 
  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Charles Garabedian, called the meeting to order at 5:10 pm.  
 

2.  ROLL CALL 
Roll was called and a quorum was established. 
 

 COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT STAFF STAFF 

Charles Garabedian  
(Committee Chair) 

 Steve Warnes Jay Zapata 

Rey Leon  Karina Perez Jon Escobar 

James Martinez  Jennifer Tillman Jack Lazzarini 

Linda Hayes   Chris Erwin  

Zina Brown-Jenkins  Angela Riofrio  

Itzi Robles  Maria Elizondo  

Alena Pacheco       Thomas Dulin  
 

 
3. 
 

 
APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 11, 2023 MINUTES 
A. October 11, 2023 Finance Committee Minutes  

Public comment: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Alena Pacheco Second by: Itzi Robles 
Ayes:  Garabedian, Alena Pacheco, Itzi Robles 
Nayes: None heard  
            

4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

A. Agency Financial Statements 
B. Head Start Financial Status Report 

  
Motion by: Itzi Robles Second by: Zina Brown-Jenkins 
Ayes:  Garabedian, Itzi Robles, Zina Brown-Jenkins 
Nayes: None heard  
 
Jay Zapata, Chief Financial Officer, presented the Financial Statements for Year-to Date for 
September 2023 as well as the approval of the financial status report for the Head Start 0-5 
program as of Year-to-Date September 2023. Through September 2023 the Total Revenues 
and Support are $120,829,445 and Total Expenditures are 123,618,858. 
 
Jennifer Tillman, Finance Manager for Head start presented the Head Start Financial Status 
Reports for Year-to Date for September 30, 2023. Through September 2023 the Head Start 
Basic grant was 40% expended and the Early Head Start Basic grant was 25% expended. 
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Commissioner Brown-Jenkins stated concern and inquired clarification in regards of the Head 
Start reimbursement for childcare and mileage cost reaching a limit. Zapata stated that in the 
Policy & Procedures it does not include a limit due to being a reimbursement for childcare and 
mileage.  
 

5. HEALTH INSURANCE REPORT 
A. Health Insurance Report 
 
Steve Warnes, Assistant Finance Director, presented the health insurance fund reports for 
September 30, 2023. The Health Insurance reserve is at $6.8 million, which covers 
approximately 9.3 months of average expenditures. Contributions from programs and 
employees for 2023 total $7,766,467 while the Fund paid out $6,480,161 in expenses.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Public Comment: None heard 
 
No Action Required 
 

6. INVESTMENT REPORT     
 
Warnes presented the Investment Report. The Citibank account is closed, and the cash has 
been carried over to the Wells Fargo bank account.  
 
Public comment: None heard. 
 
No Action Required 
 

7. VARIANCE REPORTS    
A. Transit System Program 

 
Through 75% of the contract period, approximately 63% of budgeted revenues have been 
received. Through 75% of the contract period, approximately 70% of the budgeted expenses 
have been used.  
 
Commissioner Garabedian asked for clarification as to why the mileage cost was so large. 
Thomas Dulin, Transit System Director, explained the majority of expenses are coming from 
repairs revel in parts and fuel cost.   
 
B.  Food Service Program 

 
Through 75% of the contract period approximately 74% of budgeted revenues have been 
received. Through 75% of the contract period, approximately 75% of budgeted expenses have 
been used.  

 
Commissioner Robles inquired in regards of seeing any savings from the electric cars. Dulin 
stated the programs has seen about $1,000.00 in savings since they only have two electric 
vehicles.  
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8. NON-COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT: N/A 

A. Non-competitive Procurement 
  

Public Comment: None Heard 
 
No Action Required 

9. OTHER BUSINESS: Discussion  
 
Public comment: None heard 
 
No Action Required 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS: N/A 
 
Public comment: None heard 
 
No Action Required 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT: 
Garabedian adjourned meeting at 5:43 pm 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Charles Garabedian 
Committee Chair 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date:  January 22, 2024 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #: 20A2 Director: Steve Warnes 

Subject: Workers Compensation Policy Renewal  Officer: Jay Zapata 

 
Recommended Action 

The Finance Committee recommends approval for full Board consideration to select 
Tangram as our Workers’ Compensation Insurance carrier for 2024. 

Background 

The Agency is required by state law and by our contracts to have workers ‘compensation 
coverage.  Coverage is obtained annually for the calendar year.  Renewal quotes for 
policies effective January 1 are not issued by insurance carriers until after the Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau (WCIRB) releases their industry-wide ratings.  
The carriers must then obtain approval from the State of California for their published 
rates and experience modifications.  The policy premiums is based on an estimate of 
payroll to be paid in the coming year; the carrier performs an audit of the payroll to 
determine the final premium. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The Agency’s risk management consultant, Heffernan Insurance Brokers, has solicited 
quotes for the 2024 workers’ compensation renewal.  Quotations were received from 
Church Mutual – the incumbent carrier – as well as other carriers.  Quotes were reviewed 
for both cost and service delivery desired.  Based on our estimated payroll the quotes 
received are: 

Church Mutual $1,344,835 
Tangram $  975,023 
Amtrust $1,162,198 
BHHC $1,283,987 

State Fund $1,400,000 
  
Conclusion  
 
If approved by the full Board, the workers compensation policy will be bound and 
effective Jan 1, 2024, to remain in compliance with California labor law. We have used 
Tangram as our carrier in the past, we are pleased with their responses to our service-
related concerns.  
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 If the Workers’ Compensation coverage is not approved, the agency will be out of 
compliance with California labor laws and thus exposing the agency to a significant risk. 
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission
2024 Workers Compensation Executive Narrative

Overthe past few months, Heffernan lnsurance Brokers has conducted a thorough Workers
Compensation market analysis for Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission (Fresno EOC). We

negotiated renewalterms with your incumbent carrier as well as severalother markets, obtaining
quotes & indications from a total of five carriers. This narrative encompasses a summary of changes in

the marketplace, your claim performance, renewal options, and our carrier recommendation for the
2024 policy year.

State of the Workers Comoensation I ndustrv:

Last year, California saw a t4% increase in workers' compensation premiums due to the economic
recovery from the pandemic. As the economy continues to expand and insurer charged rates stabilize,
premiums are expected to surpass pre-pandemic levels once the 2023 year is complete. Claim frequency
is returning to pre-pandemic levels, with the frequency of non-COVID-19 indemnity claims remaining
relatively flat. COVID-19 claims and costs have declined and remained stable for most of the past two
years. Average indemnity claim costs are rising, mainly driven by increasing average wage levels.

California has longer average claim durations compared to other states, influenced by slower claim

reporting, lower settlement rates, and higher frictional costs. Despite these factors, the accident year

combined ratio (losses & operating expenses as compared to earned premiums) decreased by 7 points

lo 1-05% in 2022, reflecting improving profitability in the workers' compensation market. With this
improved profitability, many carriers are continuing to provide competitive options to insureds as we

head into 2024.

As in year's past, the WCIRB tinkers with the experience modification calculation. This year, the
Expected Loss Rates (ELR) increased slightly, which means employers were "allowed" more claims

dollars in their calculations. The WCIRB annually adjusts the ELRs based on the prior year's claims
performance in the state. We expect this trend to continue in future years.

Fresno EOC's Performance:

ln2023, Fresno EOC has had 56 workers compensation claims. This is an increase in total claims as

compared 1o2022 (41), but Fresno EOC's performance is in on trend with other employers in California

who are seeing their claims frequency return to pre-pandemic levels. As of late-November, the total
incurred claims amount is 5305,918 (including expenses). This gives Fresno EOC a 29% loss ratio. Fresno

EOC's experience mod f or 2024 has been published al !0I%, which is a 25-point (or 20%) reduction from
the 2023 ex-mod (126%). The following factors contributed to the decreased experience mod:

Reduction in Actual Losses ($344,950)

Total Payroll grew by about 57 Million
ELRs increased which increased the amount of losses Fresno EOC were expected to have

We will continue to monitor the claims throughout the year and communicate with adjustors and

Fresno EOC to make sure the claims are progressing as quickly and effectively as possible. We will
continue with our goal of closing these claims, keeping the incurred costs low, and look to extend Fresno

EOC's downward experience mod trend.

o

o

a
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Workers Compen Prosram Renewal:

This year, we obtained four quotes or indications along with the renewal quote from your incumbent
carrier, Church Mutual. The expiring premium with Church Mutual was SL,038,903, inclusive of state
taxes & fees. Church Mutual's renewal quote is 51,334,835 with state taxes & fees or roughly 29%

higher than expiring. We also received a quote option from Tangram with their carrier partner, Service

American. Tangram's quote including taxes & fees came in at 5975,023. Tangram's quote is 6% lower
than expirin g and 27o/o lower than Church Mutual's renewal quote. Our two other quotes came from
AmTrust and Berkshire Hathaway (BHHC) who gave us quotes at S1,162,198 and $1,283,987
respectively. State Compensation lnsurance Fund (State Fund) provided us with an indication of

s1,400,000.

Fresno EOC's ex-mod dropped 20% this year, as previously discussed. Fresno EOC's 6% premium

reduction with Tangram is slightly misleading as the significant ex-mod reduction would lead one to
believe the overall premium reduction would be greater. However, Fresno EOC's projected payrollfor
2024is roughly $Z wlllion dollars higher than the 2023 projected payrolls. The growth is concentrated in

mostly lower-rated class codes, which do not provide as much financial impact as other higher-rated
codes. That said, the net rates for the Tangram 2024 renewal quote are lower by double-digit
percentages virtually across the board. Net rates are a carrier's base rates along with all debits and

credits, including the ex-mod. Please refer to our proposal for a detailed net rate breakdown.

With the rest of the property & casualty marketplace providing premium increases due to hard market
conditions, workers compensation has been the bright spot where insureds have been able to realize

relief. Our marketing efforts show many carriers continuing to offer competitive pricing to well-
performing accounts. We are thrilled to have several options which would be saving the organization
money.

Heffernan lnsu,rance Brokers Commentarv:

After completing our marketing efforts and analysis, Heffernan lnsurance Brokers recommends Fresno

EOC bind coverage with Tangram. Besides offering the best pricing, Tangram meets many of the service

requests Fresno EOC's Human Resources team requires to effectively manage the organization's claims

and mitigate future claims through loss control. ln addition, Tangram can provide a virtual nurse triage
service which will allow Fresno EOC to continue this valuable service which aids in claim frequency and

severity reduction. We will also continue to have Heffernan's Claims Consultant, Wanda Soon, monitor
the claims activity to get the open claims closed and work towards further decreasing the experience

modification. We are excited to be bringing an option to Fresno EOC that satisfies many of the service

needs along with being the most competitively priced option. Tangram has been insuring nonprofits for
over twenty years and their dedication to providing competitive quotes along with valuable services has

enabled them to grow into a top tier workers compensation provider for the nonprofit industry.

Sincerely,

Brian O'Callaghan
Senior Vice President
Heffernan lnsurance Brokers

Jordann Coleman
Senior Vice President
Heffernan lnsurance Brokers

Gabriella Garrick
Account Manager
Heffernan lnsurance Brokers
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PREMIUM SUMMARY

COVERAGE CARRIER POLICY TERM

2023

BOUND

PREMIUM

7424

ESTIMATED

PREMIUM

Worker's
Compensation

Option 1

Church Mutual
lnsurance Co.

1.lr/2024

to

1.11./202s

5980,800 - Premium

$5B,t 05 - Fees

S1,038,905 - Total

51,,270,457 - Premium

$14,378 - Fees

S1,344,835 -Total

Worker's
Compensation

Option 2

Tangram
lnsurance
Services

1.11./2024

to

1.lt/2O2s

5921,,097 - Premium

5s3,926 - Fees

$975,023 - Total

*The State hos not yet released the 2024 State Taxes & Fees so this is subject to change

Church Mutual:

Directly Billed: Monthly lnstallments.

Tangram:

Pavment Plans:

. L0 Pay - 10% Down (5146,033) + 9 lnstallments (S92,110)

. Monthly Reporting (10% Deposit - $155,434)

o Late payment and overdraft fees may apply.

o Premium financing is not accepted.

QUOTE CONDITIONS

Required copy ofthis proposal with coverage options, changes and deletions shown on the proposal along with the

Slgned Authorization to Bind Coverage is required prior to binding coverage.

Down payment orfull annual premium as stated above is required to bind coverage.

Volunteers are not covered.

Subject to favorable loss control.

Subject to compliance with loss control and all ensuing recommendations.

a

a

a

a

PAYMENT OPTIONS

li i ; : I t i. .l '.1':, jl:,'rl' i-: I -: :r rr: I r.lil:,,r(_ iaillrci. ilr i : : i i
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MARKETI NG ANALYSIS

Church Mutual
51,344,835 including taxes and fees -

Presented Option 1

Tangram
5975,023 including taxes and fees-

Presented Option 2

Amtrust 5L,162,198 including taxes and fees

BHHC 51,283,987 including taxes and fees

Indication SL,400,000State Fund lnsurance

Sentry
5250k Deductible Program -Need additional

information to provide firm quote.

Guide One No Response

No ResponseCopper Point

ICW Declined, due to operations.

AIG Declined, due to operations.

Eve rest Declined, due to operations

Care West Declined, due to operations

*As2024 WC Surcharges have not been approved, taxes and fees are subject to change

r.it,;.r .,. ir:i1:jri: :iitrrcivllcoPPoit'luNillE5coiili\i,(5rf1l\
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PREMIUM & LOSS ANALYSIS

Grand Totals

Premium

Loss

Ratio

Total #
of

Claims Outstand ng . . Total lrncurredCarrier Paid

29%$i.,038,905$188,062 $305,91856 s117,8562023-2024
Church
Mutual

[%$208,766 S1,435,640SMt,oat S61,699
Church

Mutual
41.2022-2023

5r,474,427 25%$93,737 s363,38319 5269,646202r-2027
Ch u rch

Mutual

17%s372,858 s1,050,585s l" L7,85546 $255,0022020-202r BHHC

57%s886,896 51,,234,6175r73,1.27BHHC 100 5713,769201,9-2020

ili:i!:tiRNAtJ ,N$IJRAN{;li BROKf:R$ | PRIiPARtiU FOR: FR5$N0 TCSNOM|C OPPORTUwITIES aOMMISSION
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Transit Systems 

Agenda Item #:  20A3 Director: Thomas Dulin 
 

Subject: Nuvve Holding Corp. Proposal Officer: Jack Lazzarini  
 

 
Recommended Action 
 
The Finance Committee recommends review and approval for full Board consideration 
to approve Nuvve Holding Corp. proposal to the Transit Systems Electrification RFP.  
 
Background 
 
On November 1st Transit Systems issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to hire a 
project manager tasked with incorporating solar panels and charging stations into their 
infrastructure. The intended location for the solar farm is a 3-acre space, and solar 
canopies will be installed in the bus parking lot. Alongside the solar panels, Transit 
Systems aims to integrate a total of 56 charging stations, complemented by the 
inclusion of a battery to support electricity requirements during periods of minimal 
sunlight. 
 
The Transit System 2023-24 Electrification RFP received three (3) submissions.  
Following the Agency’s Procurement Policies and Procedures, a panel of reviewers 
reviewed, scored, and discussed all qualifying submissions and subsequently 
recommends Nuvve Holding Corp. to move forward to the Board of Commission for 
funding consideration.  Nuvve’s proposal with engineering by Molle received the highest 
score of all three proposals. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Transit intends to capitalize on grants and rebates provided by the San Joaquin Valley 
Air Pollution Control District and Pacific Gas and Electricity. This strategic approach 
aims to reduce expenses related to infrastructure enhancements and tap into additional 
financial incentives supporting the solar project. 
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Conclusion 
 
If approved by the full Board,  the subsequent actions will involve negotiating the contract 
details, setting a date for the groundbreaking ceremony, and finalizing the financial 
arrangements for the project. 
 
If not approved by the full Board, Transit will forfeit the opportunity to utilize grant funding 
allocated for this initiative. Consequently, Transit will remain burdened with the ongoing high 
utility expenses each month. Additionally, there will be a missed opportunity to benefit from 
Carbon Footprint (CF) credits that could be accrued through the energy produced by the 
solar installation. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date:  January 22, 2024 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #: 20A4 Director: Steven Warnes 

Subject: Health Insurance Report  Officer: Jay Zapata 

 
Background 

The information presented below is intended to keep the Committee apprised on the 
financial status of the Agency’s self-funded health insurance plan. 

As of October 31, 2023, the health insurance reserve is at $7.0 million, which covers 
approximately 9.5 months of average expenditures. Contributions from programs and 
employees for 2023 total $8,685,213 while the Fund paid out $7,179,655 in expenses 
 
Changes to the health insurance plan in 2022 through 2024 include: 

• Effective January 2022: Tele-health service was added and 1% increase in Employer 
premiums and an average 8% increase to Employee premiums.  

• Effective January 2023: Restructured the wellness program to include more 
employees; replaced wellness discounted premium by an incentive program 
available to all employees.  5.5% increase in Employer premiums. 

• Effective January 2024: Kaiser HMO plan offered as an alternative to our existing 
PPO plan.  Employer and Employee premiums will increase by 8%. Recordkeeper 
for FSA and HSA plans moved to Health Equity. 

 
This table presents a sample of the monthly health insurance premium rates for 2023.  Rates 
vary depending on the level of coverage tier selected. Rates for the PPO and HMO options 
are shown (a high-deductible option is available to the employees at a 40% lower cost). 
 

  Agency Employee Total Premium 

Employee Only $684 $162 $846 
EE +Child(ren) $1,238 $291 $1,529 
EE + Family $1,643 $387 $2,030 
EE + Spouse $1,374 $324 $1,698 
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FRESNO EOC
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND REPORT

THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023

Beginning Fund Balance

Income
Agency Contributions
Additional Agency Contr.
Employee Contributions

Total Income

Expenses
Health Claims Paid
Dental Claims Paid
Prescriptions Paid
Vision Claims Paid

Stop Loss Premiums
Stop Loss Claims
Life Insurance Premiums

Pinnacle
Blue Cross
Benefits Consultant
Employee Assist. Program
Preferred Chiropractors
TeleDoc

Other Expenses
ACA Fees 

Total Expenses

Current Fund Activity (net)

Ending Fund Balance

Enrollment
Employee only-Traditional
Employee only-High-Deduct
Family coverage-Traditional
Family coverage-High-Deduct
Dental coverage only
Temp/On Call Plan

Total employees enrolled

Estimated # months funded:

Average contributions per employee
Average expenses per employee

January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD totals Mo. Avg. YTD totals Annual 
Annual Mo. 

Avg
Jan-Oct Prev 12 mos Jan-Oct Jan - Dec Jan - Dec

5,493,909 5,464,765 5,865,711 6,054,466 6,356,077 6,661,811 6,713,754 6,593,919 6,582,222 6,781,560 6,999,467 6,999,467

753,479             747,863             758,762             746,004             744,968               750,773               469,368               730,091               737,693               739,773               7,178,774 717,470 7,192,960 8,623,821 718,652    
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -               0 0 0 -             

193,157             179,182             87,767               185,795             184,966               198,294               102,607               104,711               91,359                 178,601               1,506,439 160,958 1,538,752 1,963,810 163,651    

946,636             927,045             846,529             931,799             929,934               949,067               571,975               834,802               829,052               918,374               -                           -                           8,685,213 878,428 8,731,712 10,587,631 882,303

597,281             252,921             277,335             258,071             304,953               538,213               322,956               467,555               230,864               364,673               3,614,822 414,579 3,828,529 5,188,655 432,388    
47,952               37,885               42,028               52,612               38,170                 43,411                 47,309                 40,230                 51,508                 35,308                 436,413 42,855 447,763 525,612 43,801       

161,856             93,451               158,339             153,394             111,262               144,243               148,592               175,789               169,927               131,072               1,447,925 143,657 1,488,921 1,764,880 147,073    
6,778                 2,036                 14,828               1,220                 8,412                   9,115                   6,472                   6,625                   11,450                 6,536                   73,472 6,896 59,329 68,611 5,718         

104,348             105,261             108,245             107,933             103,712               103,362               104,699               99,246                 106,420               103,099               1,046,325 103,380 1,017,027 1,211,263 100,939    
-                         (22,123)             -                         -                         (67)                       -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (22,190) (35,993) (31,218) (440,948) (36,746)     

8,250                 8,188                 8,240                 9,187                 9,203                   9,170                   8,969                   9,043                   9,028                   8,999                   88,277 9,419 125,000 149,754 12,480       

13,309               13,579               13,580               13,526               13,471                 13,508                 13,490                 13,111                 13,291                 13,327                 134,192 13,310 130,419 155,949 12,996       
13,835               13,895               13,994               13,975               13,875                 13,955                 13,954                 13,558                 13,696                 13,716                 138,453 13,759 136,678 163,337 13,611       
12,083               12,083               12,084               12,083               12,083                 12,084                 12,083                 12,083                 12,084                 12,083                 120,833 12,083 118,252 142,419 11,868       

4,537                 4,537                 4,740                 4,740                 4,740                   4,740                   4,740                   4,740                   4,740                   4,740                   46,994 4,207 18,373 21,865 1,822         
871                    875                    881                    880                    874                      879                      878                      854                      863                      864                      8,719 871 8,908 10,645 887            

2,474                 2,485                 2,503                 2,499                 2,481                   3,426                   2,996                   2,715                   4,888                   5,079                   31,546 3,040 25,297 30,232 2,519         

2,206                 1,026                 977                    68                      1,031                   1,018                   982                      950                      955                      971                      10,184 1,014 20,604 22,588 1,882         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                           -                           3,690                   -                           -                           -                           3,690 308 3,750 3,750 313            

975,780             526,099             657,774             630,188             624,200               897,124               691,810               846,499               629,714               700,467               -                           -                           7,179,655 733,386 7,397,632 9,018,612 751,551

(29,144)             400,946             188,755             301,612             305,734               51,943                 (119,835)             (11,697)               199,338               217,907               -                           -                           1,505,558 145,041 1,334,080 1,569,019 130,752

5,464,765          5,865,711          6,054,466          6,356,077          6,661,811            6,713,754            6,593,919            6,582,222            6,781,560            6,999,467            6,999,467            6,999,467            6,999,467

247                    256                    256                    259                    258                      260                      257                      247                      251                      253                      251 250
79                      84                      86                      87                      84                        86                        87                        86                        89                        88                        83 76

337                    321                    322                    320                    318                      318                      320                      311                      311                      311                      326 348
34                      41                      41                      38                      39                        39                        39                        39                        39                        39                        38 36
42                      54                      49                      47                      49                        47                        46                        45                        48                        49                        46 40

-                         -                         0 0
739                    756                    754                    751                    748                      750                      749                      728                      738                      740                      -                           -                           743 750

1,281 1,226 1,123 1,241 1,243 1,265 764 1,147 1,123 1,241 1,182 1,176
1,320 696 872 839 834 1,196 924 1,163 853 947 987 1,002

9.5

2023 2022

C:\Users\swarnes\OneDrive - Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission\Finance Management - Finance Management_\Health Insurance\Health Insurance Rpt\2023
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Finance 

Agenda Item #: 20A5 Director: Chris Erwin 

Subject: Non-Competitive Procurements Officer: Jay Zapata 

 

Background 

The information presented below is intended to keep the Committee apprised of any 
procurements made through a non-competitive procurement process. In accordance 
with the Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual, Non-competitive Procurements 
are “special purchasing circumstances, in which competitive bids are not obtained. Non-
competitive procurement (purchases and contracts) is only permissible in the following 
circumstances (2 CFR 200.320[f]): 

 An emergency exists that does not permit delay. 

 Only one source of supply is available. 

 If the awarding Agency expressly authorizes non-competitive proposals in 
response to a written request from the Agency. 

 Or after solicitation of several sources, competition is determined to be inadequate. 

The key requirement for using non-competitive procurement is that the other procurement 
methods are not feasible and one of the above circumstances exists.” A report on the 
non-competitive procurement awards will be made to the Board of Commissioners. 

The Agency also follows the following guidelines:  

 Purchases from $10,000 to $150,000 require three written quotes and may be 
approved by the CEO.   

 Purchases over $150,000 require a formal bid and approval from the Board.   

 Purchases over $10,000 without quotes or bids must be disclosed to the Board. 
 

Vendor Purpose Amount Justification 

N/A 
October 2023 reporting 

period 
N/A N/A 
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PROGRAM PLANNING AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE 

1920 Mariposa Street, Suite 310 
Fresno, CA 93721 

November 27, 2023 
12:00 p.m. 

 
 

MINUTES 
  

1.  CALL TO ORDER 
Amy Arambula, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:08 p.m.  
 

2.  ROLL CALL 
Roll was called and a quorum was established. 

 Committee Members:  
Amy Arambula 
Alena Pacheco 
Sherry Neil  
 
Teleconference (T):  
N/A  
 
Absent: 

Robert Pimentel 
Linda Hayes 
 

Staff: 
Emilia Ryes  
Michelle L. Tutunjian 
Karina Perez 
Jack Lazzarini 
Misty Gattie-Blanco 
Andy Arredondo  
Shawn Riggins  
Greg Streets  

Joseph Amader 
Jane Thomas  
Fen Westphal 
Patrick Turner 
Susan Lopez 
Sandy Lomelino  
Elionora Vivanco 
Ana Medina 
 

3.  APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2023 MINUTES 
A. September 25, 2023 Program Planning and Evaluation Committee Meeting Minutes  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Neil Second by: Pacheco 
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 

4.  HEALTH SERVICES     
A. Early Childhood Wraparound Services Grant   
 
Jane Thomas, Health, and Dental Services Director provided an overview of the Early Childhood Wraparound 
Services grant application submitted on October 6, 2023, in the amount of $1,500,000 to the California 
Department of Health Care Services.   
 
Commissioner Pacheco inquired about the Parents as Teachers curriculum and asked if it was new to the 
program. Thomas stated that it is a new program for Health Services.  
 
Committee Chair Arambula inquired if training will be provided to each Case Manager. Thomas confirmed that 
training will be provided to staff.  
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Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Pacheco Second by: Neil  
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 
B. Rural Education and Development for Youth (READY) Agreement 
 
Thomas provided an overview of the Rural Education and Development for Youth renewal agreement with the 
University of California, San Francisco in the amount of $345,100 for a 12-month period beginning July 1, 2023.  
 
Committee Chair Arambula inquired regarding the budget category “other” and asked what those funds covered 
and how they are to be used. Thomas stated the funds will be used for rent, phone, and internet services.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Neil Second by: Pacheco 
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 
C. Fresno HOPE Pathways Community HUB Grant   
 
Thomas provided an overview of the Fresno HOPE Pathways Community HUB grant submitted on November 
15, 2023, in the amount of $325,000 to the Fresno Community Health Improvement Partnership.  
 
Committee Chair Arambula inquired how the program will conduct outreach. Thomas stated they are contracting 
with multiple partners and utilizing CAP60’s client list.  
 
Commissioner Pacheco inquired if the project begins on December 15, 2023, and if staff have already been 
trained. Thomas stated and confirmed that staff have been trained.   
 
Thomas stated this program is open to all clients whether they are insured or uninsured.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Pacheco Second by: Neil  
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 
 

5.  ENERGY SERVICES     
A. 2024 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program Contract  
 
Joseph Amader, Energy Services Director, provided an overview of the 2024 Low Income Home Energy 
Assistance Program contract with the State of California, Department of Community Services and Development 
in the amount of $8,368,217, beginning November 1, 2023. 
 
Committee Chair Arambula inquired regarding the emergency heating and cooling. Amader stated they provide 
temporary electric heating and cooling for clients that are in need.  
 
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 

Page 194 of 300



 

 

 
Motion by: Neil Second by: Pacheco 
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 
B. 2023 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program Agreement Amendment 2   
 
Amader, provided an overview of the 2023 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program Amendment 2, with 
the State of California, Department of Community Services and Development, reflecting an increase in the amount 
of $10,237,715.  
 
Emilia Reyes, Chief Executive Officer, recommended that due to having three overlapping LIHEAP contracts 
and to ensure we are spending all funds for each agreement, these items would go to the Finance Committee 
Meeting.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Pacheco Second by: Neil  
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 

6.  LOCAL CONSERVATION CORPS    
A. 2023-2024 YouthBuild AmeriCorps Education Subgrantee Award   
 
Shawn Riggins, Local Conservation Corps Director, provided an overview of the 2023 -2024 YouthBuild 
AmeriCorps Education Subgrantee agreement with YouthBuild USA in the amount of $200,000 for a 12-month 
period.  
 
Committee Chair Arambula inquired regarding the education award amounts and hours for full-time and half-time 
members. Riggins stated the award amounts per hours for each member was a typo and would be modified 
before full board consideration.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Neil Second by: Pacheco 
Ayes: Amy Arambula, Sherry Neil, and Alena Pacheco.  
Nays: None 
 

7.  SANCTUARY & SUPPORT SERVICES   
A. Project HOPE Bridge Housing Update      
 
Misty Gattie-Blanco, Sanctuary Director, provided an update on the Project HOPE Bridge Housing for the month 
of October.  
Public Comments: None heard. 

No action required. 
 

8.  TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT    
A. Workforce Connection Young Adult Program – Urban East Project 
 
Patrick Turner, Training & Employment Services Director, provided a detailed overview of the Workforce 
connection Young Adult Programs- Urban East Project and its transition along with data of the Local Performance 
Outcomes measures for the program.  
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Public Comments: None heard. 

No action required. 
 

9.  SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING (SOUL)     
A. Program Dashboard and Impact Report           

 
Susan Lopez, School of Unlimited Learning Principal, provided a detailed overview of the SOUL Program 

Dashboard and Impact Report for the school year 2022-2023.  

 

Public Comments: None heard. 

No action required. 
 

10.  PROGRAM PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
A. Grant Tracker 
 
Ana Medina, Program Planning & Development Director, provided an update on the Grant Tracker for the 
month of November 27, 2023.  
 
Public Comments: None heard. 

No action required. 
 

11.  OTHER BUSINESS 
Public Comments: None heard. 

No action required. 
 

12.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None heard.  
 

13.  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Amy Arambula 
Committee Chair 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024   Program: Training & Employment – 
Valley Apprenticeship Connections  

Agenda Item #: 20B2 Director: Patrick Turner  

Subject: Good Jobs Challenge 
Subrecipient Agreement   

Officer: Jack Lazzarini  

 
Recommended Action 
 
The Program Planning and Evaluation Committee recommends ratification for full Board 
consideration of the Good Jobs Challenge Subrecipient Agreement from the Fresno 
Area Workforce Investment Corporation in the amount of $333,600 for a 42-month 
period beginning December 1, 2023.  
 
Background 
 
Valley Apprenticeship Connections (VAC) has conducted paid work experience 
internships and introduction to construction for this past year for Multi-Craft Core 
Curriculum (MC3) participants who are being prepared for employment by the Fresno 
Regional Workforce Development Board. 
 
The following services will be provided by VAC under this agreement.  
 

1. Recruit 
A. Assist the Fresno Regional Workforce Development (FRWDB) in recruiting a 

pool of prospective trainees to achieve a maximum of 20 trainees to enroll in 
the ValleyBuild Apprenticeship Readiness program.  
 

2. Refer 
A. Refer all prospective trainees to register at the www.valleybuild.net website. 

  
3. Soft Skills Training 

A. Provide soft skills training at the request of the FRWDB.  
 

4. Hard Skills Training – Introduction to MC3 Program  
A. Provide a maximum of 20 trainees with an introduction to Apprenticeship 

Readiness Program for three weeks.  
B. Provide trainees with ongoing physical fitness training during the period that 

VAC is providing training.  
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Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will support personnel and operating expenses totaling $303,295, and 
Indirect $30,305. No match is required.  

Conclusion 
 
If approved by the full Board, the funding will help serve an additional 144 low-income 
individuals with employment skills and training.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Local Conservation Corps 

Agenda Item #:  20B3 Director: Shawn Riggins 

Subject: CalFIRE Greater Sierra Forestry 
Corps Contractor Agreement  

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

 

Recommended Action 

The Program Planning and Evaluation Committee recommends ratification for full Board 
consideration of the Greater Sierra Forestry Corps (formerly Central Valley Forestry 
Corps) contractor agreement from the Fresno Regional Workforce Development Board 
in the amount of $150,000 for a project period from September 5, 2023 to December 31, 
2025.  

Background 

The Greater Sierra Forestry Corps (GSFC) developed by the Fresno Regional 

Workforce Development Board (FRWDB), is a best-practice model to recruit, train, 

provide work experience, and link residents to quality entry-level jobs in the forestry 

sector.  

Through a partnership with Reedley College, the Local Conservation Corps (LCC), 

Mother Lode Job Training, Columbia College, Sierra Resource Management, and 

Associated California Loggers, the program seeks to continue and expand this best 

practice model to provide valuable forestry training to residents in Fresno County and 

up to the Mother Lode region in Amador, Calaveras, Mariposa, and Tuolumne counties. 

The need for a well-equipped workforce to manage, suppress, or sustain fuels in this 

region is vital. The GSFC will train, equip, and empower the next generation of forestry 

and fuels management workers to help mitigate the growing concerns around wildland 

fire behavior and maintain the ongoing need for fuels management. 

Under this agreement LCC commits to the following: 

 Program outreach and recruitment. 

 Supervision of program participants in the GSFC program in Fresno County. 

 Industry-based training and certificates, including safety and tools training. 

 Employer of Record services during work experience. 

 Collaboration with FRWDB and partners for the duration of the program. 
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Fiscal Impact 
 
This funding will support salaries for several LCC staff members and operating 
expenses. No match is required.  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conclusion 

If approved by the full Board, the funding will train 30 community members in an 
industry of need and aligns with the agency’s goals of assisting low-income individuals 
to become self-sufficient.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024     Program: Health Services   

Agenda Item: 20B4 Director: Jane Thomas                   

Subject: Public Awareness and 
Community Outreach Campaign 
Services Grant – Amendment 1  

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 
                      

 

Recommended Action 
 
The Program Planning and Evaluation Committee recommends acceptance for full 
Board consideration of the Public Awareness and Community Outreach Campaign 
Services Grant Agreement Number OCPSC22140, Amendment 1 to $312,500. This 
Amendment reflects an increase of $62,500, changing the maximum amount of this 
Agreement from $250,000 to $312,500 for a project period from May 1, 2023 to June 
30, 2024.  
 
Background 
 
The Board approved the Public Awareness and Community Outreach Campaign 
Services grant application to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, Office of 
Community Partnerships and Strategic Communications (OCPSC) at the May 10, 2023, 
meeting, Agenda Item 12-B7. 
 
The grant originally approved from May 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024, is extended by 
Amendment 1 to June 30, 2024. As a result of the increase in funding and extension of 
project end date, Health Services will be able to conduct outreach activities on topics 
such as COVID-19, extreme heat, and water conservation to an additional 1,568 
individuals via workshops, phone banking, trainings, and events, as well as 1,675 
individuals via social media posts, PSAs, flyers, mailings, and newsletters.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The additional funding will support personnel, benefits, operating and indirect expenses.  
 
Conclusion 
 
If approved by the full Board, the additional funding will allow Health Services to conduct 
outreach activities on COVID-19, extreme heat, and water conservation to 3,243 low-
income individuals throughout Fresno County.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024  Program: Energy Services  

Agenda Item: 20B5 Director: Joseph Amader                  
Subject: 2021 Housing Rehabilitation 
and Home Repair Program – Onsite 
Monitoring Visit  

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 
                      

 
Background  
 
The information presented is intended to keep the Board appraised of Energy Services’ 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding through the City of Fresno. On 
October 25, 2023, the City of Fresno conducted an onsite monitoring of the Program 
Year (PY) 2021-2022 Housing Rehabilitation and Home Repair Program, as part of the 
City of Fresno’s responsibility to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). 
 
The purpose of this monitoring visit was to ensure that our program is in compliance 
with the lead-based paint (LBP) regulations and to identify areas for improvement.  We 
are pleased to report that the monitoring did not result in any findings of concern and 
only resulted in three key recommendations to improve the scope of work and project 
files related to new forms incorporated by HUD after our project commenced, these 
recommendations are listed below.  
 

1. Include the Lead Safe Housing Requirements Form (attached) or a similar form 
in the project files to separately track and document lead exemptions and 
reduction requirements. 
 

2. Please make sure to incorporate Lead Safe Work practices and Interim Controls 
requirements into the scope of work when addressing LBP reduction repairs. As 
an example, the following language can be included:  

 
"Contractor shall use lead safe work practices and perform interim controls on 
lead hazards as required by the EPA's RRP (Renovation, Repair & Paint) rule."  

 
      3.  Include the Lead Hazard Finance Worksheet (attached) or a similar form in the 
           project files to show calculations of how the level of rehab assistance was 
           determined. This will help ensure transparency and compliance with lead hazard 
           reduction regulations.  
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Project No: LEAD SAFE HOUSING 
REQUIREMENTS SCREENING AND 
REDUCTION REQUIREMENTS 

Owner(s) Name:________________________________________________ 

Project Address:________________________________________________  

Date of Inspection:______________________________________________ Time of Inspection:  ______________ 

Housing Rehabilitation Specialist:  ___________________________________________ 

Year of Build:  _________________________________ Number of Children Under 6 YR's Old:  ______________ 

Locations of Defective Paint 

Type of Inspection:  __________________________________ 

Exterior:  ___________________________________________ 

Interior:  _____________________________________________ 

DESCRIPTION OF ABATEMENT AND/OR TREATMENT: 

LEAD SAFE HOUSING SCREENING
1. Was the construction of the subject building completed on or after January 1, 1978?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO

If Yes, STOP HERE; this part is completed. If No, PROCEED.

2. Is this property a Single Room Occupancy Dwelling Unit, a residential property designated exclusively for persons
with disabilities or the elderly; where a child under six years old is not expected to reside?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO 

If Yes, STOP HERE; this part is completed. If No, PROCEED. 

3. Has this property been inspected in accordance with §35.1320(a) and found not to have lead based paint?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO

If Yes, STOP HERE and attach a copy of the inspection report; this part is now completed. If No, PROCEED.

4. Has all LBP been removed, interim controlled or abated and LBP clearance for the property achieved?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO

If Yes, STOP HERE and attach a copy of the clearance report; this part is now completed. If No, PROCEED.

5. Is this rehabilitation which will not disturb a painted surface?
[See §35.1350(d)]

(    ) YES   (    ) NO 

If Yes, STOP HERE; this part is completed.  If No, PROCEED to the number below, associated with the level 
of Federal rehabilitation assistance applicable to this project. 

6. Are the average Federal funds for the hard costs of rehabilitation per unit limited to $5,000 or less?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO
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If Yes, conduct paint testing per Sec. 35.930(a)(1) and implement safe work practices per § 35.930(a)(2) OR 
presume LBP and implement safe work practices. Conduct a clearance examination, per 
§35.930(b)(3) after rehabilitation. Attach a copy of the paint test (if applicable) and clearance examination
reports, after completion.

7. Are the average Federal funds for the hard costs of rehabilitation per unit more than $5000 but not exceeding
$25,000?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO 

If Yes, conduct paint testing per Sec. 35.930(c)(1) and a risk assessment per Sec. 35.930(c)(2); perform  
interim controls per Sec. 35.1330 (see Sec. 35.930(c)(3)) OR presume LBP and/or hazards present and use 
standard treatments on all repairs per Sec. 35.120(a). Conduct a clearance examination per Sec. 35.930(b)
(3) after rehabilitation. Attach a copy of the paint test and risk assessment, and clearance  examination 
reports, after completion. 

8. Are the average Federal funds for the hard costs of rehabilitation per unit more than $25,000?

(    ) YES   (    ) NO

If Yes, conduct paint test and perform a risk assessment per §35.930(d)(2), or presume LBP. Abate all LBP  
hazards identified by the paint test or risk assessment conducted and any LBP hazards created as a result of 
the rehabilitation work, in accordance with §35.1325, except that interim controls are acceptable on exterior  
surfaces that are not disturbed by rehabilitation. Conduct a clearance examination per Sec.  35.930(b)(3) 
after rehabilitation. Attach a copy of the paint test and risk assessment, and  clearance examination reports, 
after completion. 

*Notes: If Federal rehabilitation assistance under the HOME program is used, recipient shall require property
owner to incorporate ongoing LBP maintenance activities into regular building operations, per Sec.
35.1355(a) (see Sec. 35.935). Also, there are notification requirements for all rehabilitation activities: Lead
Hazard Information Pamphlet, disclosure of known LBP hazards, and notices of lead hazard
evaluation/reduction activity (see Sec. 35.910).

Preparers Signature and Date:  ___________________________________________ 
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LEAD HAZARD 
FINANCE WORKSHEET 

 
Name:   Telephone Number:   

Project Address:  Owner’s Address:  Same 

Rehabilitation Specialist:   Grant Amount:  $ 

Finance Specialist:   Loan Amount:    -0- 
 
 

HARD COSTS <=$5,000 $5,000-$25,000 >$25,000 
Approach to Lead 
Hazard Evaluation 
and Reduction 

1.  Do no harm. 2.  Identify and control  
     lead hazards 

3.  Identify and abate  
     lead hazards 

Notification Yes Yes Yes 

Lead Hazard  
Evaluation 

Paint Testing of surfaces to be 
disturbed by rehabilitation 

Paint Testing of surfaces to  
be disturbed by rehabilitation 
 
Risk assessment 

Paint Testing of surfaces to be 
disturbed by rehabilitation 
 
Risk assessment 

Lead Hazard 
Reaction 

Repair surfaces disturbed during 
rehabilitation 
 
Safe work practices 
 
Clearance of work site 

Interim Controls 
 
Safe work practices 
 
Clearance of unit 

Abatement 
 
Safe work practices 
 
Clearance of unit 

Options Presume lead-based paint 
 
Use safe work practices on all 
surfaces 

Presume lead-based paint 
and/or hazards 
 
Use standards treatments 

Presume lead-based paint 
and/or hazards 
 
Abate all applicable surfaces 

 0-$5,000 $5,001-25,000 $25,000+ 
Negotiated Contract 
Amount (Hard Costs) 
 

 
$          

 

$          

 
$            

Lead Hazard 
Evaluation and 
reduction costs 

 
 
$         

 
 

$            

 
   
$               

Soft Costs 
(Inspection fees, title, 
credit, etc.) 

 
$                                               

 

$                         

 
$                   

 
Relocation Costs 

 
$                                              

 

$                                              

 
$                                           

 
Total Project Costs 
(sum of above) 

 
$           

 

$            

 
$                 

 
Total Grant Funds 

 
$     

 
$            

    
$                 

 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
Prepared by:        Reviewed by:      
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Sanctuary and Support Services 

Agenda Item: 20B6 Director: Misty Gattie-Blanco 

Subject: Fresno County Department of 
Social Services Program Review 

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 
 

 
Background 
 
The information presented is intended to keep the Board apprised of the Program 
Review (PR) results and corrective action plan. 

The Fresno County Department of Social Services completed a PR on November 1, 
2023, for the Youth Bridge Housing Agreement. 

The PR included an examination of program records, agency and program policies and 
procedures, employee files and other documents to ensure compliance with the Fresno 
County contract. 

The Letter received on November 27, 2023, noted no deficiencies or findings, but does 
outline one recommendation which includes implementation of a quality assurance 
procedure to proactively confirm completeness of program client files. 

No Corrective Action is required as there were no findings, however, a procedure for file 
audits has been implemented to ensure completeness of client files. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Sanctuary and Support 
Services 

Agenda Item #: 20B7 Director: Misty Gattie-Blanco 

Subject: Project HOPE Bridge Housing 
Update  

Officer: Jack Lazzarini 

 
Background 
 
The information presented is intended to keep the Board appraised of the eight (8) rooms 
for Project HOPE Bridge Housing located at N Street, funded by the City of Fresno and 
Fresno City College. 
 

2023 
 

Month 

No. of 
Households*  

Entered  
Project 

No. of Individuals 
Entered Project 

No. of 
Households* 

Exited 
Project 

No. of 
Individuals 

Exited 
Project 

Ages  
18 – 24  

Over  
Age 25  

Under  
Age 18  

January 6 4 2 4 
 

3 
3 

February 9 4 5 2 6 10 

March 4 3 1 2 3 3 

April 3 0 3 2 4 8 

May 5 3 2 2 8 10 

June 4 0 5 4 2 2 

July 2 1 1 0 2 2 

August 6 2 4 0 5 10 

September 3 1 2 0 4 6 

October 7 2 6 2 8 11 

November 3 1 2 0 3 3 

*Households can include a single individual adult; more than one adult; and/or adults with 
children.  
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Date: January 22, 2024      Program: Program Planning & Development  

Agenda Item: 20B8 Director: Ana Medina                     
Subject: Grant Tracker   Officer: Jack Lazzarini    

                      
 
Background  
 
The information presented in the Grant Tracker is intended to keep the Board appraised 
of program grant activity for Fresno EOC.   
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Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

Amount 
Awarded

9/27/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Better Together Giving PG&E

$2,000

Support the 30th Annual Making Spirits Bright 
event

N/A 11/20/2023 TBA

8/15/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - LGBTQ+ 
Resource Center

Population-Based 
Community Needs 
Assessment

County of Fresno

$25,000

Funding will support a community needs 
assessment for LGBT youth and LGBT foster 
youth. 8/28/2023 TBA $25,000

8/31/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Homeless Housing 
Assistance and Prevention 
Program

City of Fresno

$139,429

Funding will support operating costs for shelters, 
service coordination, and street outreach. 

8/28/2023 10/12/2023 $139,429

6/23/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Sisters of the Presentation 
Grant

Sisters of the Presentation

$25,000

Will support therapy for CVAHT clients and 
emergency shelter through the form of hotel 
vouchers, as well as, increased outreach efforts to 
identify victims of human trafficking. 6/26/2023 10/13/2023 $25,000

N/A

Training and Employment - 
Valley Apprenticeship 
Connections (VAC)

RWD ValleyBuild Fresno Regional Workforce 
Development Board

$57,266

Will provide paid work experience for 22 trainees 
enrolled in ValleyBuild Apprenticeship Readiness 
program. N/A 10/5/2023 $57,266

10/23/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - LGBTQ+ 
Resource Center

LGBTQ+ Pop-up Groups for 
Suicide Prevention

County of Fresno - DBH

$20,000

One-year extension of funding to support 20 Pop 
Up events for LGBTQ+ youth and adults. This 
funding will help build support systems, guide 
participants to resources, and help create a safe 
space while promoting wellness. N/A 9/20/2023 $20,000

5/25/2023

Advance Peace Community Based Violence 
Intervention and Prevention

Bureau of Justice 
Assistance 

$2,000,000

Will fund comprehensive case management, 
LifeMAP stipends, and transformative travel 
expenses for youth adults at the center of gun 
violence. 6/26/2023 TBA $2,000,000

6/13/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Integrated Services for Minor 
Victims of Human Trafficking

Office for Victims of Crime

$618,230

Will provide comprehensive case management 
support for minor victims of human trafficking of all 
forms. 5/22/2023 10/1/2023 $618,230

5/3/2023

Training and Employment - 
Valley Apprenticeship 
Connections (VAC)

Construction Apprenticeship 
Program

County of Fresno

$258,720

Will provide for job training and industry-required 
certifications for adults who are reentering into 
society, creating a pathway to a sustainable career 
in construction. 6/26/2023 6/23/2023 $255,305

5/22/2023

Training and Employment - 
Summer Youth Internship 
Program

Year Round Internship 
Program

Wells Fargo

$20,000

To pay 5 interns their wages.

7/24/2023 6/12/2023 $20,000
4/10/2023 Health Services - AFLP AFLP 2023 CA Dept of Public Health $2,010,000 Funding for AFLP for the next 3 years. 3/27/2023 5/30/2023 $1,644,525

3/3/2023
Food Services - Food 
Distributions

Food for Life Initiative - Food 
Distribution

Kaiser Permanente
$25,000

Food distribution in rural areas.
3/27/2023 5/24/2023 $25,000

2/24/2023

Training and Employment - 
Workforce Connection 
Young Adult Program

Fresno Regional Workforce 
Development Board 23-24 
(Urban East)

Department of Labor

$891,800

Continued funding for Workforce Connection in 
2023-24.

3/27/2023 TBA $891,800

Fresno County Economic Opportunities Commission
Grant Tracker 2023
Monday, December 18, 2023

2023 AWARDED
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Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

Amount 
Awarded

4/10/2023

Health Services Public Awareness and 
Community Outreach 
Campaign Services

Governor's Office of 
Planning and Research

$250,000

Community health outreach for the State of 
California on COVID-19, water conservation, and 
extreme heat. 3/27/2023 5/8/2023 $250,000

11/1/2022
Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Slave 2 Nothing Slave 2 Nothing Foundation
$30,000

CVAHT Emergency Apartment.
4/18/2023 4/1/2023 $30,000

7/13/2022
Health Services - African 
American Coalition 

Covid Disparities Grant Fresno County
$1,000,000

To provide COVID testing and vaccinations to 
priority population. N/A TBA $500,000

2/6/2023 LCC - YouthBuild YouthBuild Fresno Department of Labor $1,500,000 YouthBuild employment and training program. 5/22/2023 TBA $1,500,000

2023 NOT AWARDED

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

9/18/2023

LCC - Local Conservation 
Corps (LCC)

California Community 
Reinvestment Grants 
(CalCRG) Program  

Governor's Office of 
Business and Economic 
Development (GO-Biz) $900,000

Advancing economic justice for individuals directly 
impacted by the War on Drugs.

8/28/2023 5/31/2024

5/11/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Services for Victims of 
Human Trafficking

Office for Victims of Crime

$1,212,980

Will increase support for labor and sex trafficking 
victims, and increase trainings/public awareness 
campaigns. 5/22/2023 9/30/2023

11/1/2023
Food Services - Food 
Distributions

Walmart Local Community 
Grants

Walmart
$5,000

Funding food distributions for 2023.
7/24/2023 12/31/2023

11/1/2023
EOC Other Walmart Local Community 

Grant
Walmart

$5,000
Funds food for community members attending 
Transform Fresno Artfest event. N/A 12/31/2023

8/31/2023
Health Services - Dental Care 
for Kids

Wonderful Community Grants Wonderful Pistachios
$100,000

Dental outreach in Mendota.
8/28/2023 10/31/2023

7/10/2023
Advance Peace, Training and 
Employment - Other

Helping Justice-Involved 
Reenter Employment (HIRE)

California Workforce 
Development Board $850,960

To provide justice-involved individuals with 
employment services 5/22/2023 9/30/2023

6/21/2023

Foster Grandparent Program Advancing Innovation in 
Aging

Next 50 Intiative

$513,800

Will support basic digital literacy courses for low-
income older adults in rural and urban areas in 
Fresno County. 6/26/2023 10/15/2023

7/31/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

Runaway and Homeless 
Youth Prevention 
Demonstration Program

Health and Human Services

$300,000

Funding comprehensive services for youths at risk 
of homelessness and their families. 

8/28/2023 10/13/2023

4/11/2023

Health Services - African 
American Coalition 

Racial and Ethnic 
Approaches to Community 
Health  (REACH) 

CDC

$1,000,000

Programs in Physical Activity, Nutrition, 
Breastfeeding, and Vaccinations.

3/27/2023 9/6/2023

11/1/2023
Head Start 0 to 5 Walmart Local Community 

Grant
Walmart

$5,000
Funding for Head Start in-service meeting. 

N/A 12/31/2023

6/30/2023
Health Services - Dental Care 
for Kids

Community and Care 
Transformation Initiative

CareQuest Institute for Oral 
Health $125,000

Hiring a case manager for dental referrals and 
clinical linkages. 7/24/2023 9/20/2023

2/13/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Stop the Hate: Services for 
Survivors and Prevention

California Department of 
Social Services

$800,000

Will provide support for LGBT victims of hate 
crimes, fund hate prevention workshops, and 
increase awareness of resources for low-income 
areas.					 3/27/2023 7/31/2023

6/6/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - LGBTQ+ 
Resource Center

Youth Suicide Prevention 
Media and Outreach 
Campaign

Sierra Health Foundation

$500,000

Will serve youth and practice ongoing youth 
engagement in leadership; prioritize public health 
solutions; develop suicide prevention strategies 
and messaging, collaborate with other 

i ti
5/22/2023 7/28/2023

2023 AWARDED
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Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

 

6/30/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Domestic Victims of Human 
Trafficking Services and 
Outreach Program

Office on Trafficking in 
Persons

$300,000

To build and expand community capacity to deliver 
services to adult and minor victims of human 
trafficking. 8/22/2023 10/1/2023

2/6/2023

Health Services - Dental Care 
for Kids

ComPASS Program National Institutes of Health

$9,827,841

Implementation of a data system and support from 
community health workers to connect families in 
the SBSP program to needed services.					 3/27/2023 5/31/2023

2/24/2023

Training and Employment - 
Workforce Connection 
Young Adult Program

Fresno Regional Workforce 
Development Board 23-24 
(Urban West)

Department of Labor

$891,800

Continued funding for Workforce Connection in 
2023-24.					

3/27/2023 TBA

2/24/2023

Training and Employment - 
Workforce Connection 
Young Adult Program

Fresno Regional Workforce 
Development Board 23-24 
(Rural East)

Department of Labor

$446,880

Continued funding for Workforce Connection in 
2023-24.					

3/27/2023 TBA

2/24/2023

Training and Employment - 
Workforce Connection 
Young Adult Program

Fresno Regional Workforce 
Development Board 23-24 
(Rural West)

Department of Labor

$433,160

Continued funding for Workforce Connection in 
2023-24.					

3/27/2023 TBA

2/21/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - LGBTQ+ 
Resource Center

PPIR Initiative California Department of 
Public Health

$1,200,000

Will increase access for HIV diagnosis and 
treatment for low-income LGBT folks in Fresno 
through HIV screening, increase LGBT 
Competency Trainings for medical providers, and 
provide ongoing client support. 					 3/27/2023 TBA

3/13/2023
Health Services - African 
American Coalition 

Thriving Families 
Partnerships (AAC)

First 5 Fresno County
$120,000

Vaccine clinic, home visits, community outreach 
and awareness.					 3/27/2023 4/28/2023

3/13/2023

Women, Infants, and 
Children (WIC)

Thriving Families 
Partnerships (WIC)

First 5 Fresno County

$120,000

Hiring a referral coordinator to connect WIC 
participants with other needed resources and 
services.					 3/27/2023 4/28/2023

3/3/2023

Health Services - Dental Care 
for Kids

Pioneering Ideas: Exploring 
the Future to Build a Culture 
of Health

Robert Wood Johnson 
Foundation

$2,258,348

Implementation of a data system and support from 
community health workers to connect families in 
the SBSP program to needed services.	 3/27/2023 TBA

3/1/2023
Health Services - African 
American Coalition 

Vaccine Uptake Grant National Council on Aging
$150,000

Vaccine clinic, home visits, community outreach 
and awareness.					 3/27/2023 3/8/2023

2/13/2023
Health Services INCHES Initiative Central Valley Community 

Foundation $130,000
To participate in the CVCF Inches Initiative.

3/27/2023 TBA

4/29/2022
Health Services - African 
American Coalition 

Access Plus Capital Cal Money Smart
$131,974

COVID-19 vaccinations and testing
N/A TBA

9/2/2022
Health Services - African 
American Coalition 

Together We CAN Grow Bristol Myers Squibb
$750,000

COVID-19 vaccinations and testing
N/A TBA

PENDING GRANTS

Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

Grants In Progress

TBA

Transit Systems Volkswagen Environmental 
Mitigation Trust for California

Volkswagen

TBA

Replacing current transit vehicles with electric 
vehicles.

N/A TBA

1/31/2024
LCC - Local Conservation 
Corps (LCC)

Costa Earmark Congressman Jim Costa, CA-
21st District $500,000

This will fund vehicle and heavy equipment for in-
the-field student learning. N/A TBA

2023 NOT AWARDED
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Due Date Program Name Funder Amount 
Requested Summary Board 

Report Date
Date of 
Notice

1/16/2024

Health Services - AFLP 2024-25 Title X Family 
Planning Services  

Essential Access Health 

$500,000

Title X funding is awarded to subrecipients across 
the nation to provide low-income women and men 
below 250% of poverty with quality sexual and 
reproductive health care services. N/A 2/5/2024

2/27/2024

Training and Employment - 
Valley Apprenticeship 
Connections (VAC)

Career Skills Training Department of Energy

$1,000,000

Funding for job training to gain industry-recognized 
certifications in energy efficiency sector. 

N/A 2/20/2024
Grants Submitted

9/28/2023

Sanctuary and Support 
Services - Homeless 
Services 

FY23 Continuum of Care 
Competition and Renewal or 
Replacement of Youth 
Homeless Demonstration 
Program Grants

US Department of Housing 
and Urban Development

TBA

To quickly re-house homeless individuals, families, 
persons fleeing domestic violence, and youth while 
minimizing the trauma and dislocation caused by 
homelessness;and  to promote access to and 
effective utilization of mainstream programs by 
those experiencing homelessness. N/A TBA

10/6/2023
Health Services Early Childhood Wraparound 

Services
CA Dept of Health Care 
Services $1,500,000

Funding for childhood wraparound services, could 
include home visitation or prenatal care. 8/28/2023 1/31/2024

9/15/2023

Training and Employment - 
Summer Youth Internship 
Program

US Bank Letter of Interest US Bank

$75,000

Funding salaries for interns.

N/A TBA

8/18/2023

Foster Grandparent Program Outreach and 
Education/Training Services 
for Access to Technology 
Program

Fresno County DSS

$786,543

Funding will provide education, digital literacy 
training, and ongoing technical support for older 
adults. 

8/28/2023 TBA

8/16/2023
Foster Grandparent Program Advancing Equity in Aging Next 50 Initiative

$97,050
Funding will provide support to organizations who 
serve historically marginalized older adults. 8/28/2023 TBA

8/7/2023
Food Services - Food 
Distributions

Sierra Grant Program Bank of the Sierra
$5,000

Funding food distributions for 2023.
7/24/2023 10/7/2023

8/8/2023
Food Services - Food 
Distributions

Costco Charitable Giving 
Grant

Costco Wholesale
$7,500

Funding food distributions for 2023.
7/24/2023 9/18/2023

11/1/2023
Sanctuary and Support 
Services - CVAHT 

Slave 2 Nothing Grant Slave 2 Nothing Foundation
$45,000

Funding will support low-barrier emergency 
housing for victims of human trafficking. N/A 5/3/2024

11/15/2023

Health Services Fresno HOPE Fresno HOPE Pathways 
Community Hub

$325,000

Funding will support care coordination agencies 
employing community health workers, utilizing the 
Pathways Community HUB Institute™ Model. 11/27/2023 11/24/2023

9/8/2023
LCC - Local Conservation 
Corps (LCC)

CCC Non-Residential Grant California Conservation 
Corps $24,000

Funding will support training and job-readiness for 
corps members. N/A TBA

7/31/2023

LCC - Public Lands 
Conservation and 
Maintenance

Costa Earmark Request Congressman Costa

$500,000

Funding to purchase heavy equipment that will be 
used on public lands/forestry projects.

8/28/2023 TBA

7/28/2023
Health Services - Dental Care 
for Kids

UniHealth Foundation LOI UniHealth Foundation
$2,258,348

Implementation of a data system and support from 
community health workers to connect families in 

     
8/28/2023 9/30/2023

6/27/2023

Health Services - Community 
Health Center

Community-Based 
Approaches to Reducing 
Sexually Transmitted 
Diseases

CDC

$325,000

STI Testing on Community College Campuses, 
and free transportation to clinic if treatment is 
needed.

5/22/2023 8/31/2023

6/13/2023
Training & Employment One Fresno Youth Jobs 

Corps Program Worksites
City of Fresno

$300,000
Provision of work experience for Fresno youth.

6/26/2023 10/13/2023

PENDING GRANTS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
August 17, 2023 

12:00 PM 
  

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Daniel Martinez, Audit Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:04 P.M. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Daniel Martinez, Lupe Jaime-Mileham, Itzi Robles, David Ruiz, Ruben Zarate,  
Teleconference: Daniel Parra  
Absent: Brian King 

 
3. APPROVAL OF April 3, 2023 MINUTES MINUTES 

Public Comment: None heard. 
 
Motion by: Zarate Second by: Jaime-Mileham   
Ayes: Daniel Martinez, Lupe Jaime-Mileham, Itzi Robles, David Ruiz, Ruben Zarate, Daniel Parra 
Nayes: None heard 

 
4. FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORTS             

               
Kip Hudson, CPA, of Hudson Henderson & Company Inc. provided an overview of the programmatic 
financial statements and independents auditor’s reports.   
 
Hudson stated that the State Child Care Program 2021-2022 Audit was presented fairly in all 
material respect and financial position of the organization. The program had revenues of $1,076,190 
and expenses of $1,079,628. Hudson stated there was a finding due to expense being overstated by 
$27, which was not significant but needs to be recorded.  
 
Hudson stated that the Urban CTSA and Rural CTSA 2021-2022 Audit was presented fairly in all 
material respect and financial position of the organization. The Urban program had revenues of 
$4,152,297 and expenses of $4,154,804. The Rural program had revenues and expenses of 
$1,551,169.  
 
Hudson stated that the 401(a) Pension Plan and 403(b) Retirement Plan 2021 Audits had clean 
opinions. The 401(a) Pension Plan had total investment income of $4,924,899, total additions of 
$6,650,945, total deductions of $4,817,024, and ending net assets of $41,942,607. The 403(b) 
Retirement Plan had total investment income of $873,715, total additions of $2,179,088, total 
deductions of $853,874, and ending net assets of $7,532,697. 
 

 
Public Comment: None heard. 

 
Motion by: Parra Second by: Zarate  
Ayes: Daniel Martinez, Lupe Jaime-Mileham, Itzi Robles, David Ruiz, Ruben Zarate, Daniel Parra 
Nayes: None heard 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213 of 300



 

 

 
 

5. AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER  
                           
The Audit Committee Charter was updated to align with the Bylaws. 
 
Motion by: Jaime-Mileham Second by: Parra 
Ayes: Daniel Martinez, Lupe Jaime-Mileham, Itzi Robles, David Ruiz, Ruben Zarate, Daniel Parra 
Nayes: None heard 

 
6. OTHER BUSINESS 

Next meeting:  Thursday, November 2, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Jay Zapata, Interim Chief Financial Officer, shared with the Committee Members that an Audit 
schedule was developed to meet Federal guidelines and an estimated completion date for the Single 
Audit 2022 will be at the end of September. 
 
No action required. 
 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Martinez adjourned the meeting at 12:34P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Chair Martinez, Chair 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
  Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Fresno Economic Opportunities 
Commission (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 
2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Organization as of December 31, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidate Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2022, the Organization adopted new accounting 
guidance FASB ASU 2016-02, Leases.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to 
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available 
to be issued. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 
The Schedule of Grant Revenues and Expenditures – Local Conservation Corps Grant Program and Supplemental 
Statements of Revenues and Expenditures are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the financial statements.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to 
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, Schedule of Grant Revenues and 
Expenditures – Local Conservation Corps Grant Program, Supplemental Statements of Revenues and Expenditures 
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December XX, 2023, on 
our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

 
 
HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC.   

 
Fresno, California 
December XX, 2023
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 FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 17,550,361$         

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 516,616

Investments 175,296

Grants receivable 18,691,374

Other receivables 20,797

Prepaid expenses and deposits 411,492

Loans receivable, current portion 2,125,790

Total current assets 39,491,726           

Noncurrent Assets

Investments in trust 954,203

Inventories 162,533

Loans receivable, net 15,176,377

Operating lease right-to-use assets, net 9,447,663

Fixed assets, net 13,785,685

Total noncurrent assets 39,526,461           

Total Assets 79,018,187$         

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,280,561$           

Salaries and benefits payable 5,865,828

Refundable advances 3,519,144

Health insurance reserve 4,678,992

Other l iabilities 1,254,907

Line of credit 1,650,000

Capital leases, current portion 178,882

Lease liabilities, current portion 1,338,615

Notes payable, current portion 2,010,773

Total current l iabilities 26,777,702           

Long-Term Liabilities

Capital leases, net of current portion 560,441

Lease liabilities, net of current portion 8,149,681

Notes payable, net of current portion 15,455,096

Total long-term liabilities 24,165,218           

Total l iabil ities 50,942,920           

Net Assets

With donor restrictions 635,000                 

Without donor restrictions 27,440,267           

Total net assets 28,075,267           

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 79,018,187$         
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 
 

Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUES

Grant revenue 105,514,947$    350,000$            105,864,947$    

Fee for services 14,494,730 -                       14,494,730        

Contributions 204,415 -                       204,415              

Investment income 2,289,209 -                       2,289,209           

Other income 3,459,713 -                       3,459,713           

In-kind matching contributions 11,136,694 -                       11,136,694        

Net assets released from restrictions:

Satisfaction of program requirements 4,363,392           (4,363,392)         -                       

Total Support and Revenues 141,463,100      (4,013,392)         137,449,708      

EXPENSES

Program Services:

Education 43,472,807        -                       43,472,807        

Employment and training 6,256,608           -                       6,256,608           

Health services 5,034,076           -                       5,034,076           

Housing 3,676,111           -                       3,676,111           

Energy 16,738,737        -                       16,738,737        

Food and nutrition 40,302,210        -                       40,302,210        

Transit 9,047,528           -                       9,047,528           

Other services 3,291,134           -                       3,291,134           

Access Plus Capital 4,263,462           -                       4,263,462           

Other affil iates 1,375                   -                       1,375                   

Total Program Services 132,084,048      -                       132,084,048      

Supporting Services:

General and administration 8,349,393           -                       8,349,393           

Total Expenses 140,433,441      -                       140,433,441      

Excess of Support and Revenues

  over Expenses 1,029,659           (4,013,392)         (2,983,733)         

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Increase in grant funded assets 1,588,976           -                       1,588,976           

Depreciation of grant funded assets (976,139)             -                       (976,139)             

Change in Net Assets 1,642,496           (4,013,392)         (2,370,896)         

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 25,797,771        4,648,392           30,446,163        

Net Assets at End of Year 27,440,267$      635,000$            28,075,267$      

Without Donor 

Restrictions

With Donor 

Restrictions
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 

Education

Employment and 

Training Health Services Housing Energy

Personnel costs 30,038,913$     4,351,357$        3,335,947$        1,499,088$        3,436,051$        

Contract services 8,023,015          937,436             745,639             167,304             2,798,631          

Facility costs 2,149,764          432,262             387,002             1,063,920          648,644             

Travel, mileage & vehicle costs 341,873             114,606             52,546                69,540                164,279             

Equipment costs 540,413             101,079             27,615                54,659                155,087             

Office expense 907,606             136,994             199,157             63,393                435,023             

Insurance expense 255,636             81,722                25,613                19,852                30,150                

Program supplies & client costs 1,887,573          285,077             552,076             247,771             211,913             

Food vouchers -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Util ity vouchers -                      -                      -                      -                      9,159,617          

Depreciation 92,471                50,065                11,371                4,462                  18,167                

Interest -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Other costs 10,722                12,273                216,657             167,810             416                     

In-kind expenses 5,202,537          160,237             -                      526,909             -                      

Subtotal 49,450,523        6,663,108          5,553,623          3,884,708          17,057,978        

Intercompany eliminations (5,977,716)         (406,500)            (519,547)            (208,597)            (319,241)            

Total expenses 43,472,807$     6,256,608$        5,034,076$        3,676,111$        16,738,737$     

Program 

Services
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 

Supporting 

Services

Food and 

Nutrition Transit Other Services

Access Plus 

Capital Other Affil iates

 General and 

Administration

Total 

Expenses

8,060,983$        5,974,458$        1,801,305$        1,841,053$        -$                    5,731,596$           66,070,751$     

1,615,152          1,157,659          581,417             663,905             1,350                  664,546                 17,356,054        

570,853             182,910             336,648             89,401                -                      235,384                 6,096,788          

32,216                2,073,136          36,261                114,917             -                      71,329                   3,070,703          

124,930             43,016                55,319                25,501                -                      280,847                 1,408,466          

277,797             304,405             155,445             154,927             25                        813,650                 3,448,422          

39,527                298,272             18,697                4,396                  -                      35,902                   809,767             

4,485,700          163,040             563,267             413,650             -                      278,058                 9,088,125          

26,159,474        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                          26,159,474        

-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                          9,159,617          

16,762                6,239                  23,626                10,184                -                      43,885                   277,232             

-                      -                      45,971                352,887             -                      48,137                   446,995             

593                     745                     12,988                790,769             -                      176,281                 1,389,254          

510,816             -                      (186,002)                              - -                                             - 6,214,497          

41,894,803        10,203,880        3,444,942          4,461,590          1,375                  8,379,615             150,996,145     

(1,592,593)         (1,156,352)         (153,808)            (198,128)            -                      (30,222)                  (10,562,704)      

40,302,210$     9,047,528$        3,291,134$        4,263,462$        1,375$                8,349,393$           140,433,441$   

Program 

Services
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Change in net assets (2,370,896)$       

Adjustments to reconcile the change in net assets 

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,253,371           

Provision for loan losses and bad debt expense 99,100                 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Grants receivable (1,333,374)          

Other receivables (3,132)                  

Prepaid expenses and deposits (27,070)               

Inventories (14,332)               

Operating lease right-to-use assets, net (9,447,663)          

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,712,598           

Salaries and benefits payable 2,116,422           

Refundable advances (1,454,820)          

Health insurance reserve 754,102              

Lease liabilities 9,488,296           

Net cash provided by operating activities 772,602              

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net sales (purchases) of investments 119,298              

Purchase of capital assets (1,758,579)          

Issuance of loans receivable (5,408,336)          

Collections of loans receivable 4,802,056           

Net cash used by investing activities (2,245,561)          

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Principal payments on notes payable (1,307,290)          

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 3,070,975           

Payments on line of credt (291,814)             

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,471,871           

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (1,088)                  

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 18,068,065         

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, End of Year 18,066,977$      

Reconciliation of Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

  to the Statement of Financial Position

Cash and cash equivalents 17,550,361$      

Cash and cash equivalents restricted for loan loss reserves 516,616              

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, End of Year 18,066,977$      

Supplemental Disclosure:

Interest paid 446,995$            

Financed operating lease right-to-use assets 10,907,386$      
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9 

 
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Organization: Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission (the Organization) is a non-profit corporation 
incorporated in the State of California in 1965. The Organization is a local community human services agency that 
provides assistance to economically and socially disadvantaged persons primarily in the Fresno County region 
through various types of health and welfare services and programs. The majority of the Organization’s funding is 
supported by grants from federal, state, and local governments, with additional sources of revenue from fees for 
services, in-kind contributions, and donor contributions.  
 
Principles of Consolidation: The Organization consolidates for-profit subsidiaries and related non-profit entities in 
which it has a controlling financial interest. The accompanying financial statements reflect the consolidation of the 
financial statements of the Organization and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Western Community Industries, Inc. 
(WCI) and Fresno Executive Plaza, Inc. (FEP). The financial statements also include Fresno Community Development 
Financial Institution (CDFI) and Enterprise Plus Economic Development Center, Inc., which are non-profit public 
benefit corporations exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3). In 2017, Fresno CDFI underwent a 
branding campaign and is now doing business as Access Plus Capital. All significant inter-company accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated. WCI and FEP do not have any significant operations and are considered inactive. 
 
Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board in its Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities: Presentation of 
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Under Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) Topic 958, the 
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two 
classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. 
 

Net assets without donor restrictions are the portion of net assets over which the governing board has 
discretionary control for the general operations of the Organization. The only limits on net assets without 
donor restrictions are limits resulting from contractual agreements. 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions are the portion of net assets resulting from contribution, pledges, and other 
inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed restrictions that expire by the 
passage of time or usage, and the portion of net assets restricted by external parties (donors, grantors, or laws 
and regulations) in ways that are not dependent on the passage of time. 
 

Method of Accounting:  The Organization uses the accrual basis method of accounting in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Cost Allocations:  The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than 
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is 
consistently applied and that is also in accordance with guidance of any specific funding terms and conditions 
associated with the funding received. Allocated expenditures for shared costs include compensation and benefits, 
which are allocated either on the basis of actual time tracking or estimates of time and effort such as may be 
extrapolated from a time study. Costs such as contract services are allocated to the program which receives the 
benefit and may be further allocated based on clients, employees, or number of service units. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

10 

 
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Cost Allocations (continued):  Facility costs, including depreciation, are predominantly occupied by a single program 
but as needed such costs are further allocated based on square footage. Computer and software related costs are 
allocated based on the number of users or computers by functional category. Non-personnel insurance is allocated 
based on number of vehicles, square footage occupied, property valuation, or number of employees/volunteers, as 
appropriate for the type of coverage being allocated. Operating costs are allocated based on the number of 
employees/clients/users who benefit from the item being allocated. Costs directly linked to a client or an employee 
are allocated based on the program under which they are served or employed, respectively. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For purposes of reporting the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all 
cash accounts and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three (3) months or less 
to be cash equivalents.  Certificates of deposit with original maturity dates of greater than three (3) months are 
classified as investments. 
 
Grants Receivable:  Grants receivable consist of the amounts due from grantors on their promises to give or amounts 
as earned under the grant agreement.  Grants receivable are stated at the amounts the Organization expects to 
collect.  The Organization utilizes the allowance method for accounting for and reporting uncollectible or doubtful 
accounts.  The provision for uncollectible amounts is computer based upon historical averages and management’s 
consideration of current economic factors that could affect collections. At December 31, 2022, management 
considered all grants receivable to be fully collectible and, therefore, no allowance against grants receivable was 
recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Other Receivables:  Other receivables consist of the amounts due from other organizations or agencies for which 
services have been rendered and fees are payable to the Organization.  The Organization utilizes the allowance 
method for accounting for and reporting uncollectible or doubtful accounts.  At December 31, 2022, management 
considered all accounts receivable to be fully collectible and, therefore, no allowance against other receivables was 
recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
In-Kind Matching Contributions:  The Organization receives a significant number of donated materials, facilities, and 
services from volunteers and other entities, primarily relating to the Head Start program. Donated in-kind 
contributions are recognized as contributions if they have ascertainable fair values. Donated services are recognized 
as contributions if they 1) significantly enhance non-financial assets or 2) involve a professional service that would 
otherwise have been purchased and whose values can be objectively measured. 
 
Inventories: Inventories consist of transportation parts and supplies, medication and food supplies. Inventories are 
stated at the lower of cost or market, determined by the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Fixed Assets:  All purchased fixed assets in excess of $5,000 are valued at cost where historical records are available 
and at an estimated historical cost when no historical record exists. Donations of fixed assets are recorded as support 
at their estimated fair market values at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as unrestricted support 
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with restrictions regarding 
their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire capital assets are reported as restricted support. 
Absent donor stipulations regarding length of time, those donated or acquired assets are placed in service as 
instructed by the donor. Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives 
of between 5 and 10 years. 
 
Operating Lease Right-to-Use Assets:  The Organization has recorded operating lease right-to-use lease assets as a 
result of implementing FASB ASU 2016-02, Leases. The operating right-to-use asset is initially measured at an amount 
equal to the initial measurement of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, 
less lease incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The operating lease right-
to-use assets are intangible capital asset and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related leases. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Inter-Company Eliminations: Under certain grant agreements, the Organization is authorized to allocate facility 
expense, as a space usage allowance, for facilities which it owns, to its programs at a rate that is supported by actual 
cost incurred, as well as allocate indirect administrative services costs. The Organization also provides food and 
transit services to multiple programs. The Organization recognizes both inter-company facility income and facility 
cost for the allocation of facilities, fees for service income and administrative services expenses for the allocation of 
administrative services, and fees for service income and program costs for food and transit services, related to these 
programs. These inter-company activities have been eliminated during consolidation in the Consolidated Statement 
of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The total amount of inter-company eliminations 
for the year ended December 31, 2022 related to facility activities, administrative services, food, transit and other 
services was $10,562,704. 
 
Revolving Loan Fund:  The receipt of grant funding from various Federal and non-Federal sources for the purpose of 
issuing loans to eligible clients has generated a funding pool for the continued issuance of future loans. Management 
has determined that there will be no future claims against these funds. The funds will continue to be issued in 
accordance with the ongoing business purpose of the Organization. The funds are included in net assets without 
donor restrictions. 
 
California Capital Access Program for Small Business (CalCAP):  The Organization participates in the California Capital 
Access Program for Small Business (CalCAP) program administered by the California Pollution Control Financing 
Authority to encourage banks and other financial institutions to make loans to small businesses that have difficulty 
obtaining financing. CalCAP is a form of loan portfolio insurance that may provide up to 100% coverage on certain 
loan defaults. Eligible loans up to $2.5 million may be enrolled for loans as large as $5 million with a maximum 
lender/borrower contribution for any single borrower in a three-year period of $100,000. Authorized claim 
reimbursements shall not exceed the enrolled amount of the qualified loan that form the basis of the claim, except 
for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. Additionally, claim reimbursements in excess of the Loss Reserve Account 
will not be made. Eligible small businesses must be based within California and be classified as a small business. Their 
business activity resulting from the enrolled loans must be created and retained in California. 
 
Loans Receivable:  Loans receivable consists of loans made to microbusiness and small business borrowers and are 
carried at their outstanding principal balances, net of an allowance for loan losses. Loan origination fees are 
recognized immediately, which management has determined is not materially different from accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Interest income is accrued on principal loan balances.   The Organization accrues interest on past due loans at the 
regular rate of interest or at the default rate of interest for loans that are in default. Loans may be placed on 
nonaccrual status when any portion of the principal or interest is ninety days past due or earlier when concern exists 
as to the ultimate collectability of principal or interest, as evaluated. The Organization makes every effort to collect 
all interest payments from the borrower even after loans are placed on nonaccrual status for accounting purposes.  
 
Loans return to accrual status when principal and interest become current and are anticipated to be fully collectible. 
Payments received on nonaccrual loans receivable are first applied to outstanding principal or interest depending 
on the circumstances of each particular loan. 
 
Loan Loss Reserves:  The Organization is required to create cash loan loss reserve accounts to cover potential losses 
arising from defaulted loans. The reserve funds cover losses from the unguaranteed portion of defaulted loans as 
well as possible repairs and denials associated with the guarantee on the defaulted loans.  The loan loss reserves are 
presented in the Statement of Financial Position as cash and cash equivalents restricted for loan loss reserves.  The 
balance of the cash and cash equivalents restricted for loan loss reserves as of December 31, 2022 is $516,616.
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Allowance for Loan Losses:  Management’s determination of the level of the allowance for loan losses rests upon 
various judgments and assumptions, including current and projected economic conditions, prior loan loss 
experience, the value of the underlying collateral, continuing review of the loans, and evaluation of credit risk. 
Management considers the allowance for loan losses adequate to cover losses inherent in loans and loan 
commitments. However, because of uncertainties associated with these judgments and assumptions, it is reasonably 
possible that management’s estimate of loan losses and the related allowance may change materially in the near-
term. The allowance is increased or decreased by a provision (recapture) for loan losses, which is charged to expense 
and reduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries. The balance of the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2022 
was estimated at 5% of the outstanding loan portfolio. 
 
A large portion of the Organization’s portfolio has the additional 90% to 95% guarantee from the CalCAP and other 
state guarantors. As of December 31, 2022, 16.75% of the loans receivable portfolio had the additional guarantee 
from Small Business Administration (SBA), State, or other providers.   
 
Refundable Advances:  The Organization receives grant awards from funding sources to provide services and direct 
loan programs. The grants are recognized as the required services are performed or loans are issued.  Accordingly, 
revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
Compensated Absences: Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation, depending on length of service 
and other factors. The Organization recognizes compensated absences as a liability for amounts due to staff 
employees for accrued vacation at pay rates currently in effect for the employee. Accrued compensated absences 
are recorded in the salaries and benefits payable line item on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.  Total 
compensated absences were $1,877,158 as of December 31, 2022. 
 
Lease Liabilities: The Organization’s lease liabilities are measured at the present value of payments expected to be 
made by the Organization during the lease terms. As lease payments are made, the Organization will reduce the 
liability and recognize lease expense. 
 
Contributions:  Contributions consist primarily of amounts received from financial institutions, federal, state and 
local agencies.  The Organization recognizes all contributions when they are received or unconditionally promised, 
regardless of compliance with restrictions.  Contributions without donor-imposed restrictions are reported as net 
assets without donor restrictions.  Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions are reported as net assets with 
donor restrictions.  When the time or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are 
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported as net assets released from restrictions.   
 
Conditional contributions and promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional; that is when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  As of December 31, 2022, there were no conditional 
contributions.  Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an appropriate rate commensurate 
with the anticipated cash flow and risks involved.  Amortization of the discount is recorded as additional contribution 
revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the contributions.  As of December 31, 2022, the 
Organization did not have contributions to be received after one year. 
 
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that require specialized skills, are 
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, 
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.   
 
Government Grants and Contracts:  Government grants and contracts consists of grants from the federal 
government, financial institutions, and other not for profit organizations.  Grants are utilized to support the 
Organization’s lending programs.  Grant funding received is recognized as unearned income until the revenue is 
earned. 
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Exchange Transactions:  Revenues earned from fees for service, loan originations fees, and late fees are considered 
to be exchange transactions.  Revenues from exchange transactions are reported gross of any related expense in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 
Functional Expenses:  The costs of the Organization’s various activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
in the accompanying Statements of Activities and Functional Expenses.  Expenses are allocated to program and 
supporting services based upon employee’s time for each function, purpose of each expenditure, and service 
provided for each program. 
 
Advertising:  Advertising costs, except for costs associated with direct-response advertising, are charged to 
operations when incurred. The costs of direct-response advertising are capitalized and amortized over the period 
during which future benefits are expected to be received. There were no capitalized costs. Advertising costs of 
$242,568 were incurred during the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
Income Taxes:  The Organization is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
and Section 23701(d) of the State of California Corporate Code.  The Organization is subject to taxation on any 
unrelated business income.   
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the Organization’s management to 
evaluate tax positions taken by the Organization and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Organization has taken 
an uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue 
Service. The Organization’s management has analyzed the tax positions taken and has concluded that, as of 
December 31, 2022, there were no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition 
of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the financial statements. The Organization is subject to routine audits by taxing 
jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. 
 
The Organization files tax forms in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the State of California.  The Organization is 
generally no longer subject to examination by these agencies for years before December 31, 2019. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 
grants receivable, other receivables, prepaid expenses and deposits, accounts payable, line of credit, accrued 
liabilities, and refundable advances, none of which are held for trading purposes.  The fair values of all financial 
instruments do not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of the financial instruments recorded in the 
accompanying Statement of Financial Position.  The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate 
fair value because of the short-term maturities of those instruments. 
 
Concentrations of Credit Risk:  Financial instruments which potentially subject the Organization to concentration of 
credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents and loans receivable.   
 
The Organization maintains several bank accounts at different banks. Interest and non-interest bearing accounts at 
the institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Occasionally, 
account balances at some of these institutions exceed federally insured limits. Excess amounts are reviewed at least 
semi-annually at the Executive Committee and full board meetings. Staff monitors these accounts quarterly for 
opportunities to reallocate idle funds between existing institutions as available, resulting in risk reduction. All funds 
are invested in financial institutions with high credit ratings. The Organization has not experienced any losses related 
to such investments. The Organization currently has accounts with three bank institutions in excess of FDIC limits as 
of December 31, 2022.  The total amount of cash in excess of FDIC limits as of December 31, 2022, was $13,792,695.  
Management considers this a normal business risk and has not experienced any losses in the past as a result of cash 
concentration. 
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated events that have 
occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be disclosed in these consolidated financial 
statements.  Management has determined that no events require disclosure in accordance with accounting 
standards.  These subsequent events have been evaluated through December XX, 2023, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
The following table reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of December 31, 2022, reduced by amounts not 
available for general expenditures within one year.  Financial assets are considered unavailable when illiquid or not 
convertible to cash within one year.  Other considerations of non-liquid assets are donor restricted assets for specific 
expenditures, contractual reserve requirements, or governing board designations. 
 

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 17,550,361$  

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 516,616          

Investments 175,296          

Grants receivable 18,691,374     

Other receivables 20,797             

Investments in trust 954,203          

Loans receivable 17,302,167

Total financial assets 55,210,814     

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year 

  due to:

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 516,616          

Loans receivable, net of amounts due within one year 13,050,587     

Net assets with donor restrictions 635,000          

Total amounts unavailable for general expenditures 14,202,203     

Total financial assets available for general 

  expenditures within one year 41,008,611$  

 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
The Organization’s cash and cash equivalents consist of the following as of December 31, 2022: 
 

Cash in banks 14,233,383$  

Petty cash 5,380               

Certificates of deposit 2,089,951       

Money market funds 1,221,647

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,550,361$  
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NOTE 4 – RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of loan loss reserves of $516,616 as of December 31, 2022.  The 
Organization is required to create loan loss reserve accounts to cover potential losses arising from defaulted loans.  
The reserve funds cover losses from the unguaranteed portion of defaulted loans as well as possible repairs and 
denials associated with the guarantee on the defaulted loans. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments, as presented as their fair value as of December 31, 2022 are summarized as follows: 
 

Stocks and ETFs 17,665$          

Corporate Bonds Fixed Income 954,203

Investments in trust 157,631

Total Investments 1,129,499$     

 
 
NOTE 6 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
The Organization applies generally accepted accounting principles for fair value measurements of financial assets 
and liabilities. These accounting principles define fair value and establish a hierarchy that prioritizes fair value 
measurements based on the types of inputs used for the various valuation techniques. The Organization uses 
appropriate valuation techniques to determine value based on inputs available. There have been no changes in the 
valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value at December 31, 2022. 
 
When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most 
reliable evidence of fair value. Level 3 inputs are only used when Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available. The 
following description summarizes the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying Statement of Financial Position. 
 
The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows: 
 
 Level 1 - Values measured using quoted prices in active markets for identical investments. The fair value of 
these financial instruments and investments is based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes in active markets. 
The fair value of the Organization’s investments were all measured using quoted market prices in active markets for 
the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
 Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs 
are observable, either directly or indirectly. The Organization did not have any input into the fair value of Level 2 
investments. The Organization did not have any assets reported at fair value with Level 2 inputs for the year ended 
December 31, 2022.  
 
 Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value 
measurement. The Organization did not have any assets reported at fair value with Level 3 inputs for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. 
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NOTE 6 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 
 
The table below presents the level within the fair value hierarchy at which investments are measured at December 
31, 2022: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Stocks and ETFs 17,665$          -$                 -$                 17,665$          

Corporate Bonds Fixed Income 954,203 -                   -                   954,203

Investments in trust 157,631 -                   -                   157,631

1,129,499$     -$                 -$                 1,129,499$     

 
 
NOTE 7 – LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
The Organization administers various direct lending programs in accordance with grant and loan agreements for a 
revolving loan program. The Organization provides financing to borrowers under specific terms of each of the lending 
programs available. These notes include interest-bearing receivables and are due upon maturity. The interest rate 
associated with each note varies depending on the credit worthiness of the borrowers. Some loans receivable are 
collateralized by the pledged assets of the borrower’s notes, if available. 
 
Loans receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2022: 
 

Grant program related loans, 3.25% to 9% interest annually, 

  principal payments due at various times, secured by various

  assets: 18,401,659$           

Allowance for Loan Losses (1,099,492)               

Loans Receivable - Net of Allowance for Loan Losses 17,302,167$           
 

 
 
NOTE 8 – ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 
 
The Organization’s risk management policies ensure the Organization has a sufficient loan loss reserve. The 
Organization’s policy is to maintain both a funded loan loss reserve (cash restricted to replenish the loan fund 
following any loan losses) as well as an allowance for loan losses that reflects the risk exposure in the loan portfolio. 
The Organization’s risk rating methodology applies loan loss reserve requirements using the following scale: 1-
Excellent, 2-Very Good/Good, 3-Substandard, and 4-Doubtful. The reserve is evaluated quarterly and adjusted to 
maintain a reasonable reserve balance. If risk exposure is mitigated by a loan guarantee, the maximum loan loss 
reserve allocation is the amount of the unguaranteed portion of the loan. 
 
A large portion of the Organization’s portfolio has the additional protection of a third-party guarantee from the 
CalCAP, the SBA and others.  If any portion of a loan is deemed uncollectible, a full or partial charge-off against the 
loan loss reserve is made to assure that the value of the loan program’s assets is stated as accurately as possible 
when disclosed.  
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NOTE 8 – ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 
 
The allowance for loan losses consisted of the following for the year ended December 31, 2022: 
 

Allowance for Loan Losses

Beginning balance 1,049,407$              

Charge-offs (49,015)                    

Provision for bad debt 99,100                      

Allowance for Loan Losses - Ending Balance 1,099,492$              
 

The balance of the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2022 is $1,099,492.  The provision for bad debt for 
the year ended December 31, 2022 was $99,100. 
 
The following is a summary of the Organization’s age analysis of past due financing receivables at December 31, 
2022: 

30-60 Days Past 

Due

61-90 Days Past 

Due

Greater than 90 

Days Past Due Total Past Due Current Due Total Due

Loans Receivable 123,886$              -$                    254,773$            378,659$              18,023,000$        18,401,659$        

 
 
Impaired Loans:  The Organization considers a loan to be impaired when it is deemed probable by management that 
the Organization will be unable to collect all contractual interest and contractual principal payments in accordance 
with the terms of the original loan agreement. Impaired loans include all loans that: (i) are contractually delinquent 
90 days or more; (ii) meet the definition of a troubled debt restructuring; (iii) are classified in part or in whole as 
either doubtful or loss; and (iv) have been placed on non-accrual status. The Organization may also classify other 
loans as impaired based upon their specific circumstances. Loans identified as impaired are evaluated and have a 
specific loss allowance applied to adjust the loan to fair value, or the impaired amount is charged off. The 
Organization accounts for impaired loans at the value of outstanding principal. Payments received on impaired non-
accrual loans may be allocated between principal and interest or may be recorded entirely as a reduction in principal 
based upon management’s opinion of the ultimate risk of loss on the individual loan. Interest income on impaired 
loans is recognized on an accrual basis. There were no loans considered to be impaired as of December 31, 2022. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – FIXED ASSETS 
 
Fixed assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2022: 
 

Land 856,323$                 

Buildings and improvements 34,218,670

Equipment 14,791,657

Construction in process 11,650

Fixed Assets, Gross 49,878,300              

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (36,092,615)            

Fixed Assets, Net 13,785,685$           

 
 

Depreciation expense, including grant funded depreciation, for the year ended December 31, 2022, was 
$1,253,371. 
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NOTE 10 – OPERATING LEASE RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS 
 
The Organization recorded operating lease right-to-use assets. The assets are for a right-to-use office facilities. The 
related leases and associated liabilities are discussed in Note 16. Operating lease right-to-use assets activity for the 
year ended December 31, 2022, were as follows: 
 

Beginning Retirements/ Ending

Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Right-to-use Asset

Right-to-use office facilities -$                10,907,386$ (1,459,723)$  9,447,663$    

Total Operating Right-to-use Assets -$                10,907,386$ (1,459,723)$  9,447,663$    

 
 
NOTE 11 – REFUNDABLE ADVANCES 
 
Refundable advances consists of advanced grants for the year ended December 31, 2022.  The total balance of 
refundable advances as of December 31, 2022, was $3,519,144. 
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NOTE 12 – NOTES PAYABLE 
 
Notes payable as of December 31, 2022, consists of the following: 
 

Lending Institution Security Interest Rate Payments Maturity Date Current Long-term Total

APC Letter of Credit Unsecured 0.0% Monthly 11/2023 500,000$       -$              500,000$       

BBVA USA (EQ2) Unsecured 2.8% Quarterly 12/2029 -                700,000         700,000         

Beneficial State Bank Unsecured 3.5%-4.00% Monthly 06/2021 501,245         -                501,245         

Citibank, N.A. Investments 2.0% Monthly- Interest Only 12/2023 700,000         -                700,000         

City of Fresno Unsecured 0.0% At Maturity 12/2030 -                229,131         229,131         

Community Action Financial 

  Institute, Inc. Unsecured 1.0% Quarterly 04/2025 -                100,000         100,000         

Community Action Financial 

  Institute, Inc. Unsecured 1.0% Quarterly 07/2024 -                350,000         350,000         

Department of Parks & Recreation Unsecured 2.5% Annual 08/2029 -                555,737         555,737         

Farmers & Merchants Bank of 

  Central California Unsecured 3.0% Quarterly 04/2024 -                1,000,000      1,000,000      

Google Endeavor LLC 

  Opportunity Finance Network

Variable

1.00%-3.00% 05/2030 -                2,000,000      2,000,000      

MUFG Union Bank (EQ2 LOC) Unsecured 2.0% Monthly 04/2026 -                500,000         500,000         

Mechanics Bank (EQ2 loan #1) Unsecured 4.01% Quarterly 05/2022 -                1,000,000      1,000,000      

Mechanics Bank (EQ2 loan #2) Unsecured 4.01% Quarterly 05/2022 500,000         -                500,000         

Sierra Health Foundation Unsecured 2.25% Quarterly 07/2027 -                1,000,000      1,000,000      

Tri Counties Bank (EQ2) Unsecured 3.0% At Maturity 08/2024 -                1,995,576      1,995,576      

U.S Bancorp Community 

  Development

Revolving 

Loan Funds 2.35% Quarterly 07/2024 -                2,000,000      2,000,000      

U.S Department of Agriculture 

  (CDFI loan #1)

Revolving 

Loan Funds 2.0% Monthly 12/2030 29,028           210,606         239,634         

U.S Department of Agriculture 

  (IRP loan #1)

Revolving 

Loan Funds 1.0% Monthly 04/2047 17,511           353,923         371,434         

U.S Department of Agriculture 

  (IRP loan #2)

Revolving 

Loan Funds 1.0% Monthly 06/2044 17,052           400,279         417,331         

U.S. Small Business Administration 

  (loan #3)

Revolving 

Loan Funds

Variable

0-0.75% Monthly 09/2023 82,369           -                82,369           

U.S. Small Business Administration 

  (loan #4)

Revolving 

Loan Funds 0.0% Monthly 07/2026 44,444           114,815         159,259         

U.S. Small Business Administration 

  (loan #5)

Revolving 

Loan Funds 0.00%-1.00% Monthly 11/2031 61,111           538,889         600,000         

U.S. Small Business Administration 

  (Lending Pilot Program)

Revolving 

Loan Funds 1% Monthly 08/2031 58,013           456,140         514,153         

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Unsecured 2.0% At Maturity 11/2024 -                500,000         500,000         

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (EQ2) Unsecured 2.0% Quarterly 10/2028 -                750,000         750,000         

Wells Fargo Community 

Development Unsecured 2.0% Quarterly 11/2030 -                200,000         200,000         

Wells Fargo Line of Credit LOC 1.5% + LIBOR Monthly 10/1/2021 1,650,000      -                1,650,000      

Total notes payable 4,160,773$     14,955,096$   19,115,869$   

December 31, 2022

 
Scheduled future principal payments of notes payable are as follows: 
 

Total

2,010,773$        

7,349,137          

696,545              

834,863              

566,749              

5,507,802          

16,965,869$      

Thereafter

Total Minimum 

Principal Payments

Year End 

December 31,

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

 
Total interest expense on the notes payable for the year ended December 31, 2022, was $367,910. 
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NOTE 13 – CAPITAL LEASES 
 
The Organization entered into a capital lease in 2021 for the acquisition, with a bargain purchase option upon the 
completion of the lease, for window replacements, an AC unit and Meraz roofing for the Franklin Head Start building.  
The lease term is for forth-eight (48) months, with a monthly payment of $10,057.  Upon completion of the lease 
term, the equipment may be purchased for one month’s payment, or $10,057. 
 
The Organization entered into a capital lease in 2021 for the acquisition, with a bargain purchase option upon the 
completion of the lease, for an LED lighting retrofit project.  The lease term is for eighty-four (84) months, with a 
monthly payment of $7,546.  Upon completion of the lease term, the equipment may be purchased for $1. 
 
Future minimum lease payments on the capital leases are as follows: 
 

Total
178,882$             
188,498                
135,500                

79,818                  
84,204                  
72,421                  

739,323$             

Thereafter

Total

Year End 

December 31,
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

 
Interest expense on the capital leases for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $39,542. 
 
 
NOTE 14 – LINE OF CREDIT 
 
The Organization has a revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo bank with a total credit limit of $2,400,000.  The line 
is renewed annually in October.  Interest is calculated based on a 360-day year fluctuating interest of 1.5% above 
LIBOR rate.  The interest accrued on outstanding principal balance is payable on the first day of each month.  The 
LIBOR daily rate at December 31, 2022 was 1.55%.  The outstanding principal balance on the line of credit as of 
December 31, 2022 was $1,650,000.  Interest expense incurred on the line of credit for the year ended December 
31, 2022 was $39,543. 
 
 
NOTE 15 – SELF-INSURED HEALTH COVERAGE 
 
In 1989, the Organization adopted a self-insured health plan (the “Plan”) to provide health and welfare benefits for 
its employees, and to maintain a reserve equal to approximately four months of benefit premiums and payments. 
As part of the Plan, the Organization has contracted outside administrative services to account for and maintain the 
Plan, with disbursement of Plan benefits provided by third party claims administrators and other benefits 
consultants. In addition, the Organization carries excess insurance for risks of loss from claims in excess of $175,000 
per eligible participant with a total of $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 
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NOTE 16 – LEASE LIABILITIES 
 
The Organization is liable for forty three operating lease agreement for the rental of its office operating sites The 
lease agreement for the office location expires on May 31, 2027. The lease agreements have various terms, with 
ending dates in the range of 2023 through 2050.  The monthly rental payments range in amount, from $700 to 
$19,844. The total outside rental expense incurred by the Organization for facilities during the year ended December 
31, 2022 was $1,571,395.  The Organization also had miscellaneous equipment rental of $303,398 for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, which was expensed.  The Organization used the risk-free rate as the discount rate, which 
ranged from 0.08% to 4.1%, at the inception of the leases. Activity related to the lease liability is as follows for the 
year ended December 31, 2022: 
 

Beginning Retirements/ Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Adjustments Balance One Year

Lease liabilities -$                 10,907,386$  (1,419,090)$   9,488,296$    1,338,615$    

 
Minimum future lease payments under noncancellable operating leases are as follows: 
 

Total

1,390,797$        

1,258,434          

1,171,329          

1,047,130          

904,633              

4,341,107          

10,113,430$      

Thereafter

Total minimum

lease payments

Year End 

December 31,

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

 
 
NOTE 17 – NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
 
The net assets with donor restrictions as of December 31, 2022, are related to funds designated by the Board for a 
special purpose or funds received with restrictions imposed on them by governmental agencies limiting their use to 
a specific purpose and stipulations regarding their segregation from other funds.  All net assets with donor 
restrictions for the year ended December 31, 2022 are restricted from funding received with restrictions imposed 
on them, less amounts expended during the year.  Net assets with donor restrictions amounted to $635,000 as of 
December 31, 2022. 
 
 
NOTE 18 – PENSION PLAN 
 
The Organization contributes to a defined contribution pension plan which covers eligible employees of the 
Organization. Employees are eligible upon completion of two years of service and a minimum 1,000 hours of service 
requirement without an intervening break. The Organization contributes an amount equal to five percent of the 
compensation earned by each eligible participant. Employer contributions are vested immediately.  The Organization 
contributed $1,813,123 to the pension plan for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
The Organization also has a 403(b) and 457 Plan for voluntary contributions for eligible employees. The Organization 
does not contribute to the plan 403(b) plan; contributions to the 457 plan for the year ended December 31, 2022 
totaled $18,750. 
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NOTE 19 – NONMONETARY TRANSACTIONS  
 
WIC Food Vouchers:  The Organization receives a grant from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, passed through the 
California State Department for the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC). As 
part of this grant, the Organization prints and distributes food vouchers to its participants. During the year ended 
December 31, 2022, the estimated value of these vouchers totaled $26,159,474, which is included in the 
Organization’s grant income and program expenses, respectively. 
 
Emergency Utility Payments:  The Organization receives a grant from the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services, passed through the California State Department of Community Services and Development for the Low 
Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP). As part of this grant, the Organization processes applications for 
emergency utility payments, which are then paid by the State of California directly to the utility provider. The 
estimated value of these payments during the year ended December 31, 2022 was $9,159,617, which is included in 
the Organization’s grant income and program expenses, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 20 – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY AND CONCENTRATIONS 
 
The Organization received approximately 69% of its funding from federal granting agencies for the year ended 
December 31, 2022.  Approximately 95% of its grants receivable balance per the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position is from these federal granting agencies, of which 24% of its grants receivable is from one grantor agency.  
Discontinuance of funding from these federal and state sources could have an adverse effect on the Organization’s 
ability to continue its operations. 
 
 
NOTE 21 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  
 
Grants:  Contingencies contained within grants awarded to the Organization are subject to the donor’s established 
criteria under which loans may be funded from the related grants.  Should the loans and expenses funded not comply 
with the established criteria, the Organization could be held responsible for the repayments to the funding source 
for any disallowed loans and expenses.  Management is not aware of any material questioned costs. 
 
 
NOTE 22 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
FASB ASU 2016-02, Leases, establishes specific criteria used to account for contracts that meet the definition of a 
lease. Implementation of ASU 2016-02 requires the lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-
use asset. 
 
ASU 2016-02 was established to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about leasing activities. As 
of December 31, 2022, the Organization had forty three leases that met the criteria of ASU 2016-02 and the 
Organization has implemented the standard accordingly. As of December 31, 2022, the Organization recognized 
operating lease right-to-use assets of $9,447,663 and a lease liability of $9,488,296 for the leases in which the 
Organization is a lessee. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Pass through California State Department of Food and Agriculture:

Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants,

and Children 10.557 19-10147 A03 4,398,590$         -$                      

Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants,

and Children 10.557 22-10247 A02 1,472,399            -                        

Non-cash assistance - WIC Vouchers 19-10147 A03 19,433,504         -                        

Non-cash assistance - WIC Vouchers 22-10247 A02 6,725,969            -                        

Subtotal 32,030,462         -                        

WIC Farmer's Market Nutrition Program 10.572 19-10147 A03 1,900                    -                        

Pass through California State Department of Education:

Children, Youth and Families at Risk 10.521 01183-CACFP-10-NP-SOIC 109,612               -                        
Children, Youth and Families at Risk 10.521 01183-CACFP-10-NP-SOIC 48,656                 -                        

Subtotal 158,268               -                        

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 01183-CACFP-10-NP-SOIC 996,123               -                        

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 23254-J067 3,556                    -                        

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 23254-J067 8,232                    -                        

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 10-62166-1030642-01 1,661                    -                        

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 10-62166-1030642-01 5,893                    -                        

Subtotal 1,015,465            -                        

Summer Food Service Program 10.559 01183-SFSP-10 57,679                 -                        

Summer Food Service Program 10.559 01183-SFSP-10 1,433                    -                        

Subtotal 59,112                 -                        

Pass through Ecology Center:

Food Insecurity Nutrition Incentive Program 10.331 19-0807-001-SF 44,354                 -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 33,309,561         -                        

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1090L9T142007 223,419$             -$                      

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1090L9T142108 139,605               -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1481L9T142106 75,498                 -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1481L9T142005 208,468               -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1568L9T142004 113,924               -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1570L9T142004 266,952               -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1570L9T142105 126,721               -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1761L9T142103 10,642                 -                        

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 CA1761L9T142002 203,533               -                        

Subtotal 1,368,762            -                        

Pass through City of Fresno Development and Resource

      Management Department, Housing and Development Division:

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 ---- 48,216                 -                        

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-18-MC-06-0001 36,516                 -                        

Subtotal 84,732                 -                        

Pass through The Regents of University of California:

Community Development Block Grant 14.218 UFRA-359 OBPTBA3CI 7,001                    -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 1,460,495            -                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

Youth Conservation 15.546 R20AC00095 39,186                 -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 39,186                 -                        

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320 15POVC-21-GG-03954-HT 78,809$               -$                      

Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320 2019-VM-BX-0010 104,098               -                        

Subtotal 182,907               -                        

Mentoring for Youth Affected by the Opioid Crisis and Drug Addtiction16.726 15P JDP-21-GG-02740-MENT 54,358                 -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 237,265               -                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Pass through Fresno Regional Workforce Investment Board:

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 310-301 95,524                 -                        

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 310-301 100,107               -                        

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 310-301 423,363               -                        

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 310-301 446,957               -                        

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 310-301 274,016               -                        

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 646-0844 57,946                 -                        

Workforce Investment Act Youth Activities 17.259 646-1212 14,901                 -                        

Subtotal 1,412,814            -                        

Pass through Youthbuild USA:
YouthBuild/DOL 17.274 YB-34315-19-60-A-6 509,122               -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 1,921,936            -                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Pass through County of Fresno

Coronavirus Relief Fund (CARES Act) 21.019 D-20-316 57,002                 -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 57,002                 -                        

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Intermediary Loan Program 59.062 48111450-00 515,350               -                        

TOTAL U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 515,350               -                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Pass through California State Department of Community Services and Development:

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 20C-6005 369,081               -                        

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 22C-6004 44,038                 -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 413,119               -                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Pass through Fresno Unified School District:

Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 S010A210005 51,947                 -                        

Title II - Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 S367A210005 5,489                    -                        

Title IV - Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 S424A210005 10,000                 -                        

Title IV - Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 S424A210005 125                       -                        

Subtotal 10,125                 -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ELO-G) 84.425 -- 9,488                    -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (GEER II) 84.425 S425DC210012 1,435                    -                        

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (continued)

Pass through Fresno Unified School District: (continued)

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER II) 84.425 S425D210016 82,402                 -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER II) 84.425 S425D210016 11,391                 -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER II) 84.425 S425D210016 6,253                    -                        

Subtotal 100,046               -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER III) 84.425 S425U210016 52,198                 -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER III) 84.425 S425U210016 1,050                    -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER III) 84.425 S425U210016-21A 4,076                    -                        

Education Stabilization Fund (ESSER III) 84.425 S425U210016-21A 7,027                    -                        

Subtotal 64,351                 -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 242,881               -                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Head Start 93.600 09CH01203102-01 37,649,765         -                        

Head Start 93.600 09HE00140401-C5 49,000                 -                        

Head Start 93.600 09HE00140401-C6 360,000               -                        

Subtotal 38,058,765         -                        

Runaway and Homeless 93.623 90CY7380/01 124,387               -                        

Special Programs for the Aging - Title III-C-1 Site Management 93.045 22-0095 916,807               -                        

Special Programs for the Aging - Title III-C-1 Site Management 93.045 23-0095 647,428               -                        

Subtotal 1,564,235            -                        

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title
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28 

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (continued)

Center for Disease Control and Prevention 93.268 CA22CCO010-A1 63,576                 -                        

Center for Disease Control and Prevention 93.268 CA22CC00010 263,743               -                        

Center for Disease Control and Prevention 93.268 CA22CC00200 199,302               -                        

Subtotal 526,621               -                        

Pass through The Regents of the University of California:

Promoting Optimal Health for Rural Youth 93.297 TP1AH000233 356,261               -                        

Pass through US Committee For Refugees and Immigrants:

National Human Trafficking Victim Assistance Program 93.598 90ZV0137 15,717                 -                        

Pass through California State Department of Community

Services and Development:

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 21F-4010 937,744               -                        
Community Services Block Grant 93.569 20F-3649 972,249               -                        

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 22F-5010 1,073,917            -                        

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 21F-4411 28,250                 -                        

Subtotal 3,012,160            -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 20B-2008 156,172               -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 20B-2008 WX 43,465                 -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 21V-5557 1,401,005            -                        
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 21B-5008 1,105,397            -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 21B-5008 WX 2,163,043            -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 22B-4008 366,361               -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 22B-4008 WX 1,096,385            -                        

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 21W-9003 117,226               -                        

Subtotal 6,449,054            -                        

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title
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29 

 
FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Pass

Supplemental Through to 

Federal Identifying Federal Sub-

CFDA No. Number Expenditures recipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (continued)

CalWORKS Transportation Agreement 93.558 P-21-239 52,383                 -                        

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant/Positive Youth

               Development Grant 93.994 20-10580 223,715               -                        

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant/Positive Youth

               Development Grant 93.994 20-10014 273,117               -                        

Subtotal 496,832               -                        

Pass through California Family Health Council, Inc.:

Family Planning Services/Male Services Program 93.217 2021/22 Title X 84,797                 -                        

Family Planning Services/Male Services Program 93.217 2022/23 Title X 56,678                 -                        

Subtotal 141,475               -                        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 50,745,507         -                        

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

Foster Grandparents Program 94.011 21SFICS003 166,029               -                        

Foster Grandparents Program 94.011 21SFICS003 158,842               -                        

Foster Grandparents Program 94.011 22SDICA002 28,367                 -                        

Subtotal 353,238               -                        

Pass through YouthBuild USA:

YouthBuild AmeriCorps 94.006 19NDHMA0030026 87,154                 -                        
YouthBuild AmeriCorps 94.006 19NDHMA0030026 55,166                 -                        

Subtotal 142,320               -                        

TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE 495,558               -                        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 89,437,860$       -$                      

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through

Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
NOTE 1 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING & PRESENTATION 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared using the accrual basis method of 
accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S., Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Therefore, some of the amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related periodic federal 
financial reports. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – LOANS OUTSTANDING 
 
The federally-funded loans outstanding at December 31, 2022 consist of the following: 
 

Program Number Balance

USDA Intermediary Relending Program 48111450 514,153$       

 
 

NOTE 4 – CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) 
 
The CFDA numbers included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards were determined 
based on the program name, review of the grant or contract information and the Office of Management and Budget’s 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
The Organization has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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31 

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION  
SCHEDULE OF GRANT REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES –  

LOCAL CONSERVATION CORPS GRANT PROGRAM 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

 
 

GRANT REVENUE

Grant revenue 1,714,116$           

Total Grant Revenue 1,714,116              

EXPENSES

Salaries and related benefits 1,150,089              

Professional 132,881                 

Rent 34,865                   

Repairs and maintenance 63,601                   

Security 111,930                 

Util ities 37,634                   

Fuel - oil  and gas 34,686                   

Travel 70                           

Equipment rental 23,065                   

Computer 4,498                      

Office 22,694                   

Insurance 56,898                   

Conference fees (non-travel) 501                         

Dues - organizations 8,146                      

Outreach 904                         

Program 28,415                   

Staff training 5,340                      

Safety 3,738                      

Total Expenses 1,719,955              

Net Grant Revenue (Expense) (5,839)$                  
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32 

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 20B-2008 (Liheap EHA 16)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period October 1, 2019 - July 31, 2022

Jan 1, 2019 - 

Dec 31, 2019

Jan 1, 2020 - 

Dec 31, 2020

Jan 1, 2021 - 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total 

Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue 2,405$            1,368,181$    1,058,785$    183,140$        2,429,371$    2,612,511$    2,612,511$    

Total Revenue 2,405$            1,368,181$    1,058,785$    183,140$        2,429,371$    2,612,511$    2,612,511$    

Expenditures

 Assurance 16 Activity Program Costs

Assurance 16 Activities -$                 237,492$        305,302$        13,498            556,292$        556,292$        556,909$        

 Administrative Costs

Administrative Costs 2,405               410,148          144,356          -                        556,909$        556,909          556,909          

Program Costs (ECIP and Heap)

Intake Costs -                        139,334          284,123          68,544            492,001$        492,001          572,636          

Outreach Costs -                        201,008          156,890          -                        357,898$        357,898          357,898          

Training and Technical Assistance -                        4,618               20,671            454                  25,743$          25,743            143,159          

Subtotal -                        344,960          461,684          68,998            875,642          875,642          1,073,693       

Program Services and Program Costs

Program Services and Program Costs -                        375,581          147,443          100,643          523,024          623,667          425,000          

60 - Total Costs 2,405               1,368,181       1,058,785       183,140          2,511,868       2,612,511       2,612,511       

Non-Consideration Costs (ECIP & HEAP)

Fast track Electric and Gas Payments 8,549               652,621          134,850          1,836,693       2,632,712       2,632,712       2,829,629       

HEAP Electric and Gas Payments 255                  1,323,815       1,456,259       246,216          3,026,545       3,026,545       2,829,628       

Total Funds (with Non-Consideration) 11,209$          3,344,617$    2,649,894$    2,266,048$    8,171,125$    8,271,768$    8,271,768$    
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 20B-2008 (Liheap Wx)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period October 1, 2019 - July 31, 2022

Jan 1, 2019 - 

Dec 31, 2019

Jan 1, 2020 - 

Dec 31, 2020

Jan 1, 2021 - 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Total Revenue  $          17,027  $     1,307,480  $        896,230  $             2,333  $     2,220,737  $     2,264,202  $     2,264,202 

EXPENDITURES

Weatherization Program Costs

Intake 13,031$           86,220$           81,087$           87$                   180,425$        180,334$        181,136$        

Outreach 449                   64,025             48,735             -$                 113,209$        113,210           113,210           

Training and Technical Assistance -                        103,588           9,622               -$                 113,210$        113,210           113,210           

Total Program Costs 13,480             253,833           139,444           87                     406,844           406,754           407,556           

WX Activities and Program Costs

WX Activities and Program Costs 3,547               1,053,647       756,786           2,245$             1,816,225$     1,857,448       1,856,646       

.

Total Costs 17,027$           1,307,480$     896,230$        2,333$             2,223,070$     2,264,202$     2,264,202$     
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 21B-5008 (Liheap EHA 16)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period November 1, 2020 - June 30, 2023

Jan 1, 2021 - 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total 

Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue 915,879$        1,100,283$    915,879$        2,016,162$    2,049,253$    

Total Revenue 915,879$        1,100,283$    915,879$        2,016,162$    2,049,253$    

Expenditures

 Assurance 16 Activity Program Costs

Assurance 16 Activities 168,872$        311,304$        480,176$        480,176$        539,781$        

 Administrative Costs

Administrative Costs 284,693          249,737          534,430          534,430          539,781          

Program Costs (ECIP and Heap)

Intake Costs 140,440          238,224          378,664          378,664          517,169          

Outreach Costs 128,941          159,012          287,953          287,953          323,230          

Training and Technical Assistance 2,314               19,185            21,499            21,499            129,292          

Subtotal 271,695          416,422          688,117          688,117          969,691          

Program Services and Program Costs

Program Services and Program Costs 190,619          122,821          313,440          313,440          -                        

60 - Total Costs 915,879          1,100,283       2,016,162       2,016,162       2,049,253       

Non-Consideration Costs (ECIP & HEAP)

Fast track Electric and Gas Payments 137,008          2,796,668       2,933,676       2,933,676       2,747,459       

HEAP Electric and Gas Payments 2,057,926       503,316          2,561,242       2,561,242       2,747,459       

Total Funds (with Non-Consideration) 3,110,813$    4,400,267$    7,511,080$    7,511,080$    7,544,171$    
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 21B-5008 (Liheap Wx)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period November 1, 2020 - June 30, 2023

Jan 1, 2020 - 

Dec 31, 2020

Jan 1, 2021 - 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Total Revenue  $          24,848  $        493,798  $     2,163,043  $        518,646  $     2,681,689  $     2,682,156 

EXPENDITURES

Weatherization Program Costs

Intake -                        33,689             58,208             91,897             91,897             214,572           

Outreach 12,206             17,221             86,160             115,587           115,587           134,108           

Training and Technical Assistance 12,642             5,800               72,542             90,984             90,984             134,108           

Total Program Costs 24,848             56,710             216,910           298,468           298,468           482,788           

WX Activities and Program Costs

WX Activities and Program Costs -                        437,088           1,946,133       2,383,221       2,383,221       2,199,368       

Total Costs 24,848$           493,798$        2,163,043$     2,681,689$     2,681,689$     2,682,156$     
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 22B-4008 (Liheap EHA 16)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period November 1, 2021 - December 31, 2023

Jan 1, 2021 - 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total 

Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue -$                 362,610$        -$                 -$                 2,049,253$    

Total Revenue -$                 362,610$        -$                 -$                 2,049,253$    

Expenditures

 Assurance 16 Activity Program Costs

Assurance 16 Activities -$                 63,029$          63,029$          63,029$          546,660$        

 Administrative Costs

Administrative Costs -                        144,571          144,571          144,571          546,660          

Program Costs (ECIP and Heap)

Intake Costs -                        65,174            65,174            65,174            525,281          

Outreach Costs -                        40,877            40,877            40,877            328,301          

Training and Technical Assistance -                        -                        -                        -                        131,320          

Subtotal -                        106,051          106,051          106,051          984,902          

Program Services and Program Costs

Program Services and Program Costs -                        48,958            48,958            48,958            -                        

60 - Total Costs -                        362,610          362,610          362,610          2,078,222       

Non-Consideration Costs (ECIP & HEAP)

Fast track Electric and Gas Payments -                        5,046,833       5,046,833       5,046,833       5,046,833       

HEAP Electric and Gas Payments -                        534,278          534,278          534,278          534,278          

Total Funds (with Non-Consideration) -$                 5,943,721$    5,943,721$    5,943,721$    7,659,333$    
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37 

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 22B-4008 (Liheap Wx)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period November 1, 2021 - December 31, 2023

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Total Revenue  $     1,096,385  $     1,096,385  $     1,096,385  $     2,692,570 

EXPENDITURES

Weatherization Program Costs

Intake 120,693           120,693           120,693           215,406           

Outreach 18,665             18,665             18,665             134,629           

Training and Technical Assistance 4,435               4,435               4,435               134,629           

Total Program Costs 143,792           143,792           143,792           484,664           

WX Activities and Program Costs

WX Activities and Program Costs 952,592           952,592           952,592           2,207,906       

Total Costs 1,096,385$     1,096,385$     1,096,385$     2,692,570$     
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Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 22C-6004 (DOE-WX)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period: July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2022

Jan 1, 2021- 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022- 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue -$                33,182$          33,182$          33,182$                 $         475,000 

Total Revenue 33,182$          33,182$          33,182$                 $         475,000 

EXPENDITURES

Administrative Costs -$                1,707$            1,707$            1,707$                  132,235$          

Training & Technical Assistance -                   4,520$            4,520              4,520                     92,934              

Program Costs (Section 1)

Liability Insurance -                   -                   -                   -                         10,000              

Health and Safety Activities -                   9,985              9,985              9,985                     289,109            

Total Program Costs (Section 1) -                   9,985              9,985              9,985                     299,109            

Program Costs (Section 2)

Intake -                   -                   -                   -                         60,000              

Outreach -                   250                  250                  250                        30,000              

Direct Program Activities -                   16,721            16,721            16,721                  619,645            

Minor Vehicle and Field Equipment -                   -                   -                   -                         74,000              

General Operating Costs -                   -                   -                   -                         10,000              

Other Program Costs -                   -                   -                   -                         75,000              

Client Education -                   -                   -                   -                         15,000              

Automation Supplemental -                   -                   -                   -                         5,000                 

Total Program Costs (Section 2) -                   16,971            16,971            16,971                  888,645            

Total Costs -$                33,182$          33,182$          33,182$                1,412,923$      

 

DRAFT

Page 256 of 300



 

39 

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 20C-6005 (DOE-WX)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period: July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2022

Jan 1, 2020- 

Dec 31, 2020

Jan 1, 2021- 

Dec 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022- 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue 40,861$         55,660$          315,981$       412,502$       420,002$               $         475,000 

Total Revenue 40,861$         55,660$          315,981$       412,502$       420,002$               $         475,000 

EXPENDITURES

Administrative Costs 2,582$           4,080$            8,532$            15,194$          15,194$                29,615$            

Training & Technical Assistance -                  672                  7,824$            8,496              8,496                     49,890              

Program Costs (Section 1)

Liability Insurance 193                 489                  -                   682                  490                        1,000                 

Health and Safety Activities -                  76,960            76,960            76,960                  95,635              

Total Program Costs (Section 1) 193                 489                  76,960            77,642            77,450                  96,635              

Program Costs (Section 2)

Intake -                  10,593            10,335            20,928            20,928                  24,500              

Outreach -                  1,000              3,406              4,406              4,406                     24,500              

Direct Program Activities 39,220           15,978            194,523          249,721          249,721                211,360            

Minor Vehicle and Field Equipment -                  -                   -                   -                         -                     

General Operating Costs 536                 25,737            (2,713)             23,560            23,560                  28,000              

Other Program Costs -                  11,021            11,021            11,021                  -                     

Client Education -                  3,134              6,093              9,227              9,227                     10,500              

Automation Supplemental -                  -                   -                   -                         -                     

Total Program Costs (Section 2) 39,756           56,442            222,666          318,863          318,863                298,860            

Total Costs 42,531$         61,683$          315,981$       420,194$       420,002$              475,000$          
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40 

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 22Q-4557 (SLIHEAP)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period October 1, 2019 - December 31, 2021

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022 Total Audited Costs

Total 

Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue -$                 -$                          -$                 53,646$          

Total Revenue -$                 -$                          -$                 53,646$          

Expenditures

 Assurance 16 Activity Program Costs

Assurance 16 Activities -$                 -$                          -$                 11,414$          

 Administrative Costs

Administrative Costs -                        -                                 -                        11,414            

Program Costs (ECIP and Heap)

Intake -                        -                                 -                        16,436            

Outreach -                        -                                 -                        10,273            

Training and Technical Assistance -                        -                                 -                        4,109               

Subtotal -                        -                                 -                        30,818            

Program Services and Program Costs

Program Services and Program Costs -                        -                                 -                        -                        

60 - Total Costs -                        -                                 -                        53,646            

Non-Consideration Costs (ECIP & HEAP)

Fast track Electric and Gas Payments

HEAP Electric and Gas Payments

Total Funds (with Non-Consideration) -$                 -$                          -$                 53,646$          
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41 

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 21V-5557 (Liheap EHA 16)

For the Period:  January 1, 2021 thru December 31, 2021

Grant Period August 1, 2021 - February 28, 2023

Jan 1, 2021 - 

Dec 31, 2021

Total Audited 

Costs

Total Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue 1,592,711$    1,592,711$    1,592,711$         3,638,882$       

Total Revenue 1,592,711$    1,592,711$    1,592,711$         3,638,882$       

Expenditures

 Assurance 16 Activity Program Costs

Assurance 16 Activities 179,372$        179,372$        179,372$            555,188$          

 Administrative Costs

Administrative Costs 223,992          223,992          223,992              584,496             

Program Costs (ECIP and Heap)

Intake Costs 250,699          250,699          250,699              656,886             

Outreach Costs 166,471          166,471          166,471              440,507             

Training and Technical Assistance 25,047            25,047            25,047                 96,805               

Automation Costs 15,000            15,000            15,000                 25,000               

Subtotal 457,217          457,217          457,217              1,219,198         

Direct Services Costs

EHCS Costs 352,121          352,121          352,121              900,000             

ECIP & HEAP WPO 13,619            13,619            13,619                 40,000               

SWEATS 7,821               7,821               7,821                   170,000             

PSPS Emergency Preparedness 158,444          158,444          158,444              170,000             

Subtotal 532,005          532,005          532,005              1,280,000         

Program Services and Program Costs

Program Services and Program Costs 200,125          200,125          200,125              -                          

Total Costs 1,592,711       1,592,711       1,592,711           3,638,882         

Non-Consideration Costs (ECIP & HEAP)

Fast track Electric and Gas Payments 6,393,086       6,393,086       6,393,086           6,404,516         

HEAP Electric and Gas Payments 643,153          643,153          643,153              782,771             

Total Funds (with Non-Consideration) 8,628,950$    8,628,950$    8,628,950$         10,826,169$     
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42 

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission

Supplemental Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

CSD Contract 21W-9003 (LIHWAP ADMIN)

For the Period:  January 1, 2022 thru December 31, 2022

Grant Period April 1, 2022 - December 31, 2023

Jan 1, 2022 - 

Dec 31, 2022

Total Audited 

Costs

Total 

Reported 

Expenses Total Budget

REVENUE

Revenue 117,225$        117,225$        117,225$        227,307$        

Total Revenue 117,225$        117,225$        117,225$        227,307$        

Expenditures

 Assurance 16 Activity Program Costs

Assurance 16 Activities -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

 Administrative Costs

Administrative Costs 22,831            22,831            22,831            227,307          

Program Costs (ECIP and Heap)

Intake Costs 41,071            41,071            41,071            -                        

Outreach Costs 42,619            42,619            42,619            -                        

Training and Technical Assistance -                        -                        -                        -                        

Subtotal 83,690            83,690            83,690            -                        

Program Services and Program Costs

Program Services and Program Costs 10,704            10,704            10,704            -                        

60 - Total Costs 117,225          117,225          94,394            227,307          

Total Funds (with Non-Consideration) 117,225$        117,225$        94,394$          227,307$        
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
  Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of the Fresno Economic Opportunities 
Commission (the Organization), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Organization’s consolidated financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December XX, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Organization’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the consolidated financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant 
deficiencies. During our audit we did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a material weakness: 2022-001. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s consolidated financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

DRAFT

Page 262 of 300

http://www.hhccpas.com/


 

44 

Organization’s Response to Findings 

The Organization’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.  The Organization’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 

HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC. 

      
Fresno, California 
December XX, 2023 
 

 

DRAFT

Page 263 of 300



 

7473 N. INGRAM AVE., SUITE 102 ⬧ FRESNO, CA 93711 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

P (559) 412-7576 ⬧ F (559) 493-5325 ⬧ WWW.HHCCPAS.COM 

 

 

 

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND  

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
To the Board of Commissioners of 
  Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission’s (the Organization) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements  described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended December 31, 2022. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States  and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Organization’s federal 
programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the 
Organization’s compliance based on our audit.  
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about 
the Organization’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, 
and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters  

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2022-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these 
matters. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization’s response 
to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. The Organization’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.  

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC. 

      
Fresno, California 
December XX, 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT 

OF RESOURCES RECYCLING AND RECOVERY GRANT AGREEMENT TERMS 
 
 
 
 
To the Board of Commissioners of 
  Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 
 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission Local 
Conservation Corps (the Local Conservation Corps’), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 and have issued 
our report thereon dated December XX, 2023. Our firm has conducted an audit of the Fresno Economic 
Opportunities Commission Local Conservation Corps for the year ended June 30, 2022 in compliance with Terms and 
Conditions, Provision 31. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the Standards and Procedures for Audits of Local Conservation Corps Receiving 
Grant Funds from the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, issued by the Department of Resources 
Recycling and Recovery. 

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The Local Conservation Corps’ management is responsible for compliance with the laws and regulations of the Grant 
Agreement. In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to 
determine the compliance of the laws and regulations of the Grant Agreement applicable to the following items.  

Description Number of Audit Procedures Procedures Performed 

Internal Control 10 Yes 

Subcontractors 1 Yes 

Competitive Bids 4 Yes 

Conflict of Interest 2 Yes 

Allowable and Reasonable Costs 6 Yes 

Travel 2 Yes 
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Based on our audit we found that, for the items tested, the Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission Local 
Conservation Corps complied with the laws and regulations of the Grant Agreement of the items referred to above. 
Further, based on our examination, for items not tested, nothing came to our attention to indicate that the Local 
Conservation Corps had not complied with the laws and regulations of the Grant Agreement.  

This report is intended solely for the information of the Local Conservation Corps Board of Commissioners and the 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

 

HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC. 

      
Fresno, California 
December XX, 2023 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 
 
 

Financial Statements          
          
Type of auditors’ report issued:     Unmodified 
   
Internal control over financial reporting: 
   

• Material weakness identified? X Yes  No 

     

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not        

      considered to be material weaknesses?   Yes X None reported 

      
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  Yes X No 

     
Federal Awards     
     
Internal control over major federal programs:     
     

• Material weakness identified?  Yes X No 

     

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not      

      considered to be material weaknesses?  Yes X None reported 

     
Noncompliance material to federal awards?  Yes X No 

 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2CRF section 200.516(a)? 

 
 

 X 

 
 
Yes 

 
 
 

 
 
No 

 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major 

    

Federal programs:  Unmodified 
     
Identification of major programs:     
     
CFDA Number: Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
     93.600 
     93.045 

 

 Head Start 
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III-C-1 Site Management 
 

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish     
Between Type A and Type B programs:   $2,684,709  
     
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?  Yes X No 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2022-001 – Material Weakness 
Financial Close & Reporting  
 
Condition:  
During the audit of the Organization’s financial statements, we experienced significant delays in starting the audit, 
and then subsequently obtaining all required information to complete the audit. 
 
Criteria:  
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, adequate internal 
controls should be implemented to ensure that all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are properly recorded 
and reported, and in a timely manner. Furthermore, proper accounting principles should be applied to all financial 
closing accounts and processes, thus resulting in the proper presentation of all Organization activities and/or funds.  
 
Cause:  
As a ripple effect of the prior year audit also being delayed, there were further delays in the current year.  In addition, 
management and accounting staff turnover leading to delays in the start and completion of the audit. 
 
Effect:  
The audit is being completed well after required deadlines from grantors and other users of the financial statements, 
which could lead to withholding of payments, noncompliance with grant guidelines, withholding of future awards, 
or other legal remedies.  
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the Organization continue to work on clarifying roles and responsibilities during the year-end 
closing process, enhancing the process to ensure that all accounting records are properly reflected in the financial 
statements prior to the commencement of the audit. 
 
Management Response: 
Fiscal year 2021, provided several challenges and changes including coronavirus, sheltering in place for six months 
and several key staffing changes within the Fresno EOC Finance Department. We appreciate the recommendation 
to clarify roles and responsibilities during the year-end closing process. We recognize the importance of accurate 
financial statements and will work towards improving our processes to ensure accounting records are properly 
reflected before the audit begins. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2022-002 – Significant Deficiency  
Program:  All Programs 
CFDA No.:  All 
Federal Agency:  All 
Pass Through:  N/A 
Award Number:  All 
Award Year:  2022 
Compliance Requirement:  Reporting 
Questioned Costs:  N/A  
 
Criteria:  
Per Uniform Guidance Subpart F section 200.512 the audit must be completed, and data collection form and 
reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports, or 
nine months after the end of the audit period. 
 
Condition:  
Management was not able to provide the necessary information needed to complete the audit by the required date 
per Uniform Guidance Subpart F section 200.512. 
 
Cause:  
Management and accounting staff turnover leading to delays in the start and completion of the audit. 
 
Effect:  
Noncompliance may result in withholding of payments, denying both the use of funds and matching credit for all or 
part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance, whole or partial suspension or termination of the 
Assistance Agreements, recovery of funds paid under the Assistance Agreements, withholding of future awards, or 
other legal remedies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.338. 
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the Organization improve internal controls to ensure timely filing of the audit reports, including 
the financial closing process to ensure the audit can commence in a timely manner. 
 
Management’s Response:  
In fiscal year 2021, numerous challenges and changes continued from prior year, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, 
which led to a six-month period of sheltering in place, significantly impacting operations. Additionally, the Fresno 
EOC Finance Department experienced several critical staffing changes during this time. We value the 
recommendation to enhance internal controls for timely filing of audit reports. We understand the significance of a 
prompt audit commencement and will focus on refining our financial closing process to facilitate timely audits. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2021-001 – Material Weakness 
Financial Close & Reporting  
 
Condition:  
During the audit of the Organization’s financial statements, we identified material misstatements in the 
Organization’s general ledger account balances which required material audit adjustments. These adjustments were 
noted in notes receivable/payable, accrued payroll, accrued revenues related to the accrued payroll, capitalized 
grant funded assets and associated depreciation, and unrealized gains for investments in balancing the general 
ledger and presentation of the financial statements. 
 
Criteria:  
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, adequate internal 
controls should be implemented to ensure that all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are properly recorded 
and reported. Furthermore, proper accounting principles should be applied to all financial closing accounts and 
processes, thus resulting in the proper presentation of all Organization activities and/or funds.  
 
Cause:  
Closing entries were posted in an effort to properly close the Organization’s financial records, however it appears 
that adequate review was not performed in ensuring balances and transactions were properly recorded and 
reconciled as of year-end.   
 
Effect:  
Material adjustments were identified through audit procedures performed which resulted in adjustments to 
receivables, revenue, capital assets, depreciation, accrued expenses, notes payable and notes receivable to ensure 
proper presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards.  
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the Organization continue to work on clarifying roles and responsibilities during the year-end 
closing process, enhancing the process to ensure that all accounting records are properly reflected in the financial 
statements prior to the commencement of the audit. We also recommend management implement further detective 
measures in fixing financial reporting errors during the financial closing process. 
 
Management Response: 
Fiscal year 2021, provided several challenges and changes including coronavirus, sheltering in place for six months 
and several key staffing changes within the Fresno EOC Finance Department. We appreciate the recommendation 
to clarify roles and responsibilities during the year-end closing process. We recognize the importance of accurate 
financial statements and will work towards improving our processes to ensure accounting records are properly 
reflected before the audit begins. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued) 
 
Finding 2020-001 – Material Weakness 
Financial Close & Reporting  
 
Management Response (continued): 
Corrections have been made to resolve the challenges with year-end accounting by monitoring that year end accruals 
and other adjusting entries are recorded in a timely manner. 
 
Current Year Status: 
See Finding 2022-001. 
 
 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS 

 
Finding 2021-002 – Significant Deficiency  
Program:  All Programs 
CFDA No.:  All 
Federal Agency:  All 
Pass Through:  N/A 
Award Number:  All 
Award Year:  2022 
Compliance Requirement:  Reporting 
Questioned Costs:  N/A  
 
Criteria:  
Per Uniform Guidance Subpart F section 200.512 the audit must be completed, and data collection form and 
reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports, or 
nine months after the end of the audit period. 
 
Condition:  
Management was not able to provide the necessary information needed to complete the audit by the required date 
per Uniform Guidance Subpart F section 200.512. 
 
Cause:  
Management and accounting staff turnover leading to delays in the start and completion of the audit. 
 
Effect:  
Noncompliance may result in withholding of payments, denying both the use of funds and matching credit for all or 
part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance, whole or partial suspension or termination of the 
Assistance Agreements, recovery of funds paid under the Assistance Agreements, withholding of future awards, or 
other legal remedies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.338. 
 
Recommendation:  
We recommend that the Organization improve internal controls to ensure timely filing of the audit reports, including 
the financial closing process to ensure the audit can commence in a timely manner. 
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FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS (continued) 

 
Finding 2021-002 – Significant Deficiency (continued) 
 
Management’s Response:  
In fiscal year 2021, numerous challenges and changes continued from prior year, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, 
which led to a six-month period of sheltering in place, significantly impacting operations. Additionally, the Fresno 
EOC Finance Department experienced several critical staffing changes during this time. We value the 
recommendation to enhance internal controls for timely filing of audit reports. We understand the significance of a 
prompt audit commencement and will focus on refining our financial closing process to facilitate timely audits. 
 
Current Year Status: 
See Finding 2022-002. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Head Start 0 to 5 

Agenda Item #: 20D1 Director: Rosa M. Pineda  
Subject: Program Update Report (PUR) 
for October and November 2023 

Chief Executive Officer: Emilia Reyes 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends full Board approval of the Head Start 0 to 5 October and November 
2023 Monthly Program Update Reports.  

Background 

As per mandate, Head Start agencies provide monthly updates to the Board and Policy 
council, written as required by the Head Start Act of December 12, 2007, Section 642 
Powers and Functions of Head Start Agencies (d) Program Governance Administration, 
(2) Conduct of Responsibilities, (A) through (I). 

 Below is a reference to the requirement. 

(2) Conduct of Responsibilities – Each Head Start agency shall ensure the sharing of 
accurate and regular information for use by the governing body and policy council, 

about program planning, policies, and Head Start agency operations. . . 

The report includes all areas mandated by the Head Start Act, not reported elsewhere: 
(B) monthly program activity summaries; (C) program enrollment reports; (D) monthly 
reports of meals and snacks provided through the U.S. Department of Agriculture; (H) 
communication and guidance from the Secretary of Health and Human Services.   

The excluded information reported separately includes: (A) monthly financial reports 
including credit cards, (E) financial audit report, (F) annual Self-Assessment (G) 
community-wide strategic planning (Community Assessment) and the (I) Annual Program 
Information Report (PIR). 

The October and November 2023 Program Update Report are attached for review. 

Fiscal Impact 

Action on this agenda item will have no fiscal impact.  
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Conclusion 

If approved by the full Board, the October and November 2023 PUR will be retained for 
record keeping to verify the County-Wide Policy Council and the Fresno EOC Board of 
Commissioners had timely and accurate information to ensure programmatic and 
fiduciary accountability of Fresno EOC Head Start 0 to 5.   
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PROGRAM UPDATE REPORT 

                 

 

 

REPORT MONTH: OCTOBER 2023 
 

I. Head Start 0 to 5 

Program Information Summary: 

1. October 6, 2023 – In-Service for Individual Service areas took place at various locations. 

 

2. October 9, 2023 – Indigenous People’s Day Holiday was observed. All offices and sites were closed in observance.   

 

3. October 18, 2023 – Self Assessment Orientation Training for staff.   

 

4. October 19, 2023 – Self Assessment Orientation Training for parents. 

 

5. October 26, 2023 – Program Governance Training took place at Franklin Head Start for staff, commissioners and parents. 

 

6. October 27, 2023 – Head Start Town Hall Meeting took place in the morning and in the afternoon for all Head Start Employees. 

 

II. Communication and Guidance from the United States Health and Human Services (HHS) Secretary: 

Recently, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), through the Administration for Children and Families (ACF), 

released nearly $3.7 billion in Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funding to help households with their home 

energy costs. The funding will help ensure households across the country have the support they need to maintain safe and healthy 

indoor temperatures, especially as the winter season approaches.  
          

III. Early Head Start  

Program Information Summary: 

1. EHS continues to recruit and hire new employees to fill staff vacancies. 

 

2. EHS is waiting for the Fire Marshall and Community Care Licensing to clear the two toddler classroom classes that will allow us 

to serve 16 EHS CB children.  

 

Early Head Start Enrollment/ADA Reports/Wait List: 

Monthly Enrollment: 367; Monthly ADA: Center Base: 86.76%, Home Base: N/A, Wait List Total: 109 

 
Our Early Head Start funded enrollment is 478. For the month of October 2023, we had an actual enrollment of 367. 

There was a total of 27 drops in the month of October. This gives us an overall enrollment of 394 (367+27). This month, 

Early Head Start’s enrollment increased by 3%. There are 88 children on the waitlist. Staff continue to recruit more 

children for Eric White and other EHS sites by collaborating with local agencies that provide services to pregnant teens, 

mothers, and/or prenatal care services. Staff continue to visit WIC offices, clinics, and schools to promote our EHS 

services. EHS participated in 6 community events, which also includes one with HS. This month we received 80 online 

referrals for Early Head Start. Our efforts to recruit and hire more staff continues for EHS as we continue to recruit and 

hire staff for EHS Center Base sites. At this time EHS HB does not have any staff vacancies. Analysis of all areas below 

the recommended 85% ADA, if any, has been done.   

 

Early Head Start Meals/Snacks:  

Total Children: Breakfasts: 690  Lunches: 741  Snacks: 648  

  

IV. Head Start 

Program Information Summary: 

1. HS leadership continues to recruit and hire new employees to fill staff vacancies. 

 

2. Family/Community Services staff were trained on CAP 60.   

 

Head Start Enrollment/ADA Reports/Wait List: 

Monthly Enrollment: 1,484; Monthly ADA: Center Base 84.31%; Home Base: N/A, Wait List Total: 270 

 
Our Head Start funded enrollment is 2112. For the month of October 2023, we had an actual enrollment of 1484 and a 

total of 40 drops. As a result, we had an enrollment of 1524 (1484+40). This month, Head Start’s enrollment increased 

by 5.5%. We have 272 children on our waitlist, and 178 of the children are three-year-old’s. At this time, we have 18 

centers that have reached their maximum capacity of three-year-old’s. As we continue to recruit children for the 

program, we have noticed that the majority of children are three years old. As a result, staff has started to meet to 

determine if a Locally Designed Program Option (LDO) is needed in order to meet full enrollment. Recruitment efforts 

consist of canvassing, participating in community events, and facilitating presentations in the community. We 

participated in 8 community events and as a result, we received 53 online referrals. The ERSEA Team continues to work 
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with the Communications Department to update marketing materials and determine what is the most effect way to 

continue advertising the program. We also continue to recruit and hire staff including an additional ERSEA Assistant. We 

have the following vacancies: ERSEA Liaison – 1, EHS ERSEA Assistant – 1, Family/Community Services Specialists – 3, 

Family Support Assistants – 5, Home Base Educators – 3, Teachers – 3, Teacher Assistants – 37. Analysis of all areas 

below the recommended 85% ADA, if any, has been done.   

 

Head Start Meals/Snacks: 

Total Children: Breakfasts: 15,338  Lunches: 18,551  Snacks: 14,399 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

Rosa M. Pineda                                   Nidia Davis 

Head Start Director     Program Support Director 

                         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

(OCTOBER 2023BOARD PUR REPORT)      bw/cq 1/10/24    ~ CWPC (2023-2024 (PUR (BOARD) ~      

Page 279 of 300



 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

PROGRAM UPDATE REPORT 

                 

 

 

REPORT MONTH: NOVEMBER 2023 
 

I. Head Start 0 to 5 

Program Information Summary: 

1. November 10, 2023 – Veterans Day Holiday was observed.  All offices and sites were closed in observance.  

 

2. November 13, 15, and 17, 2023 – Triannual Review for Self-Assessment I at Franklin Head Start. 

 

3. November 18, 2023 – A Parent Career Resources event took place at Franklin Head Start; the event was held  

                        8:00 am - 12:00 pm for all Head Start 0 to 5 parents. 

 

4. November 23-24, 2023 – Thanksgiving Holiday was observed.  All offices and sites were closed in observance.   

 

5. November 29, 2023 – DEC Meeting was held at Franklin Head Start with Human Resources to review changes made to the 

Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.   

 

II. Communication and Guidance from the United States Health and Human Services (HHS) Secretary: 

On November 20, 2023,  Program Instruction ACF-PI-OHS-23-04 was released indicating The Office of Head Start (OHS) has a Notice 

of Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM) in the Federal Register, Supporting the Head Start Workforce and Consistent Quality Programming. 

The publication opens a 60-day public comment period. OHS is soliciting feedback on these proposed changes and will use 

comments submitted by the public in making decisions for the final rule. 

This NPRM proposes new and enhanced changes to the Head Start Program Performance Standards (HSPPS) in three main areas: 

workforce supports, mental health, and other quality improvements. The proposed revisions would ensure OHS provides clear 

federal requirements for: 

• Wages and benefits to support the Head Start workforce 

• Better integration of mental health into all levels of Head Start programming 

• Enhanced standards in other service areas to promote quality improvement and clarity of requirements 

III. Early Head Start  

Program Information Summary: 

1. Early Head Start continues to recruit staff and children to the program.   

 

2. Continuing to wait on Community Care Licensing visit to Franklin to license two EHS classes. 

 

Early Head Start Enrollment/ADA Reports/Wait List: 

Monthly Enrollment: 380; Monthly ADA: Center Base: 81.73%; Home Base: N/A, Wait List Total: 123  

 

Our Early Head Start funded enrollment is 478. For the month of November 2023, we had an actual enrollment of 380. 

There was a total of 16 drops in the month of November. This gives us an overall enrollment of 396 (380+16). This 

month, Early Head Start’s enrollment increased by 3.4%. There are 103 children on the waitlist. Staff continue to recruit 

more children for Eric White and other EHS sites by collaborating with local agencies that provide services to pregnant 

teen mothers, and/or prenatal care services. Staff continue to visit WIC offices, clinics, and schools to promote our EHS 

services. EHS participated in 4 community events. This month we received 47online referrals for Early Head Start. Our 

efforts to recruit and hire more staff continues for EHS as we continue to recruit and hire staff for EHS Center Base 

sites and one staff for EHS Home Base. Analysis of all areas below the recommended 85% ADA, if any, has been done.   
 

 

Early Head Start Meals/Snacks:  

Total Children: Breakfasts: 583  Lunches: 621  Snacks: 531  

  

IV. Head Start 

Program Information Summary: 

1. Head Start continues to recruit staff and children to the program.   

 

2. All HATCH tablets have been distributed to Home Base families with Wi-Fi to participate in the Waterford Literacy program.  

 

3. Health Services Manager is working with contractors Fresno Unified School District to provide their teaching staff training on 

Bloodborne Pathogens. 
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Head Start Enrollment/ADA Reports/Wait List: 

Monthly Enrollment: 1,506; Monthly ADA: Center Base 81.80%; Home Base: N/A 

Wait List Total: 317 

 

Our Head Start funded enrollment is 2112. For the month of November 2023, we had an actual enrollment of 1506 and 

a total of 37 drops. As a result, we had an enrollment of 1543 (1506+37)This month, Head Start’s enrollment increased 

by 1.5% . We have 299 children on our waitlist, and 246 of the children are three-year-olds. At this time, we have at 

least 21 centers that have reached their maximum capacity of three-year olds. As we continue to recruit children for the 

program, we have noticed that the majority of children are three years olds. As a result, staff have met to draft a locally-

designed program option (LDO) in order to meet full enrollment. Recruitment efforts consist of: canvassing, participating 

in community events, and facilitating presentations in the community.  We participated in 2 community events and as a 

result, we received 41 online referrals. The ERSEA Team continues to work with the Marketing & Communications 

Department to update marketing materials and determine what is the most effective way to continue advertising the 

program. We also continue to recruit and hire staff. We have the following vacancies: ERSEA Liaison – 1, EHS ERSEA 

Assistant - 1, Family/Community Services Specialists – 3, Family Support Assistants - 8 and Home Base Educators -3, 

Teachers-3, Teacher Assistants-37.  Analysis of all areas below the recommended 85% ADA, if any, has been done.   

 

Head Start Meals/Snacks: 

Total Children: Breakfasts: 13,477  Lunches: 16,258  Snacks: 12,643 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

Rosa M. Pineda                                   Nidia Davis 

Head Start Director     Program Support Director 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Head Start 0 to 5  

Agenda Item #: 20D2 Director: Rosa M. Pineda  

Subject: Budget Modification January 1, 
2023 through December 31, 2023- 
FY2023 

Chief Executive Officer: Emilia Reyes   

 

Recommended Action 

The County-Wide Policy Council recommends ratification of the Budget Modification 
January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 for the Fiscal Year 2023 in the amount of 
$9,650,853 (EHS $3,825,694 and HS $5,825,159).  

 

Background 

Fresno EOC Head Start 0 to 5 has experienced savings in the Basic 2023 Budgets that 
equal more than $250,000, thus mandating a formal budget revision to be requested from 
Region IX staff prior to expenditure of these funds for new purposes. These savings are 
due in large part to numerous personnel vacancies and Leaves of Absence (LOA’s) in 
2023.  Like many other Head Start programs we have lost many of our most experienced 
teachers to higher paying jobs with the school districts and /or other employers who are 
paying more hourly.  In addition, when an employee takes some types of LOA’s, such as 
Family Medical Leave (FMLA) or Workers’ Compensation, approximately 65% of that 
staff’s salary is paid by the State of California and not with Head Start funds. The number 
of staff on FMLA this year has generated these program savings. All of these vacancies 
have resulted in program savings. Head Start 0 to 5 requests permission to redirect funds 
from personnel, fringe benefits and operations line items to the uses outlined in the 
Budget Justification Narrative below under the budgetary object class categories of 
Supplies ($838,152), Equipment ($5,104,932), and Contractual ($3,707,769). 

On December 31, 2023, Fawnda Cole, County-Wide Policy Council Chair and Linda 
Hayes, Fresno EOC Board Chair reviewed and approved the Budget Modification for FY 
2023, respectively.   

On December 31, 2023, Staff submitted the budget modification onto the Head Start 
Enterprise System (HSES) for Head Start 0 to 5 FY 2023 budget for a total of 
$9,650,853 (EHS $3,825,694 and HS $5,825,159); to reallocate the unspent program 
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funds to other expenditures in FY 2024.  These changes will assist in the full 
implementation of our program and School Readiness Goals by providing additional 
resources for children’s learning, maintenance and repair for program sites to improve 
the environments for children, families and staff. 

 

Fiscal Impact 

With these funds, Head Start 0 to 5 will continue to utilize them to support the needs of 
children, families, and needed projects.  Head Start request a modification to spend the 
following: $9,650,853 (EHS $3,825,694 and HS $5,825,159).  

 

Conclusion 

If ratified by the Board, Head Start 0 to 5 will proceed with the Budget Modification for 
January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023- FY 2023, as it will allow Head Start 0 to 5 
and the contractors to continue serving children and families in Fresno County.  If no 
approval is received, the unused funds will be returned to the Office of Head Start when 
our budgets are closed out.   
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 

Date: January 22, 2024 Program: Head Start 0 to 5  

Agenda Item #: 20D3 Director: Rosa M. Pineda  

Subject: Locally Designed Program 
Option (LDO) Request 

Chief Executive Officer: Emilia Reyes   

 

Recommended Action 

The County-Wide Policy Council recommends ratification of the Locally Designed 
Program Option (LDO) Request that was submitted to the Office of Head Start on 
December 14, 2023.    

 

Background 

Fresno EOC Head Start 0 to 5 has been encountering challenges with meeting full 

enrollment due to staff shortage and increased number of three-year-old children on the 

wait list due to expansion of Transitional Kindergarten and State Preschool classrooms 

in our local school districts.  Therefore, we requested a group size waiver through 

Locally Designed Program Option Variation (LDO) for some classes in order to address 

our under-enrollment concerns. The proposal is aimed at helping the program achieve 

the Full Enrollment Initiative (FEI) Plan as we have exhausted our four-year-old eligible 

waitlist. We plan to convert four-year-old classes to predominantly three-year-old 

classes and serve a class size of 20 children to provide more preschool services to 

families in their respective communities.  

The waiver is intended for 17 Head Start sites and 20 predominantly three-year-old 

classes. The waiver for three-year-olds is based on the community needs assessment, 

site capacity, waitlist, number of three-year-old online referrals, and three-year-old 

incomplete applications, as well as serving Early Head Start Transitions.  According to 

the Community Assessment, there are a total of 33,193 three and four-year-old children 

in Fresno County and 14,120 are 3 years old.  Currently we have 230 three-year-old 

children on the waitlist, 192 three-year-old online referrals, 127 three-year-old 

incomplete applications, and 33 Early Head Start transitions.   
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Attached is the breakdown of recommended sites, classroom, program options, and the 
classroom staffing for each respective site recommended for the LDO. 
 

Fiscal Impact 

If Head Start 0 to 5 does not reach 97 percent of their enrollment at the end of 12-month 
period, Office of Head Start has the authority to designate our program as chronically 
underenrolled and OHS may recapture, withhold, or reduce our base grant for 
redistribution to other programs.  Any reduction in funding would adjust our funded 
enrollment to be consistent with the historical, actual enrollment level.   
 
 

Conclusion 

If ratified by the Board, the Locally Designed Program Option (LDO) will allow Head 
Start to increase our enrollment by enrolling three-year-old children at 17 Head Start 
sites and make 20 classrooms predominately a three-year-old class.   

 

 

Center 
Name 

Funded 
Enrollment  

Classroom 
Option 

Class Size Waiver 
Request 

Classroom 
Staffing  

Area II  40 6-hour 1 Classroom  1-Teacher 
2- Teacher 
Assistants 

Brooks  60 3.5- PM Class 1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Clovis  40 3.5- PM Class  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2 –Teacher 
Assistants  

Dakota 
Circle  

200 3.5- AM Class 
3.5- PM Class 

2 Classrooms 2- Teachers  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Firebaugh 
 

40 6-hour  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Franklin  180 3.5- AM Class 
3.5- PM Class 

2 Classrooms 2- Teachers  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Huron  60 3.5- PM Class  1 Classroom 1- Teacher 
2- Teacher 
Assistants  
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Jefferson  100 3.5- PM Class  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Kings 
Canyon  

120 3.5- PM Class  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Lane  
- 
Contractor  

20 6- hour  1 Classroom 1- Teacher 
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Lighthouse  
- 
Contractor  

20 6-hour  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
1- Teacher 
Assistant  

Maple 
Vista  
 

20 6-hour  1 Classroom 1- Teacher/Director 
1-Teacher 
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Olmos   
- 
Contractor  

20 6-hour  1 Classroom 2- Teacher  
3- Teacher 
Assistants  

Richard 
Keyes  

120 3.5- AM Class 
3.5- PM Class  

2 Classrooms 2- Teachers 
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Romain  40 3.5- PM Class  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Roosevelt  40 6- hour   1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  

Sanger  80 3.5- PM Class  1 Classroom 1- Teacher  
2- Teacher 
Assistants  
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FRESNO EOC SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING 
GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

Sanctuary Recreation Room 
Tuesday, October 17, 2023 

                 MINUTES 
 
1.   Meeting called to order by Dr. Terry Allen 8:35 a.m.  
 
2.   Community Action Promise 
      Terry Allen guided the Governing Council in reading the Community Action Promise. 
        
3.   Roll call facilitated by Commissioner Rodgers. 

 
4.   Approval of Minutes  
      September 12, 2023 Governing Council Meeting Minutes.  
     

Public Comments: None heard. 
      
      Motion by: Lopez   Second by: Failla 

Ayes: Allen, Washington, Rodgers, Taylor, Griffin, Overton, Lomelino, Romero,  
      Nays: None 
 
5.  Public Comments 
     Susan Lopez congratulated Sandy Lomelino for graduating with her Master’s degree in Educational Leadership and 

completing the Administrative Service credentialing program to receive her Administrative Preliminary Credential. 
 
6.  Membership Sub-Committee Report 
     Terry Allen reported on the Membership Sub-Committee report.  The Sub-Committee is interested in expanding the Governing 

Council membership to include a Law Enforcement or Juvenile Justice Representative and Patrick Turner from Fresno EOC 
Training and Employment. The Sub-Committee also recommend that the number of SOUL staff representatives be reduced 
from 7 to 4, for a more appropriately balance of staff to community membership representation. 

 
Public Comments: None heard. 

      
      Motion by: Washington Second by: Taylor 

Ayes: Allen, Lopez, Failla, Rodgers, Griffin, Overton, Lomelino, Romero,  
      Nays: None 
 
 
 

Voting Members 

P
re

s
e
n
t 

E
x
c
u
s
e
d
 

A
b
s
e
n
t Staff 

P
re

s
e
n
t 

E
x
c
u
s
e
d
 

A
b
s
e
n
t Non-Voting  

Member P
re

s
e
n
t 

E
x
c
u
s
e
d
 

A
b
s
e
n
t Guests 

 

Terry Allen, Ed.D., Chair, Retired Teacher Representative X   Jack Lazzarini X   Felicia Olais X    

Benita Washington, Vice Chair,  
FSU Social Worker Representative  

X   Cha Vang X        

Jimi Rodgers, Secretary, Fresno EOC Commissioner X   Michelle Tutunjian 
 

 X       

Larry Metzler, Cultural Arts Rotary Interact Club Advisor   X Emilia Reyes  X       

Jeanne Starks, Retired Law Enforcement Juvenile 
Probation  

 X           

Julio Romero, EOC Health Services 
Brittney Angeles 

X            

Steven Taylor, Fresno EOC Commissioner X            

Parent Rep  Lucy Luttrell     X          

Student Rep’s    (2) Halle Overton, Kassandra Saavedra 
Alternate Student Rep   

X X           

Susan Lopez, Staff Representative, Principal  X            

Rena Failla, Staff Representative, Guidance Coordinator  X            

Courtney Griffin, Staff Representative, Guidance Dean X             

Sandy Lomelino, Staff Representative,  
Coordinator of Curriculum & Instruction 

X            
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7.  SOUL Update: Principal Report 
      Lopez reported on the Classroom Based and Independent Study demographics as presented on the Principals report. 

 The Independent Study program has very few deficiency notices sent to parents.  
 SOUL’s Fall Graduation Ceremony will be held Thursday, December 14, 2023.  Ten seniors are schedule to participate  

 in the ceremony. 
 The Interact students are painting pumpkins and decorating wreaths to be sold at Fresno EOC courtyard Thursday, 

October 26th and Friday, October 27th. 
 SOUL classroom based students will be attending the San Joaquin Valley Town Hall, Fresno County Lecture Series 

Wednesday, October 18, 2023.  The speaker this month will be Dr. Amber Straughn presenting on the James Webb 
Telescope.  

 The annual Cultural Arts Rotary of Fresno fundraiser will be held at Roger Rocka’s Dinner Theater, Wednesday, 
November 1, 2023.  The featured show, The Pirates of Penzance.  

 Ed Tech continues to work on SOUL’s Material Revision to be presented to FUSD Board in the spring of 2024. 
 

8.   Other Business 

Terry Allen announced that the next Governing Council meeting will be held, Tuesday, December 5, 2023. 
 
9.   Adjournment of Meeting 
       Meeting adjourned at 8:54 am 
 
 

    Submitted by Commissioner Jimi Rodgers, SOUL Governing Council Secretary 
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COUNTY-WIDE POLICY COUNCIL (CWPC) 

MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 7, 2023 
 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 6:12 p.m. by Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson. 

  

ROLL CALL 

 

 

Roll Call was called by Aldo Alvarado Rebolledo, CWPC Secretary. The following Representatives 

were present: September Smith, Laura Barnes, Erica Silva, Kristin Quintero, Gloria Martinez, 

Betsaida Ledesma, Denise Jackson, Cynthia Espindola, Jeanette Trejo, Michelle Taylor, Silvano 

Reboddedo, Alma Martinez, Jose De Los Santos, Christina Olea, Maria Padilla, Georgette Salazar, 

Stephanny Vazquez, Maria Rolon, Katherine Castro , Joshua Barkley, Mariana Mena, Latrice 

Turton, Leslie Mendoza, Adriana Mendoza, Angela Diaz, Fawnda Cole, Clarissa Varela, Graciela 

Reyes Mendoza, Aldo Alvarado Rebolledo, Natasha Chalk, Priscilla Thompson, Jessica Castillo, 

Jovanna Tobar, Elisa Campos, Natisha Goins, Steven Taylor, Jimi Rodgers and Zina Brown-

Jenkins. A quorum was present.  

  

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS 

CWPC MINUTES 

Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson, informed Representatives of the October 3, 2023 CWPC 

Minutes. This information was sent to Representatives prior to tonight’s meeting. 
 

Motion to approve the October 3, 2023 CWPC Minutes as written and read was made by 

Bestsaida Ledesma and seconded by Maria Mena. Motion carried. 

  

FRESNO EOC PROGRAM 

REPORT – RURAL TOBACCO 

There were no Fresno EOC Program reports. 

  

COMMUNITY 

REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 

Natisha Goins, Community Representative of Women, Infants & Children (WIC), informed 

Representatives that the WIC program is participating in Toys for Tots and will be collecting toys 

up until December 16, 2023. If parents have already signed up through another program, they 

will not be able to sign up through WIC. If interested, parents may call a WIC Representative at 

559-263-1150. 

  

FRESNO EOC 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT 

FOR THE MONTH OF 

AUGUST 2023 

Zina Brown-Jenkins, Fresno EOC Commissioner, informed Representatives of the information 

discussed and mentioned during the Fresno EOC Board of Commissioners meeting that took 

place in August 2023.  

 

Annette Thornton, WIC Director, provided a brief overview of the Women, Infants & Children (WIC) 

services provided to the community. Thornton introduced two clients, Cynthia Espindola and 

Edgar Perez, and presented a video of client Karen Perez, who shared their experience with the 

WIC program.  

 

Commissioner Robles, recommended to provide mothers with a Breastfeeding Educational 

training with the importance of Breastfeeding Children.  

 

The Annual Report was discussed and Representatives were encouraged to read page number 

22 in the CWPC packet for more detailed information about the report.  

 

Ms. Brown-Jenkins stated Emilia Reyes, Chief Executive Officer, provided a report regarding her 

attendance at the 2023 National Community Action Partnership (NCAP) Conference in Atlanta 

Georgia.  

 

Ms. Brown-Jenkins stated the next Fresno EOC Commissioner’s meeting will be held on December 

7, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.  

 

Motion to approve Fresno EOC Commissioners Report for the Month of August 2023 was made by 

Mariana Mena and seconded by Betsaida Ledesma. Motion carried.  
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MONTHLY FINANCIAL 

STATUS REPORTS (FSR) 

FOR THE MONTH OF 

SEPTEMBER 2023  

 

Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson, stated this report shows expenditures for the Head Start/Early 

Head Start Program Basic and Trainings & Technical Assistance budgets for the month of 

September 2023, which also includes credit expenses as required by the Head Start Act of 

December 12, 2007. 
 

Motion to approve the Monthly Financial Status Reports (FSR) for the month of September 2023 

for Head Start and Early Head Start was made by Georgette Salazar and seconded by Maria 

Mena. Motion carried. 

            

AVERAGE DAILY 

ATTENDANCE (ADA) 

REPORTS FOR THE MONTH 

OF SEPTEMBER 2023 FOR 

HEAD START CENTER BASE 

AND EARLY HEAD START 

Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson, informed Representatives of the Average Daily Attendance 

(ADA) Reports for the month of September 2023 for Head Start Center Base and Early Head 

Start. Head Start’s monthly ADA for September 2023 for Center Base was 85.46%. Total number 

of Head Start Home Base Visits completed were 343. Early Head Start’s monthly ADA for 

September 2023 for Center Base was 78.74%. Total number of Early Head Start Home Visits 

completed were 972. 
 

Motion to approve the ADA Reports for the month of September 2023 for Head Start Center Base 

and Early Head Start was made by Maria Mena and seconded by Betsaida Ledesma. Motion 

carried.  

  

COMMUNITY 

REPRESENTATIVE 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 

THE 2023-2024 PROGRAM 

YEAR 

Olga Jalomo-Ramirez, Family/Community Services Manager, stated per Head Start Act 642 and 

the Head Start 0 to 5 County-Wide Policy Council Bylaws, Membership of the County-Wide Policy 

Council (CWPC) shall be compromised of individuals from businesses, public or private 

community organizations, as well as those who are familiar with resources and services for low-

income children and families.  

 

At the beginning of each school year, the CWPC Executive Board is provided with a list of local 

community partners by which they select who they would like to participate in the CWPC 

meetings. In doing so, this affords the CWPC and Community Representatives to make decisions 

for program operations. The four community representative agencies that were selected to 

participate in the 2023-2024 school year are Fresno EOC Women, Infants and Children (WIC), 

Central Valley Regional Center (CVRC), Exceptional Parents Unlimited (EPU) and Supportive 

Services.   

 

Fresno EOC WIC provides vouchers for families to receive dietary supplements, food and prenatal 

services. CVRC assists with the development of disabled individuals within families through Home 

Visits. EPU works with children with delays and/or behaviors. Supportive Services provides 

babysitting vouchers for families to receive affordable childcare.  

 

Ms. Cole added that children do not have to be diagnosed with IEP/IFSP by a Physician for 

assistance through CVRC or EPU. 
 

Motion to approve Community Representative Recommendations for the 2023-2024 Program 

Year was made by Priscilla Thompson and seconded by Silvano Rebolledo. Motion carried.  

  

EARLY HEAD START/HEAD 

START PROGRAM SCHOOL 

READINESS GOALS 2023-

2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

Guadalupe Zuniga, Home Base Services Manager, informed Representatives that Head Start 

Program Performance Standard Achieving program goals requires all agencies to establish school 

readiness goals. Head Start 0 to 5 uses five domains, represented by the central domains of the 

Framework, as the basis for school readiness goals. They consist of: Approaches to Learning, 

Social and Emotional Development, Language and Literacy, Cognition and Perceptual, Motor, and 

Physical Development. 

 

Felicia Amescua, School Readiness Coordinator, stated on September 01, 2023, Head Start 0 to 

5 staff, parents and partners used the aggregated data from Child Care Results (CCR) Analytics to 

review and establish school readiness goals for the 2023-2024 program year.  

 

Head Start 0 to 5 has developed five goals in which, children will demonstrate age appropriate 

positive approaches toward learning, children will demonstrate age appropriate positive social 

behavior, emotion regulation and emotion well-being, children will demonstrate age appropriate 

positive communication, language and emergent literacy skills, children will demonstrate age 

appropriate positive general cognitive skills, and children will demonstrate age appropriate 

positive health and physical development. Ms. Amescua provided examples for each goal to 

provide Representatives with more understanding.  
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Motion to approve Early Head Start/Head Start Program School Readiness Goals 2023-2024 

Draft was made by Betsaida Ledesma and seconded by Joshua Barkley. Motion carried. 

  

FISCAL YEAR 2024 HEAD 

START 0 TO 5 

CONTINUATION/REFUNDING 

APPLICATION – YEAR 4 

Rosa M. Pineda, Head Start Director, stated Head Start 0 to 5 is in year 4 of a 5-year grant period. 

The Refunding Application is submitted every year by the deadline, October 1st. The Head Start/ 

Early Head Start Refunding Grant Application for FY 2024 (Year 4 of the funding cycle) includes 

the following budget components: 

1. Basic Head Start Budget (G094122): $37,624,649 

2. Basic Early Head Start Budget (G094122): $8,376,194 

3. Head Start Training and Technical Assistance Budget (G094120): $323,827 

4. Early Head Start Training and Technical Assistance Budget (G094121): $173,371 

 

Ms. Pineda briefly discussed each budget category such as Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Travel, 

Equipment, Supplies, Contractual, Construction, Other, Total Direct Charges and Indirect Charges.  

 

Ms. Pineda stated the Non-Federal Share category pertains to In-Kind, which is about 20% of the 

programs budget.  

 

Mr. Rebolledo asked Ms. Pineda to expand on In-Kind because many parents are unsure of how it 

works. 

 

Ms. Pineda stated the most common way to obtain In-Kind is by parents volunteering in the 

classroom. One hour of volunteering in the classroom is equivalent to $17.60. Parents 

completing and returning the PACT Calendar is another way to obtain In-Kind. Ms. Pineda stated 

parents may take home activities and cut out/glue projects for teachers to obtain In-Kind as well. 

Teaching your child how to put on their own socks and shoes can qualify as In-Kind. Ms. Pineda 

encouraged parents to speak with their Teachers to ask specific questions about In-Kind.  

 

Ms. Brown-Jenkins asked Ms. Pineda why Head Start no longer invites parents to the National 

Head Start Association (NHSA) Conferences. 

 

Ms. Pineda stated the previous CWPC Chairperson was invited to this past NHSA Conference in 

Phoenix Arizona, but could not make it. 

 

Ms. Brown-Jenkins suggested incorporating more parents to be involved in the trip. She stated 

her experience was phenomenal as a previous parent in the program when she attended the 

NHSA Conference. 

 

Motion to approve Fiscal Year 2024 Head Start 0 to 5 Continuation/Refunding Application – Year 

4 was made by Cynthia Espindola and seconded by Betsaida Ledesma. Motion carried.   
  

RESOLUTION FOR HEAD 

START DIRECTOR 

Rosa M. Pineda, Head Start Director, stated she is asking for approval from the CWPC to allow 

her to accept and sign any Community Care Licensing (CCL) documents that require authorization 

from the CEO, Emilia Reyes, as it pertains to Fresno EOC Head Start 0 to 5. CCL requires timely 

live signatures, so when Emilia Reyes is not available this would give Ms. Pineda the authority to 

complete the signatures. If the CWPC approves this agenda item, it will then be presented to the 

EOC Board for final approval and authorization. 

 

Georgette Salazar, CWPC Representative, asked if there is a record for parents to review what 

was signed.  

 

Ms. Pineda replied yes, and it only applies to Licensing documents. Ms. Reyes will have 

knowledge of any documents Ms. Pineda signs as well.  

 

Motion to approve Resolution for Head Start Director was made by Betsaida Ledesma and 

seconded by Georgette Salazar. Motion carried.   

  

FULL ENROLLMENT 

INITIATIVE UPDATES 

Sara Flores, ERSEA Coordinator, stated per Performance Standard 1302.15, a program must 

maintain its funded enrollment level and fill any vacancy as soon as possible. A program must fill 

any vacancy within 30 days.  
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The recruitment data attached includes our recruitment efforts up to October 12, 2023. Head 

Start Center Base has 1356 children enrolled and Head Start Home Base has 80 children 

enrolled. Early Head start Center Base has 49 children enrolled and Early Head Start Home Base 

has 314 children enrolled. This gives us a total of 1799 children enrolled in Head Start 0 to 5.  

 

We continue to identify age eligible siblings of Head Start 0 to 5 children and reaching out to 

Community Partners to let them know we are actively recruiting children. We also continue to 

recruit by distributing marketing materials and participating in community recruitment events.   

 

Ms. Flores stated ERSEA has expanded marketing by participating on social media, Instagram 

and Facebook. Head Start 0 to 5 also had a segment on channel 30 and channel 26, before 

school started. ERSEA completed an express enrollment fair to register children in-person and on 

the spot. ERSEA also participates in many community events. For Halloween ERSEA participated 

in a trunk-or-treat at LCC and gave parents information about Head Start 0 to 5.  

 

Ms. Brown-Jenkins asked if all parents could be given Head Start 0 to 5 t-shirts for further 

promotion of the program.  

 

Ms. Pineda stated staff will be ordering t-shirts for all of the children for promotion. T-shirts will 

also be given to all new CWPC Representatives. Due to Fresno EOC being a non-profit agency, 

staff cannot sale shirts.  

 

Jose De Los Santos, CWPC Representative, asked if parents could retrieve the QR code through 

text message so that parents may promote the program on their social media. 

 

Ms. Flores stated parents may follow the program on social media and obtain the QR code.   

 

Ms. Pineda stated everyone cannot received a t-shirt but she will give a t-shirt to the top parent 

volunteer of the month each month.  

 

Mr. Rebolledo asked why the waitlisted children and incomplete application categories were so 

high. Are we completing follow-ups for these applications?  

 

Ms. Flores replied yes, follow-ups are completed for each applicant. The incomplete application 

tab does not categorize by reason, so many incomplete applications are due to pending parent 

information such as income verification, immunizations, etc. Also, a lot of children on the waitlist 

are over-income, or 3-year-old children that cannot be enrolled into class because there is a 

maximum number of 3-year-old children in the classroom.   

 

Elisa Campos, Community Representative, asked what is the turn-around for a referral. 

 

Ms. Flores stated it is 1-2 days; however, due to some centers being short staffed, she asks 

parents to wait a week. 

 

Jimi Rodgers, EOC Commissioner, asked what is the incomplete application turn-around. 

 

Ms. Flores stated there is no specific time limit. Staff make at least 3 attempts. Sometimes 

parents do not get back to staff so the final attempt is a home visit.   

  

IN-KIND MONTHLY STATUS 

REPORT FOR THE MONTH 

OF SEPTEMBER 2023 

Olga Jalomo-Ramirez, Family/Community Services Manager, stated the Head Start Act stipulates 

that the federal share of the total costs of the Head start program will not exceed 80 percent of 

the total grantee budget unless a waiver has been requested and granted.  

 

Head Start’s YTD In-Kind totals for the month of September 2023 was $200,592.94. Head Start 

In-Kind totals are accumulated by classroom and non-classroom volunteer services, consultants, 

goods, foster grandparents, PACT Time, Space, and CSPP. Early Head Start’s YTD In-Kind totals 

for the month of September 2023 was $17,802.40. Early Head Start In-Kind totals are 

accumulated by home activities, literacy/growing readers and classroom/non-classroom 

volunteer services. The YTD Head Start 0 to 5 In-Kind totals for the months of January to 

September is $4,839,061. Failing to reach our In-Kind goal of $8,660,339 annually may affect 

funding if not reached by December 31, 2023. The In-Kind totals each month need to maintain 
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and average of $721,695 between both Head Start and Early Head Start to reach our In-Kind 

goal for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year.  

 

Ms. Jalomo-Ramirez encouraged parents to continue participating in the classroom and 

completing PACT Calendars. She informed the CWPC they may turn in calendars from previous 

months up until August 2023.  

 

Natasha Goins, Parent Planning & Review Committee Chairperson, asked if there are any 

repercussions if Head Start 0 to 5 does not meet the In-Kind requirement.  

 

Ms. Jalomo-Ramirez stated yes, the program would have to give some of the grant money back. 

  

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

REPORT 

Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson, stated the Personnel Committee report consists of a list of: 

Hiring/Personnel Action Positions, Resignations/Separations, Promotion/Status Change, and Job 

Descriptions for Positions for the month. All promotions, transfers, separations and new hires are 

to be presented to the CWPC monthly, as an informational item.  

  

HEAD START 0 TO 5 

PROGRAM UPDATE REPORT 

(PUR) FOR THE MONTH OF 

SEPTEMBER 2023 

Rosa M. Pineda, Head Start Director, stated the PUR is a mandate from the Office of Head Start 

(OHS) in which intends to keep the CWPC appraised of program activities within Head Start 0 to 

5. Ms. Pineda stated EHS Home Base has filled all of their Family Development Specialist (FDS) 

vacancies and is now fully staffed. However, staff will continue to recruit and hire staff for EHS 

Center Base.   

 

Ms. Pineda stated many staff recently attended/completed CPR training and a group of staff 

attended the ChildPlus Training Scramble in Las Vegas, Nevada, September 24-28, 2023. 

ChildPlus is the software the program uses to enroll and track information for each child/family. 

 

On September 7, 2023, Eric White began enrolling children. The center is located in Selma. There 

will be a total of 16 children and 2 classrooms for Eric White.  

  

ANNOUNCEMENTS Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson, made the following Announcements: 
 

A. November 2023 – Food Distribution 

B. November 10, 2023 – Veteran’s Day Holiday – No School 

C. November 16-17, 2023 – Tri-Annual Self-Assessment 

D. November 23-24, 2023 – Thanksgiving Break – Head Start 0 to 5 – No School 

 

Ms. Cole reminded parents that the Parent Career Resources flyer was available on the back 

table.  

 

Ms. Jalomo-Ramirez stated various individuals will attend the Parent Career Resource event and 

provide tips on how to prepare your resume, apply for a job and complete an interview. Some 

vendors will be taking applications on site.  

  

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to discuss, motion to adjourn meeting was made by Georgette 

Salazar and seconded and Joshua Barkley. Motion carried.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m.  

 Submitted By:   
 

Brionna Warren 

Secretary I 
 
 

(CWPC MINUTES NOVEMBER 7 2023 FINAL)       bw 11/21/23       ~ CWPC (2023-2024 (CWPC MINUTES) ~   
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COUNTY-WIDE POLICY COUNCIL (CWPC) 

MINUTES 

DECEMBER 5, 2023 
 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Jalyssa McGill Jenkins, CWPC Vice-Chairperson. 

  

ROLL CALL 

 

 

Roll Call was called by Aldo Alvarado Rebolledo, CWPC Secretary. The following Representatives 

were present: Denise Jackson, Miroslava Woodward, Jalyssa McGill Jenkins, Erica Silva, Cynthia 

Espindola, Michelle Taylor, Silvano Rebolledo, Alma Martinez, Katherine Castro, Maria Rolon, 

Joshua Barley, Mariana Mena, Betsaida Ledesma, Antonio Basilio, Joanna Vargas Villasenor, 

Latrice Turton, Melanie Garcia, Leslie Mendoza, Gloria Martinez, Adriana Mendoza, Rom Yoeun, 

Clarissa Varela, Nancy Solorzano, Celia Ochoa, Angela Diaz, Graciela Reyes Mendoza, Aldo 

Alvarado Rebolledo, Natasha Chalk, Priscilla Thompson, Lucia Guadalupe Cruz, Jessica Castillo, 

Natisha Goins, Steven Taylor, Jimi Rodgers and Zina Brown-Jenkins. A quorum was present.  

  

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS 

CWPC MINUTES 

Jalyssa McGill Jenkins, CWPC Vice-Chairperson, informed Representatives of the November 7, 

2023 CWPC Minutes. This information was sent to Representatives prior to tonight’s meeting. 
 

Motion to approve the November 7, 2023 CWPC Minutes as written and read was made by and 

Alma Martinez and seconded by Rom Yoeun. Motion carried. 

  

FRESNO EOC PROGRAM 

REPORT – HEALTH 

SERVICES 

Rhoda Gonzales, Dental Hygienist – Fresno EOC Health Services, stated her office has been 

completing dental screenings at various centers for Head Start 0 to 5. Dental Services are very 

important for children; Health Services has been finding decay in between children’s teeth. Ms. 

Gonzales encouraged parents to floss in between their children’s teeth every night to prevent 

cavities. Ms. Gonzales informed the CWPC to contact her office if their child’s center has not had 

a dental screening, whether they attend a physical center or Home Base. Her office is also 

providing free STI testing for Community Colleges.  

 

Zina Brown-Jenkins asked if Health Services supplies dental floss for children. 

 

Ms. Gonzales replied yes, her office provides children with kits in which contain a new tooth 

brush, flossers and other items. She stated with parent consent, children may also receive a 

fluoride treatment. Fluoride is a mineral for the teeth that helps harden and protect the teeth. 

Also, Medi-Cal now covers white crowns for cavities, rather than only silver caps.   

  

COMMUNITY 

REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 

There were no reports for the meeting.  

  

FRESNO EOC 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT 

FOR THE MONTH OF 

OCTOBER 2023 

Zina Brown-Jenkins, Fresno EOC Commissioner, stated at this time, there are no items to report 

for the October 5, 2023 EOC Board meeting due to the pending approval of the October Board 

Meeting minutes. The Board reconvenes on December 7, 2023.  

 

  

MONTHLY FINANCIAL 

STATUS REPORTS (FSR) 

FOR THE MONTH OF 

OCTOBER 2023  

 

Jalyssa McGill Jenkins, CWPC Vice-Chairperson, stated this report shows expenditures for the 

Head Start/Early Head Start Program Basic and Trainings & Technical Assistance budgets for the 

month of October 2023, which also includes credit expenses as required by the Head Start Act of 

December 12, 2007. 
 

Motion to approve the Monthly Financial Status Reports (FSR) for the month of October 2023 for 

Head Start and Early Head Start was made by Mariana Mena and seconded by Maria Rolon. 

Motion carried. 

            

AVERAGE DAILY 

ATTENDANCE (ADA) 

REPORTS FOR THE MONTH 

OF OCTOBER 2023 FOR 

Jalyssa McGill Jenkins, CWPC Vice-Chairperson, informed Representatives of the Average Daily 

Attendance (ADA) Reports for the month of October 2023 for Head Start Center Base and Early 

Head Start. Head Start’s monthly ADA for October 2023 for Center Base was 84.31%. Total 

number of Head Start Home Base Visits completed were 399. Early Head Start’s monthly ADA for 
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HEAD START CENTER BASE 

AND EARLY HEAD START 

October 2023 for Center Base was 86.76%. Total number of Early Head Start Home Visits 

completed were 1101. 
 

Motion to approve the ADA Reports for the month of October 2023 for Head Start Center Base 

and Early Head Start was made by Mariana Mena and seconded by Silvano Rebolledo. Motion 

carried.  

  

FULL ENROLLMENT 

INITIATIVE UPDATES 

Sara Flores, ERSEA Coordinator, stated ERSEA stands for Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, 

Enrollment and Attendance. The recruitment data attached included the programs recruitment 

efforts up to November 22, 2023. Head Start Center Base has 1424 children enrolled and Head 

Start Home Base has 78 children enrolled. Early Head Start Center Base has 51 Children enrolled 

and Early Head Start Home Base has 324 children enrolled. This gives us a total of 1877 children 

enrolled in Head Start 0 to 5. 

 

We continue to identify age eligible siblings of Head Start 0 to 5 children and reaching out to 

Community Partners to let them know we are actively recruiting children. We also continue to 

recruit by distribution marketing materials and participating in community recruitment events.  

 

Ms. Flores stated at the last meeting parents asked for access to the QR code for recruitment/ 

enrollment purposes. Staff passed out recruitment cards to the CWPC with the QR code linked to 

the Fresno EOC website for Head Start 0 to 5 applications.  

  

IN-KIND MONTHLY STATUS 

REPORT FOR THE MONTH 

OF OCTOBER 2023 

Olga Jalomo-Ramirez, Family/Community Services Manager, stated the Head Start Act stipulates 

that the federal share of the total costs of the Head start program will not exceed 80 percent of 

the total grantee budget unless a waiver has been requested and granted. 

 

The report has been added to the packet for the CWPC to review the numbers by center. Head 

Start’s YTD In-Kind Totals for the month of October 2023 was $664,72. Early Head Start’s YTD In-

Kind totals for the month of October 2023 was $58,522.80. The YTD Head Start 0 to 5 In-Kind 

totals for the months of January to October 2023 is $4,839.061. Failing to reach our In-Kind goal 

of $8,660,339 annually may affect funding if not reached by December 31, 2023.  

 

Ms. Jalomo-Ramirez encouraged the CWPC to volunteer in the classroom and/or complete non-

classroom hours, as well as, report their centers specific In-Kind totals at the LPM. 

  

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

REPORT 

Jalyssa McGill Jenkins, CWPC Vice-Chairperson, stated the Personnel Committee report consists 

of a list of: Hiring/Personnel Action Positions, Resignations/Separations, Promotion/Status 

Change, and Job Descriptions for Positions for the month. All promotions, transfers, separations 

and new hires are to be presented to the CWPC monthly, as an informational item.  

  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 

SERVICES (CSDD) CCTR 

2024-2025 REQUEST FOR 

APPLICATION (RFA) 

Helen Uyeda, Braided Funding Manager, stated the intent of the Request for Applications (RFA) is 

to expand full-day/full-year CCTR services. It was due on Wednesday, November 22, 2023. 

Fresno EOC submitted an application for CCTR funding for the Amor Child Development Center in 

Mendota, California. CCTR Request for Funding Application (RFA) 2024-2025 was submitted and 

awarded in the amount of $243,830.00.  

  

CALIFORNIA STATE 

PRESCHOOL PROGRAM 

(CSPP) 2024-2025 

CONTINUED FUNDING 

APPLICATION 

Helen Uyeda, Braided Funding Manager, stated the program was notified by California 

Department of Education (CDE) that monies are available for existing CDE/EESD contractors to 

request continued funding for fiscal Year 2024-2025. The application was submitted on 

December 1, 2023. The total amount of CSPP 2024-2025 Continued Funding Application 

$1,620,809.00. 

  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTENT OF SOCIAL 

SERVICES (CSDD) CCTR 

2024-2025 CONTINUED 

FUNDING APPLICATION 

Helen Uyeda, Braided Funding Manager, stated the program was notified by California 

Department of Social Services (CDSS) Child Care and Development Division (CCDD) Program 

Quality Improvement (PQI) contractors to request continued funding for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

CCTR Continued Funding Application is due on or before 11:59 p.m., January 19, 2024. Total 

amount of CCTR 2024-2025 Continued Funding Application $616,391.00.  

  

COUNTY-WIDE POLICY 

COUNCIL APPOINTMENT OF 

EARLY HEAD START 

REPRESENTATIVES 

Olga Jaolomo Ramirez, Family/Community Services Manager, stated the EHS Representative 

positions for Early Head Start Center Base and Early Head Start Home Base were not filled at the 

CWPC Elections meeting in October 2023. Fawnda Cole, CWPC Chairperson, appointed Cynthia 

Espindola Early Head Start Center Base Representative and Silvano Rebolledo Early Head Start 
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Home Base Representative. They will hold their positions for the remainder of the 2023-2024 

school year.  

  

HEAD START 0 TO 5 

PROGRAM UPDATE REPORT 

(PUR) FOR THE MONTH OF 

OCTOBER 2023 

Rosa M. Pineda, Head Start Director, stated the information provided in the PUR is intended to 

keep the CWPC appraised of program activities throughout the month. She stated many 

vacancies remain throughout the program, so please spread the word to others to encourage 

them to apply for desired positions.  

 

Ms. Pineda stated there was communication and guidance from the United States Health and 

Human Services (HHS) Secretary regarding the release of nearly $3.7 billion in Low Income 

Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funding to help households with their home energy costs. 

She encouraged the CWPC to obtain assistance or inform someone who may need assistance.   

  

ANNOUNCEMENTS Priscilla Thompson, Historian, made the following Announcements: 
 

A. December 2023 – Food Distribution 

B. December 14, 2023 – Last Day of classes for Center Base (3.5 and 6-hour class) 

and Home Base due to Winter Break 
 

C. December 18, 2023 – Last Day of classes for CSPP Part Day (7.5-hour class) due to 

Winter Break 
 

D. December 20, 26, 2023 and January 2, 2024 – CSPP Full Day Closed 

E. December 20-26, 2023 and January 2-6, 2024 – EHS Center Base Closed 

F. January 8, 2024 – Center Base Classes (3.5, 6.0 and CSPP 7.5-hour class) resume 

for Center Base and Home Base 
 

G. January 9, 2024 – New County-Wide Policy Council Meeting at 6:00 p.m. 

Ms. Jalomo-Ramirez introduced Floro Trujillo, the newly hired Family Engagement/Volunteer 

Services Coordinator. 

  

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to discuss, motion to adjourn meeting was made by Miroslava 

Woodward and seconded by Cynthia Espindola. Motion carried.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m.  

 Submitted By:   
 

Brionna Warren 

Secretary I 
 
 

(CWPC MINUTES DECEMBER 5 2023 DRAFT)       bw 1/2/24       ~ CWPC (2023-2024 (CWPC MINUTES) ~   
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CEO REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The information presented below is intended to inform the reader about the Chief 
Executive Officer, the Agency, and the staff's involvement in serving our community. 
 
FRESNO EOC AGENCY-WIDE EFFORTS 
 
National Community Action Partnership Head Start Tasks Force 
The NCAP Head Start Tasks Force met on December 13th. Members including myself 
provided input and feedback regarding the Office of Head Start’s (OHS) notice of 
proposed rulemaking (NPRM) to update the Head Start Program Performance 
Standards (HSPPS), entitled “Supporting the Head Start Workforce and Consistent 
Quality Programing.” The response primarily focused on four main areas. First, 
Community Action is a significant Head Start stakeholder that supports and appreciates 
OHS explicitly naming the existential challenges currently facing Head Start programs, 
documenting the factors that led Head Start to this inflection point, and the substantial 
equity implications that hang in the balance. Second, we share the equitable goals set 
out in the NPRM, including increased staff compensation and benefits, expanded 
mental health services for children and adults, and safer learning environments for staff 
and families. Third, we agree with many of the methods OHS has proposed to help 
grant recipients reach those goals. However, changes of this scope and significance 
require striking a balance between divergent forces and the final section demonstrates 
how the current proposal fails to strike that balance in two important areas: local 
flexibility and equitable implementation. 
 
Fresno EOC Head Start Adhoc Group 
On December 18, 2023 Fresno EOC Head Start Adhoc Group met with the Head Start 
Leadership to provide feedback on improving employee relations and community 
engagement. Fresno EOC Chair Hayes and Commissioners Brown-Jenkins, Rodgers, 
Jaime-Mileham and Taylor recommended staff to develop a HS Action Plan on next 
steps. The next HS Adhoc group meeting is scheduled for January 31, 2024.  
 
Applications Being Accepted for Energy Assistance through Fresno EOC LIHEAP 
Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission (EOC) Low-Income Home Energy 
Assistance Program (LIHEAP) is now accepting application for families and individuals 
in need of energy assistance for 2024.  The Community Services Department of 
California notified Fresno EOC the release of funds for 2024 in January. The LIHEAP 
team is now ready to help those in need throughout the year. To make access easier for 
clients, appointments can be scheduled, or they can walk into any of our three locations 
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in Fresno County, which can be found online at www.FresnoEOC.org/LIHEAP or call 
559-263-1320.  
 
Head Start 0-5 and SOUL Resume School Year 
SOUL re-opened on Monday, January 8, 2024 for the Spring semester with a total of 
212 students enrolled. Two new teachers were added to staff. Head Start 0-5 resumed 
session on January 8, 2024. 
 
Fresno EOC CEO visits Head Start Sites 
In 2024 I made a commitment to visit all Head Start Sites. The goal of the site visits is to 
demonstrate we care and value our employees by encouraging, listening and 
supporting all of them throughout the County. My first site visit was Ted C Willis 
Community Center on Tuesday, January 9, 2024. I’ll be visiting Estelle Dailey on 
Thursday, January 18, 2024. 
 
National Head Start Association Winter Leadership Institute 
The National Head Start Association’s 2024 Winter Leadership Institute will be taking 
place in Washington, D.C. from January 22 – January 25, 2024. The goal of the 
Leadership Institute this year is to ensure Congress understands, values, and empower 
the important role Head Start serves for nation’s most vulnerable children and families. 
Highlights include meeting with Congress members, advocacy training and professional 
development. The HS leadership team and I will be representing Fresno EOC Head 
Start 0 to 5 Program.  
 
Fresno EOC 2024 Board Training and Retreat 
Mark your calendars. The Fresno EOC Board of Commissioners Board Training is 
scheduled for February 24, 2024. Also, the Annual Fresno EOC Board Retreat is 
scheduled from June 6 – June 8, 2024. 
 
Advance Peace Fresno Banquet 
On January 31, 2024 the inaugural Advance Peace Fresno Fundraiser and Recognition 
Banquet is taking place at The Grand 1401 in Fresno, California. Highlights of the event 
include a welcome reception with recording artist Patrick Contreras, Violin on Fire. The 
keynote speaker is the Founder and CEO of Advance Peace, Mr. Devone Boggan. AP 
Fresno will be sharing successes and accomplishments of the program and individuals 
who have contributed to these noteworthy accomplishments.  
 
 
FRESNO EOC COMMUNITY EFFORTS 
  
Partnership Helps Provide Free Diapers to WIC Families 
Fresno EOC WIC has distributed 1,864 cases of diapers to WIC families. Nearly one in 
three families struggle to afford diapers to keep their babies clean, dry, and healthy. 
Diaper insecurity is also associated with postpartum depressive symptoms and high 
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rates of diaper rash for infants. Fresno EOC is partnering with the Central California 
Food Bank to reduce diaper insecurity.   
  
Training & Employment  
On December 29, 2023 Valley Apprenticeship Connections was on hand for the Central 
Valley Training Center graduation in Selma. VAC students finished constructing a new 
fence at the Chaffee Zoo and now are working on a shelter for the Zoo.  
 
Sanctuary & Support Services Observes National Human Trafficking Prevention 
Month 
January 1st kicked off National Human Trafficking Prevention Month. To bring 
awareness and benefit Central Valley Against Human Trafficking (CVAHT), Miss Clovis 
is hosting a coat drive. Donations sites include: the Clovis Police Station, Clovis Public 
Library and Woodward Park Library.  
 
In observance of National Human Trafficking Prevention Month, CVAHT along with 
community partners will be hosting activities and proclamations throughout Fresno 
County.  
 
On January 16th CVAHT staff and other volunteers will be in Clovis, Madera, and 
Fresno for the annual Pledge to Stop Trafficking Event. Pledge to Stop Trafficking 
(P2ST) is a collaborative organization who aims to provide awareness to trafficking in 
our communities as well as collect donations that are then redistributed via grants to 
anti-trafficking agencies.  
 
Fresno EOC Food Services Serves More than 300 Free Winter Meals  

To combat food insecurity and provide much-needed meals when school is out of 
session, Fresno EOC Food Services served more than 300 meals during its Winter 
Break Meals Session at 10 locations.  
 
  
MEDIA MENTIONS 

Fresno EOC offering free meals for kids during winter break 
https://abc30.com/fresno-eoc-free-meals-winter-break-ten-locations/14187893/ 

Free meals served during winter break by the Fresno EOC 
https://www.yourcentralvalley.com/news/local-news/free-meals-served-during-winter-
break-by-the-fresno-eoc/ 

Fresno EOC to provide free meals to Fresno County children during winter break 
https://kmph.com/news/local/fresno-eoc-to-provide-free-meals-to-fresno-county-
children-during-winter-break 
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Advance Peace Fresno 
https://abc30.com/fresno-leaders-give-overview-of-2023-crime-statistics/14242286/ 

Murders down by nearly 50% in Fresno this year, compared to 2021 
https://www.yourcentralvalley.com/news/local-news/murders-down-by-nearly-50-in-
fresno-this-year-compared-to-2021/ 

 
SPONSORSHIPS  
 
Break the Barriers, A Nutcracker Like No Other, 12/2/23 
Exceptional Parents Unlimited, Inc., Winter Drive-Thru Event, 12/8/23 
LGBT Community Network, Chosen Family Holiday Party, 12/16/23 
Valley PBS, Winter Wonderland, 12/16/23 
City of Fresno Martin Luther King Unity Committee, Martin Luther King Awards, 1/12/24 
Cornerstone Church, God’s Trying To Tell You Something, 2/17/24 
 
Thank You to Our Partners  
We continue to identify service gaps by listening to and lifting up unheard voices in our 
community. When we work together, we elevate the fight against injustice and poverty. 
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